Please Note

POSTED: 12-8-17 This meeting is recorded.
Aviso:

Esta junta se grabard en cinta.

LOS BANOS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNING BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR/ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING
Los Banos Unified School District Boardroom

1717 S. 11™ Street, Los Banos, CA 93635

Thursday, December 14, 2017
6:00 P.M. - First Interim Report Study Session
6:30 P.M. — Closed Session
7:00 P.M. — Regular Meeting

AGENDA

’7Thé District welcomes Spanish speakers to Board meetings. Anyone planning to attend and needing an interpreter should call |

826-3801, 48 hours in advance of the meeting, so arrangements can be made for an interpreter.
El Distrito da la bienvenida a las personas de habla hispana a las juntas de la Mesa Directiva. Si planea asistir y necesita
interpretacion llame al 826-3801, 48 horas antes de la junta, para poder hacer arreglos de interpretacion.

L OPENING BUSINESS

A. Call Public Session to Order

B. First Interim Report Study Session (6:00p.m.)

C. Closed Session (6:30 P.M.)
1. Student Discipline: Cases #5517149 and #8194975468
2. Public Employee: Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment (Section 54957) (Action)
3. Conference with Labor Negotiator (Section 54957.6) Agency Negotiators: Tammie
Calzadillas, Paul Enos, Don Laursen, Mark Marshall and Paula Mastrangelo; Employee
Organization: CSEA (No action).

I1. OPEN REGULAR MEETING (7:00 pM.)

A. Roll Call of Board Members Present

Dennis Areias Gary Munoz
Margaret Benton Anthony Parreira
Megan Goin Marlene Smith
Ray Martinez Kyle Jackson

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Motion by ~ Seconded by
Proposed Action: Approve Agenda




V. ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL BUSINESS

A. Election of Officers: (Page 8)

1. President

Motion By Seconded By
Proposed Action: To elect President of the Board.
(President presides for remainder of the meeting).

2. Vice-President

Motion By - Seconded By

Proposed Action: To elect Vice-President of the Board.
3. Clerk

Motion By _Seconded By

Proposed Action: To elect Clerk of the Board.

4. Secretary to the Board

Motion By B Seconded By
Proposed Action: Name Mark Marshall as Secretary to the Board.

B. Statement of Facts (Page 9)

It is recommended the Board approve the Statement of Facts for filing with the
State of California as per Government Code Section 53051.

Motion By ___Seconded By
Proposed Action: Approve

VL. RECOGNITION/INTRODUCTIONS
1. Los Banos High School Student Representative, Kyle Jackson, will be introduced.




VIIL

VIIIL

IX.

PUBLIC HEARING

Public Presentations:

Members of the public may request an item be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting
by submitting a request in writing, with all supporting documents, if any, to the
Superintendent at least two weeks before the scheduled meeting date. [BB 9322(a)]

General Public Comment:

Individuals wishing to address the Board on items not on the agenda may do so by
approaching the podium. Once recognized, individuals shall identify themselves and make
their statement. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes, with the total time for public input
at twenty (20) minutes per non-agenda item. [BB 9323]

Public Comment on Agenda Items:

Members of the community may address specific items on the agenda as they are taken
up by the Board in open session or prior to the Board going into closed session. The
Board President will recognize individuals who wish to speak. Speakers are limited to
three (3) minutes, with the total time for public input at twenty (20) minutes per agenda
item. Once public comment on the agenda item is concluded and the Board begins
deliberations or recesses to closed session, no further public comment shall be permitted
on the agenda item. [BB 9323]

REPORTS
A. Student Representative Report
B. California School Employees’ Association Report
C. Los Banos Teachers’ Association Report
D. Superintendent’s Report
1. Superintendent’s Facilities Subcommittee:
2. Superintendent’s Finance Subcommittee:
3. Superintendent’s 2x3 Subcommittee:
4. Superintendent’s Scholarship Committee:
5. Curriculum Council Representative:
6. Recommendation to the Recreation Commission:
E. Facilities Report
F. Board Member Reports

NEW BUSINESS

A. First Interim Budget Report (Page 11)

The First Period Budget Interim Report requires the Board to certify the
financial condition of the District twice each year.

Motion By Seconded By
Proposed Action: Approve Interim Report and certify District can meet its
financial obligations for the current year and two subsequent years.

5 Min.



2017 Dashboard Local Indicators Report (Page 12) 5 Min.
Paul Enos and Paula Mastrangelo will provide an informational report on

Dashboard Local Indicator for Reporting to California Department of

Education Dashboard.

Schedule of 2018 Board Meetings (Page 13) 5 Min.

It is recommended the Board adopt the schedule for 2018 Board meetings
as submitted.

Motion By: Seconded By:
Proposed Action: Adopt
Loftin Stadium Project Piggyback Contract (Page 15) 5 Min.

It is recommended that the Board adopt Resolution #29-17 approving the District
to enter into a “piggyback™ agreement with Global Modular to provide the two
modular changing rooms to be located on the southeast and southwest sides of
Loftin Stadium.

Motion By Seconded By
Proposed Action: Adopt Resolution & Approve Piggyback (ROLL CALL VOTE)

Additional Classroom Facility Plan (Page 17) 5 Min.

It 1s recommended the Board approve the Facilities Committee recommendation
for additional classrooms needed for the 2018-19 school year.

Motion By Seconded By
Proposed Action: Approve

District Classroom Expansion Picgyback Contract (Page 18) 5 Min.

It is recommended by the Facilities Subcommittee that the Board adopt Resolution
#30-17 to approve the District enter into a “piggyback” agreement with Global
Modular to build the necessary modular classrooms needed throughout the District.

Motion By _ Seconded By
Proposed Action: Adopt Resolution & Approve Piggyback (ROLL CALL VOTE)

Bid Award to Install Marquee Sign at Pacheco High School (Page 20) 5 Min.

It is recommended the Board award the bid to Fluoresco Services to provide labor
and material to install an electric marquee sign at Pacheco High School.

Motion By Seconded By
Proposed Action: Approve




Revised Director/Supervisor Salary Schedule (Page 22)

5 Min

It is recommended the Board approve the revised Director/Supervisor salary schedule to
include the following: adding the Program Director of Preschool Programs to the

current salary schedule.

Motion By Seconded By

Proposed Action: Approve

Mandated Policy Changes/Updates (First Reading) (Page 28)

It is recommended the Board declare its intent to adopt the following
mandated policy updates:

BP 0500 Accountability

BP 3280 Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property
AR 3515.6 Criminal Background Checks for Contractors
BP 4140/4240/4340 Bargaining Units

BP/AR 5117 Interdistrict Attendance

AR 51252 Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts
BP/AR 6020 Parent Involvement

AR 6112 School Day

BP 6153 School-Sponsored Trips

BP 6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten

BP/AR 6173.2 Education of Children of Military Families

Motion By Seconded By

Proposed Action: Declare Intent to Adopt

Course Adoptions (First Reading) (Page 121)

It is recommended the Board declare its intent to adopt the following
Course: Physical Education.

Motion By Seconded By

Proposed Action: Declare Intent to Adopt

CONSENT CALENDAR

The Consent Calendar represents routine items acted upon in one motion by roll call
vote. The recommendation is for adoption, unless otherwise specified. Any item can

be removed for discussion upon request.

A.

Approval of Minutes
1. Regular Meeting, November 16, 2017 (Page 122)

Personnel Actions
1. Report of Certificated Staffing Actions (Page 127)
2. Report of Classified Staffing Actions (Page 128)

5 Min

S Min.



Monthly Fiscal Report (Page 129)

The monthly Fiscal Report is provided for Board information.

2018-19 School Calendars (Second Reading) (Page 137)

It is recommended the Board adopt the 2018-19 school calendars.

Governance Handbook (Second Reading) (Page 140)

It is recommended the Board review the revisions to the Governance Handbook
and declare intent to adopt.

Revised Job Description (Page 159)

It is recommended the Board approve the revised job description for the Program
Director of Preschool Programs.

Mandated Policy Changes/Updates (Second Reading) (Page 162)

It is recommended the Board adopt the following mandated policy updates:

BP 0400 Comprehensive Plan

BP/AR 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan-LCAP

BP 35134 Drugs and Alcohol Free Schools- New Policy

BP/AR 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy

BP/AR 1113 (a) District and School Web Sites

AR 5113.11 Attendance Supervision- New Policy

BP/AR 5113.12 District School Attendance Review Board-SARB- New Policy
BP 5131.6 Alcohol and Other Drugs

AR 6173.1 Educations for Foster Youth

BB 9150 Student Board Members

Contracts/Agreements/Proposals

1. Blackboard Connect, autodialing system (Page 256)

2. Alpha Vista Services Inc., Bilingual Psychologist (Page 260)

3. K.D. Anderson & Associates, Inc., Traffic Engineering Study (Page 264)
4. LDA Partners, Additional Classroom Facility Project (Page 270)

Overnight/Out of State Travel
1. LBHS Senior Grad Nite, Disneyland, May 29-30, 2018 (Page 274)
2. LBHS Boys’ Varsity Golf Team, AT&T Pro-Am Pebble Beach, Feb. 7-11, 2018 (Page 275)

Crossroads Alternative Education Center Building Exemption (Page 276)

It is recommended the Board approve the exemption request with the State
Allocation Board for the Crossroads Alternative Education Center facility.



K. Disposal of Obsolete Electronic Equipment (Page 278)

It is recommended the Board approve the removal and disposal of obsolete
electronic equipment.

L. Approval/Ratification of Warrants

Motion By Seconded By
Proposed Action: Approve Consent Calendar as listed. (ROLL CALL VOTE)

XI.  REPORTING CLOSED SESSION ACTION

The Board will report on action taken at the closed session held prior to the meeting.

XII.  DISCUSSION. INFORMATION & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS (Board/Superintendent)

XIII. CLOSED SESSION (If needed)

XIV. REPORTING CLOSED SESSION ACTION (If needed)

The Board will report on action taken at the closed session.

XV. ADJOURNMENT

Americans with Disabilities Act Assistance: Auxiliary aids and services include a wide range of services and devices
that promote effective communications for individuals with disabilities. If you require such assistance, please notify the
Office of the Superintendent at 826-3801 as soon as possible. Every effort will be made to give primary consideration
to expressed preferences or provide equally effective means of communication to insure equal access to Los Banos
Unified School District programs and events.



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: 2018 Election of Board Officers

REQUESTED ACTION: Elect Officers

Action X Discussion/Information

e e e e e e e e e
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board elect officers for 2018 - President, Vice-President, and
Clerk and appoint the Secretary to the Board.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Each year Trustees nominate and elect officers to serve a one year term on the Board.
As per Education Code, the Superintendent serves as Secretary to the Board.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This is an operational activity and does support a specific Board Goal.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

None

ORIGINATOR: Mark Marshall, Ed.D., Superintendent
Date: December 14, 2017



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Statement of Facts

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action X Discussion/Information
m
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board approve the Statement of Facts for filing with the State
of California as per Government Code Section 53051.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Government Code Section 53051 requires public agencies file a Statement of Facts to
verify school board members reside within the boundaries of the school district they
represent, and to update any new information.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This is an operational activity and does not support a specific Board Goal.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

None

h
ORIGINATOR: Mark Marshall, Ed.D., Superintendent
Date: December 14, 2017



State of California
Secretary of State

STATEMENT OF FACTS
ROSTER OF PUBLIC AGENCIES FILING

(Government Code section 53051)

Instructions:

1. Complete and mail to: Secretary of State,
P.O. Box 942870, Sacramento, CA 94277-2870 (916) 653-3984

2. A street address must be given as the official mailing address or as
the address of the presiding officer.
(Office Use Only)

3. Complete addresses as required.

4.  If you need additional space, attach information on an 8%" X 11" page, one sided and legible.
New Filing Update

Legal name of Public Agency: Los Banos Unified School District

Nature of Update: Elections

County: Merced

Official Mailing Address: 1717 S. Eleventh Street, Los Banos, CA 93635

Name and Address of each member of the governing board:
Chairman, President or other Presiding Officer (Indicate Title): President

Name: Address:

Secretary or Clerk (Indicate Title):

Name: Address:

Members: » ,
Name: Dennis Areias Address: 13315 S. Baker Rd., Los Banos, CA. 93635
Name: Margaret Benton Address: 1634 W. | Street, Los Banos, CA. 93635
Name: Megan Goin-Soares Address: 534 Ranchwood Drive, Los Banos, CA. 93635
Name: Ray Martinez Address: 2357 S. Fallbrook Drive, Los Banos, CA. 93635
Name: Gary Munoz Address: 348 Louie Ave, Los Banos, CA. 93635
Name: Anthony Parreira Address: 1024 Jackson Ave, Los Banos, CA. 93635
Name: Marlene Smith Address: 209 Orange Avenue, Los Banos, CA. 93635

December 14,2017

RETURN ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO: (Type or Print)
Date

NAME |— Mark Marshall, Los Banos Unified Schoo! District -I

ADDRESS 1717 S. Eleventh Street Signature
Los Banos, CA 93635 _'

CITY/STATE/ZIP L
Typed Name and Title

SEC/STATE NPSF 405 Rev 04/2015

10



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: 2017-18 1st Interim Report

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action X Discussion/Information

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board approve the 1st Interim Report and certify that the District can meet
its obligations for the current year, and two subsequent years,

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Current law requires the Board to certify the financial condition of the District twice each year,
Attached is the Ist Interim Report for the period ending October 31, 2017. The report shows a
positive certification of the budget.

The report will be distributed under separate cover.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This is an operational activity and does not directly support a specific Board goal.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None.

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include impact on School District Facilities):

None.

ORIGINATOR: Amer Igbal, Director, Fiscal Services
Date: December 14, 2017

11



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: 2017 Dashboard Local Indicators Report

REQUESTED ACTION: Report Only

Action Discussion/Information X
—_—_———————-— e e
RECOMMENDATION:

No action required; report only

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Staff will share the initial data that was reported on the Spring 2017 Dashboard for the District.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

Goal #1 - Promote the educational success of all students by closing the achievement gap
between groups of students by using best practices to attain proficiency or better by all students
in reading and mathematics.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

N/A

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

N/A

ORIGINATOR: Paula Mastrangelo & Paul J. Enos, Assistant Superintendents
Date: December 14, 2017

12



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: 2018 Board Meetings Schedule

REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt

Action __ X Discussion/Information -
m
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board adopt the 2018 Board meetings schedule.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

All regular Board meetings are proposed for the second Thursday of each month.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS:

This is an operational activity and does support a specific Board Goal.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

None

ORIGINATOR: Mark Marshall, Ed.D., Superintendent
Date: December 14, 2017

13



LOS BANOS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
2018 BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETINGS
2" THURSDAY OF EACH MONTH (unless otherwise noted)
7:00 P.MVL.
Los Banos City Hall Council Chambers

REGULAR MEETINGS

Thursday, January 11, 2018
Thursday, February 8, 2018
Thursday, March 8, 2018
Thursday, April 12,2018
Thursday, May 10, 2018
Thursday, June 14, 2018
Thursday, July 12,2018
Thursday, August 9, 2018
Thursday, September 13, 2018
Thursday, October 11,2018
Thursday, November 8, 2018
Thursday, December 13, 2018

SPECIAL MEETINGS

Thursday, May 24, 2018
Budget Study
5:00 p.m. — LBUSD Boardroom

Thursday, June 21, 2018
LCAP/Budget Approval
5:00 p.m. — LBUSD Boardroom

14



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Authorize Resolution to Participate in a Picovback Contract

REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution and Approve

Action X Discussion/Information
m
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board adopt Resolution #29-17 approving the District to enter into a
“piggyback” agreement with Global Modular to provide the two modular changing rooms to be
located on the southeast and southwest sides of Loftin Stadium.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

On November 16, 2017, the Board approved purchasing two modular changing rooms from
Global Modular for Loftin Stadium. Due to the dollar value of the modulars this approval must
be in the form of a piggyback agreement. The attached Resolution approves the required
piggyback agreement. The cost will increase from November’s approval by: $2,080 to cover the
bonding cost that is required with the piggyback + $12,000 for floors that will tolerate water.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This is an operational activity and does not directly support a specific Board goal.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

N/A

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

The additional cost approved with this item is $14,080 bringing the total cost to $121,094 that
will be paid from Capital Improvement Fund 40,

ORIGINATOR: Don Laursen- Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Services
Date: December 14, 2017

15



Los Banos Unified School District
1717 S. Eleventh Street
Los Banos, California 93635

Resolution #29-17

Authorizing the Acquisition of Modular Classrooms

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of Los Banos Unified School District has determined that a need
exists for the acquisition of modular classrooms to provide changing rooms at Loftin Stadium; and

WHEREAS, the governing board of a school district may under section 2018 of the California Public
Contract Code, without advertising for bids, if the board has determined it to be in the best interest of
the district, authorized by contract, lease, requisition or purchase order, any public corporation or
agency to lease data processing equipment, purchase materials, supplies, equipment, vehicles, tractors,
services and other property for the district in the manner in which the public corporation is authorized
by law to lease or purchase; and

WHEREAS, the Board of the District has determined that it is in the best interest of the District to
authorize the acquisition of these items under the Piggyback Contract for the purchase of relocatable
classroom buildings procured by the Fairfax School District, awarded to Global Modular on April 10,
2014 and such Piggyback Contract extended to April 22,2018.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board hereby finds, determines, declares, and resolves as follows:
Section 1. All of the recitals set forth above are true and correct and the Board so finds and determines.

Section 2. The Board hereby finds and determines the acquisition of the modular classrooms under the
Piggyback Contract pursuant to the Public Contracts section 20118 to be in the best interest of the
District.

Section 3. The Superintendent or Superintendent designee is hereby authorized and directed to do any
and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents which they may, in consultation with
legal counsel, deem necessary or advisable in order to consummate this transaction and otherwise carry
out, give effort to and comply with the terms and intent of this Resolution.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be effective as of the date of its adoption.

APPROVED, passed and adopted by the Governing Board of Los Banos Unified School District,
Merced County, State of California, this 14% day of December, 2017 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAINED:

President, Board of Education Secretary, Board of Education
Los Banos Unified School District Los Banos Unified School District

16



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Additional Classroom Facility Plan

REQUESTED ACTION:  Approve the Facility Project Plan

Action X Discussion/Information
h
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board approve the Facilities Committee recommendation for additional
classrooms needed for the 2018-19 school year. The new classrooms are necessary to accommodate
the anticipated student growth.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The District is expecting to reach school site facility capacity by the 2018-19 school year. With the
construction of a new elementary school still two years away, a plan to for additional classrooms is
needed. In order to have rooms ready for August 2018, per agreement/discussion with LBTA, Dr.
Marshall and the Facilities Committee are recommending: Moving Transitional Kindergarten to the
former Green Valley Charter School site, adding modular classrooms to Volta Elementary School
and adding modular classrooms to Pacheco High School. This plan will create room for 500-700
students.

If the Board approves this direction, contracts from the architect and modular companies will need
approval.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This activity supports a Board Goal #5 Provide student capacity in our schools for a single-track
schedule throughout the district.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

There is no opposition to the plans.

SPECITFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

The estimated budget for these projects is $2,100,000 to be paid from a combination of the
Developer Fees and the Capital Improvement/Fund 40.

m
ORIGINATOR: Mark Marshall, Ed.D., Superintendent

Date: December 14, 2017

17



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Authorize Resolution to Participate in a Picevback Contract

REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution and Approve

Action X Discussion/Information

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended by the Facilities Subcommittee that the Board adopt Resolution #30-17 to
approve the District enter into a “piggyback” agreement with Global Modular to build the
necessary modular classrooms for District Facilities.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Due to the ongoing growth and the renewed housing development in Los Banos, we need to add
classrooms to sites within the District. The use of a piggyback agreement allows the District to
get the “low bid price” that was established by another District in the State this past year. The
site development work will need to be hard bid out to the lowest responsive general contractor or
enter into a lease/leaseback contract to complete the site work. By awarding the modular
contract through a piggyback contract, we will save approximately two months bid time while
getting the low bid established over the past year. Due to the ongoing growth, we need to
immediately begin the selection process for a site work contractor in order to have any chance to
open in August.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This action supports Board Goals Four and Five.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

N/A

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

The cost of the total project will be in the neighborhood of $514,338.50.

ORIGINATOR: Mark Marshall, Ed.D., Superintendent
Date: December 14, 2017

18



Los Banos Unified School District
1717 S. Eleventh Street
Los Banos, California 93635

Resolution #30-17

Authorizing the Acquisition of Modular Classrooms

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of Los Banos Unified School District has determined that a need
exists for the acquisition of modular classrooms to add capacity to District Facilities; and

WHEREAS, the governing board of a school district may under section 2018 of the California Public
Contract Code, without advertising for bids, if the board has determined it to be in the best interest of
the district, authorized by contract, lease, requisition or purchase order, any public corporation or
agency to lease data processing equipment, purchase materials, supplies, equipment, vehicles, tractors,
services and other property for the district in the manner in which the public corporation is authorized
by law to lease or purchase; and

WHEREAS, the Board of the District has determined that it is in the best interest of the District to
authorize the acquisition of these items under the Piggyback Contract for the purchase of relocatable
classroom buildings procured by the Fairfax School District, awarded to Global Modular on April 10,
2014 and such Piggyback Contract extended to April 22,2018.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board hereby finds, determines, declares, and resolves as follows:
Section 1. All of the recitals set forth above are true and correct and the Board so finds and determines,

Section 2. The Board hereby finds and determines the acquisition of the modular classrooms under the
Piggyback Contract pursuant to the Public Contracts section 20118 to be in the best interest of the
District.

Section 3. The Superintendent or Superintendent designee is hereby authorized and directed to do any
all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents which they may, in consultation with legal
counsel, deem necessary or advisable in order to consummate this transaction and otherwise carry out,
give effort to and comply with the terms and intent of this Resolution.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be effective as of the date of its adoption.

APPROVED, passed and adopted by the Governing Board of Los Banos Unified School District,
Merced County, State of California, this 14" day of December, 2017 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAINED:

President, Board of Education Secretary, Board of Education
Los Banos Unified School District Los Banos Unified School District

19



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Bid Award to Install Marquee Sign at Pacheco High School

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action X Discussion/Information

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board award the bid to Fluoresco Services to provide labor and
material to install an electric marquee sign at Pacheco High School.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

A pre-bid walk through was held on Monday, November 20, 2017 at 10:00am. The bid
opening was conducted on Monday, November 27, 2017 at 1:00pm. One bid was
received from Fluoresco Services in the amount of $14,516.37. The marqgee sign was
purchased by the District. The project will only involve labor and material to install the
sign.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This is operational in nature and does not support a specific Board Goal.

ALTERNATIVE/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None.

SPECTFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Total project cost will be paid from the General Fund

ORIGINATOR: Tom Worthy, Director of Facilities, Operations, and Transportation
DATE: December 14, 2017

20



To:  LOS BANOS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT Site ld:  FLFNOB46ADR
646 W PACHECO BLVD Location: PACHECO HIGH SCHOOL
Address: 200 N WARD ROAD

LOS BANOS, CA 93635

Prinf Name

Altn: LOS BANQOS, CA 93635
Qty| tem # Description Price Amount
116077 LABOR: BASED ON 2017 PW WAGE $6,980.00 $6,980.00
RECEIVE, INSPECT & INSTALL CUSTOMER SUPPLIED
MARGIUJEE SIGN,
116590 FOOTING $6,962.00 $6,962.00
NOTES:
ELECTRICAL TO SIGN BY OTHERS.
ALL INSPECTIONS, INCLUDING DSA BY OTHERS
Subtotal: $13,942.00
1 hereby gccept this quotation/change order, pleass place my order. Sales Tax: $574.37
) Project total: $14,516.37
Signature / Date

Deposit Required:  $7,258.19
Total $7,258.18

QUOTATION VAL/IE}-EQR 30 DAYS FROM THE DATE INDICATED ABOVE.

LT
/|
U

Joarne Parvin

Phone: (659) 221.7273  Ext. 7273

Direct Phone: 559-221-7273 Fax (559) 221-7274
Email: jparvin@flucresco.com

LIGHTS OUT? FLUORESCO'S DEDICATED SERVICE & MAINTENANGE TEAM IS HERE FOR ALL YOUR NEEDS.
CALL 800-797-0870

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

The Terms and Conditions which apply to this order are available by clicking the fink below or copying into your web browser:
hitp:/fextranet.everbrite.comfcommon2/terms  condiions fluor.pdf

21




Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Revised Salary Schedule - Program Director of Preschool Programs

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action X Discussion/Information
_—— e e
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board approve the revised Director/Supervisor salary schedule to include
the following; adding the Program Director of Preschool Programs to the current salary schedule.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Program Director of Preschool programs requires very specific permits, licensure and
credentials in some cases. The Program Director is responsible for the supervision of 21 staff
members and evaluations for approximately 14 of the 21 supervised. The Program Director must
monitor and evaluate the program on an ongoing basis to ensure the expenditures are within the
grant limitations while maintaining a quality preschool program for the Los Banos Unified
School District. Due to the level of responsibility required of the Program Director of Preschool
Programs, the position is being placed the Director/Supervisor salary schedule. The salary was
determined by examining job alike positions in the Weaver School District, Merced City School
District, Atwater Elementary School District and the Dos Palos Oro Loma School District.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None at this time.

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT: (Include Impact on School District Facilities)

The total cost of salary for the Program Director of Preschool programs position is provided by
the State Preschool grant. This grant has historically been a grant that is underspent in the
district in spite of the preschool programs being enrolled to capacity or exceeding enrollment
projections. If this position is no longer funded by the State Preschool grant, or if grant funding
fluctuates to the point that the salary is not sustained by the State Preschool grant in its entirety,
the position will be brought back to the Board of Trustees for further evaluation.

ORIGINATOR: Tammie Calzadillas, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources
Date: December 1, 2017

22



SHOIATLS NINAV-INIANDINRE NS INVISISSV 1%

LISATVNV JOIAVHIL AJHILHED QIvVOd 0%

SIOIALS TVOSL IO MOLOTIIA o

TAINNOSYdd AILISSVTIO JO MOLOIIIA o

NOILVIIOdSNVIL / SNOILVIIJO / SAITTOVIIOLOTIA 0%
JOSIATINS SWALSAS NOILYINIOINI e

JOLVALSININAY SWALSAS YRIOMIAN 96
AHOVNVINNOILVIMOISNVYL 96

JOSIAYLdNS WVEOOUd TOOHOS YHIIV / TIOJdd o
AOSIAYAANS NOILVINOISNVYL / SNOILVIEJO / JONVNILINIVIA o
AOSIAYIINS SNOILVILJO £ IONVNIINIVIA o
JOSIAYLdNS VIIHILAIVO Co

AOSIATLdNS SIDIAYES TVOSIH 06

AOSIATLNS NOLLVLIOISNVIL 0%

* "TOOHOSLId IOLOIIIA WV IOOId

23



99°L¥S 18°SpS SOvPS 9e Vs vL0vS 9T'6€S 99°L£9 129¢$ 78'veES 6 EES 0T'TES 96°0€$ 61
9LTEL'BS: [0€TT8LS [08'91S'LS. [96'£22'Ls |0€'T56'9$ [09'189°9S [95'2¢v'9S |vL8LT'9S |9€°0v6'SS |cveis'ss T6'V6¥'SS [06082°SS
vL9YS S6vPS 0T EVS vSIrS S6'6ES Ov'8¢€S ¥6°9€$ 15°6€S vIveS €8°2£$ 85°TES SE0es V8l
89'7L6'LS |0L799'LS [V9'OLE'LS: [9£°880°LS |v8ET8'9S [v8'2SS'9S [08'867°95 |89°850°9% |97'Zz8'SS |08°209°GS |v0Z8E'SS 86'6L1'SS
78°SvS S0'v$ 9€°CrS vL'0vS 91'6¢$ 99°L£$ 07 9¢$ Z8'vES 6vEES 07'ZeS 96'0€$ LL6TS 8T
O£ TZ8'2$: |08°9TSLS [96'22¢'2S |0€TS6'9S [09'T89°9S [0S £zv'9S |vL8LT'95 [0E0V6'SS |cvzil'ss 6'v6Y'SS |06°082°SS  |TELL0'SS
S6vrS 0T EvS vSIvS 56'6£S ov'8€S v6'9€$ 15°6€S vIveS €8°7€S 89'TES SE0€ES 81'6¢S VLT
vv'999°'L$. [V90LE'LS [9£°880°LS |V8ET8'9S |v82SS'9S [08'862°95 (89850795 |97°/z8'SS [08°709'SS |v0'Z8E'SS |86°6Z1°SS YT'8L6'VS
90'vrS 9€°TYS vLOvsS 9T'6€$ 99°LES 07'9¢$ 8'rES 6V €€S oz'zes 96'0¢€$ LL6TS 19°8¢S L1
08'9TS°£$ [96'4¢Z'LS [OE'TS6'9S |09'189'9% [95°L26'9% [v£'8LT°9S [9€'0V6'SS |2veTL'sS |26¥6V'SS |06°082'SS TELLO'SS |vT88YS
0T Evs PS TIPS S6°6€S 0v'8€S v6'9€S 15°GES vIves £8'¢€$ 89 TES SE'0ES 81°67$ 90°'8¢$ Vot
BETLE'LS [94'880°LS [v8'ET8'9S [¥82S5'9S [08'862°9S [89'850°95 |97°278'SS |08°209'SS |vOZ8E'SS |86-6/1°GS YT'8L6'VS |VL98LPS -
LETYS vL0vS$ 9T'6€S 99°L€$ 07'9¢$ 78'ves 67'EES 0z'zes 96°0€$ LL6TS 19°82% 16°42S 91
96'£TCLS |0E'TS6'98 |09°T89'9S |9S°/T'9S [vL'8LT'9S [9€°0K6'SS (v TTs’SS [t6v6Y'SS |06°087'SS |2€LL0'SS |vr eS8 97'969vS
vSIYS S6'6€S ov'8€S ¥6'9€$ TG'GES rIveS €8°CES 8S'TES SE0ES 8T°67S 90'87% 66'92$ VST
9L'880°L$ |V8'ET8'9S |¥B'ZSS'9S |08'862°95 [89:850'98 [97°£78'SS [08°209'SS |vOZ8E'SS |86'6LT'SS |V1'8L6%S |vZ98L 73 v0'v09°vS
v ovs 9T°6£$ 99°/€$ 07'9€$ I8'PES 6 €ES 0T'ZeS 96'0€$ LL6TS 19'82$ 16°22$ 9v'9Z$ ST
vO'E56'95 [09°T89'93 |95£T¥'9S [vL'821°9$ |9€°0v6'SS |cveilL'SS |26'v6v'SS. |06:087°5S ZELLOSS |PP'T88YS [97°969'FS |vO LIS TS
96'6€$ or'ges v6'9€$ 15°6€$ YT VES €8°7€3 8S°1€S SE0ES 81°67S 90'8Z%$ 66'92$ 96'$7S VT
V8'ET8'9S |V8'TSS'9S |08'862°95 [89'850°9: |97'£28'SS. |087209'SS |v0ZBE'SS [86°6L1°SS |VI8Z6VS |vL98LTS v0'v09vS - |0€'8TY VS
9T'6€$ 99L£$ 07'9¢$ Z8'vES 6V EES ozees 96'0€$ L1625 19°8Z% 16°27$ 9975 SY'5TS v
09'189'9$ [95'£2v'9S |v£'8L1°9S [9€0v6'SS |zvz1r'sS [z6W6v'SS |061082'SS |2€240'SS - v 288'%S 97°969°vS |VOLISVS |POEVEYS
0v'8€S v6'9¢$ 16°5¢$ vTrES €82¢$ 85°TES 5€°0€S 81'67S 90°'8¢$ 66'92S 96'SZ$ 96'vCS VET
v8'765'0% |08'862'9S 189'850°90S |97°£¢8!SS |08'209°SS [v0'L8E'SS [86'6L1'SS |V 8L6FS |VL9BLYS |vO 109 VS 0€'8T¥'VS |V0'9SZ'vS:
99°L€$ 07 9¢$ 8'vES 6°€ES 0zzes 96'0¢$ LL678 19'8¢2% 16°2¢$ 9'97$ YA TA arves €1
952Zv'9$ |vL841'9S [9g70v6'sS [ zIs'ss I6'v6¥'sS [06'087'SS |ze££0'SS. |[vbz88'¥S [977969S |vOTZIS TS VO'EVEYS [00°9LTVS
v6'9€S 15°5€S vIveS €8zes 8G'TES S€0€$ 8T'67$ 90'82S 66'92S 96'5Z$ 96'vZS 00'ves \ /48
VS'00£9$ [89'850'9$ [9z°£28'SS [08'209'SS |v0 Z8E'SS 86'6L1'SS |PT'8L6'VS . [VL'98L'VS |vO'¥09'vS |0€°82v'vS |v0'9SC'yS |2z v607S
12°9¢$ 78'ves 6V EES 0C'TES 96'0€$ LL6TS 19°87S 16°22$ 9t°9¢$ St'szs 9’ vTS €5°€¢S 4
‘shep pied toz ym .wuso_n_Eu 4noy g ue Joj Arejes Ajyuow e sajedipu; ease.paiysysiy
SIA+SE | SIAVE-OE | SIA6T-ST | SIAVZ-0Z | SIAGT-ST. | SIAPT-0T [ SIA69 aduey
nx IX X Xl A HA IA A Al I ] I

3Npayds Atejes Asosiazadng/1013a.41q
8T0¢-L10¢
PUISIQ 100YIS payiun soueg so

24



PSTI6'0TS |9°06¥ 0TS [25'880°0TS {20°£69°65 [(00'97E6S [96796'8S [04TT9'8S [v8267'8S |v60L6'2S 04'¥99'LS |V9'OLE'LS |91°880°LS
14729% 62°09$ 86°LSS £/°65$ 09°'€SS vS 1SS SS6PS 99°/tS 18'SvS SOvrS 9g'TYS VL 0vS 14
00°TOL'0T$ |9€°062°01S [¥9°€68'6S |¢8°0TS'6S vi'SYT/6S |04°562°85 |ov'9sp'8s |z0'TeT'8S [oe°Tz8'2S [08'915'28 96'LTT'LS |0E€TS6'9S
05'19$ v1°6SS 98995 99'1¥SS 95°25$ 55°0SS 09'8vS €L9PS S6'vrS 0T EVS YSIYS S6°6€S vaz
9"06v°0TS |9T°TST0TS T0'L69°6S |[0V'9TE6S mm.\.omwww, 0LT29'8S |V8'T6T'8S [897TL6°LS |0Lv99°LS  |v9'0Lc°2S (9488028 |vereTs'os
67095 7€'855 €£°55S 09°€5S vSTSS SS6YS 99°/¥$ 78'SYS TR 9eTYS YL 0vS 9T'6ES S¢
0T°Z6T0TS |19'€68'6S [V8OTS'6S |bP'SPT6S 0466485 |0v9st'ss |[zoTer'ss 0ETZ8'LS |0Z'EVT'8S [96°£TT'LS [0E'TS6°9S |09°189°9%
S1°65% 98°95% 99°%SS 957755 S5°0SS$ 09°87S L9175 S6°vYS 08915 PSIYS S6°6£S 0r'8gS vz
9T'IST'OTS [20°£69°65 |0v'9ZE'6S (96729685 [0£7T79'8S |v8z62'8S |r6'026'2S 0L¥99'LS |V9'OLE'LS [92°880°LS |p8'€T89S |v8'27S5'9S
¥€°89S €4°65S 09°€SS YSTSS SS6VS 99°L1S T8°SvS SOvrs 9g°TYS vLOPS 9T'6€S 99°LES ve
79°€68°6S |V8°0TS'65. |PP'SPT'6S [0£7S64°8S |ov 95t 8S ZOTET'BS |0€TZ8LS [08915°¢S |96'27T'LS |0£TS6'9S [09189°9% [9s5zzv9s
98'95% 99'%SS 95775$ 55°0S% 09°8vS ££°9%S S6°7PS 0T EYS PSIVS S6'6ES 0v'8€S ¥6°9€S vee
9L°869'6S [0v'97E'6S [96°2968S . [0£°T29'8S vw.mmﬁwm ¥6°046°'LS (0L¥99°LS [v9°0LE'tS [94'880°£S |v8ET89S |p8TSE9S 08'862°9%
¥£L°SSS 09°€SS S 1SS SS6YS 99°L¥S T8°StS SOvrS 9¢ TYs VLS 9T'6€S$ 99°LES 0T°'9¢€S €C
8S'ZIS'6S |rY'SPI'6S [0£°664'8S |ov'9st'8S |20Ter/8S |ocTes’zs |0891s'2$ ([96°2z7'2S o€ TS6°9S  |09°T899S  |95°£T¥'9S . VL 8LT9S
L97SS 95775S S5°0SS 09°87S €4°9YS S6vrS 0T’ evs vSTYS G6'6ES Ov'8€S v6'9€S TS°GES vee
YI'8TE'6S [967796'8S |0L'T29'8S |v8'Z62°8S [89'746°¢S 0219928 |v90zeLS 9/'880°LS |V8'ET8'9S |¥8'TSS'9S -|08'862'9S [89°850'9%
19°€SS 7S'1SS SS6YS 99'L¥S 78°SYS SOvrS 9¢"TYS vLovS 9T°6€S 99°L¢$ 0Z°9¢€S 8 VES [44
YrSPT'6S [0£°S64°8S |0V'9SY'8S [ZOTET'8S |0 TT8'LS. [08°91S4S [96422'LS 0156’95 |09T89°9S 95°£TV'9S |VL'8L1'9S |[9E°0V6'SS
957Z5$ SS°0S¢ 09°8vS €L°9YS S6'PPS 0T’ evs PSIVS S6'6ES Ov"8€S ¥76°9€S 1S°SES YT pES VTZ
0£'696'8S |0£T79'8S |v8'762'8S v6'0£6'2S |0Lv99'LS |v9oLgLs 94880728 [veET8ias ¥8'7SS'9S |08'867°9S |89°850°9$ [97°£Z8'SS
SSTSS SS6YS 99°LYS 18°S¥S SO vrs 9eTrS PLOVS 3T°6¢S 99°L€S 02'9€S 8 VES 6y EES T¢
v¥'£6/°8S |OV'9SY'8S |ZOTEL'SS |0€TZ8LS 08'9TS'ZS [96'£ZT'LS |0E'TS6'9S 091899 |957/7v9S |v£'8L1°9% |9€'0v6SS. [28°918'SS
95°05$ 09'8vS €2°995 S6'vYS 0T EPS rSTrS S6°6€S OP'8€S v679¢$ TS'SES I VES EVEES voe
pv€T9'8S |V8'C6T8S |V6°0L6°CS [0£799°LS v9'0LE'LS (9288025 |v8'€189S |v8'zSS'9S [08'862°9S [89'850°9¢ |9z 278'SS 08'209'SS
95°6vS 99'L¥S 18°5vS SO vvs 9g"evs v 0vs 9T'6€S 99°L¢S 07°9¢S [4: 843 By EES 0C°Z¢S oc
0¥'9SY'8S - [20'TET'8S |0€Tz8LS [08915'4S [96722z'LS [0€TS6°9S - 09'189°9S |95°£Z¥'9S |rL'8LT'9S |9E°0V6'SS |TvTTL'sS |26 vev'sS
09°8vS €L°9YS S6°vvS 0T ErS vSIvS S6'6ES or'ges ¥6°9€S TS°SES PTvES £8°CES 8S°TES V6T
v8'762'8S |V6'0L6°LS |0L¥99°2S |v9'OLELS 9.°880'LS |v8'€T8'9S |[¥8'2SS'9S |vS00£°9S 89'850'9$ |97°£28'SS |08'209°SS. |v0'/8E'SS
*shep pied T9z yim sakojdwa Jnoy g ue 1o} Asejes Ajyjuow e sazedipui eaJe payysysiH
SIN+GE | SIAVE-O0E | SIA62-ST | SIAVZ-0C | SIA 61-ST | SJAVI-OT | SJA6-9 aduey
X iX X Xl ma HA In A Al | ] !

aInpayas Adejes Atosiasadng/io1daa1Q
810¢Z-L10¢
121151 |00Y2S paijiun soueg SoT

25



9T v8s €6°08$ €8°L1$ 8VLS v6'1LS L1°69$ 75'99% S6'£9% 6v°'19S v1'65$ 98'95$ 99'15$ VEE
8 8SE'VTS [89TOB'ETS |9V vLT'ETS [¥O'¥9L TTS [cczLaets |ev 08 TTS [vaoveTTS [vS 16015 9v°061'0TS |2S'880'01S [20°£69'6S |0V92€6S
757785 TE6LS 62°9LS 9¢'€Ls €5°0L8 €8°£9% 12°59% 1229% 62095 86'£5$ €S5S 09°€S$ €€
T8TBO'VTS |Cv TVS'ETS [86'88Y VTS [9T'ETV'CTS [8SISE0'TTS (87 WS TTS |0 LTI TTS |92'669°01S |95°062°0T% v9°€68'6S  |¥8°0TS'6S [vr'SPT'6S
£6'08S €8°LLS LT°€8% vETLS LT°69S 75°99$ G6°€9S 619 v1'65S 98°95% 99'%S$ 95°7S$ |43
89TOB'ETS [V VLT'ETS [VI'VILTTS |CTeLT'TTs |er 208 TIS [ oveTTS [vs 116013 9%°'06v'0T$ |25'880'0TS |20°L69'65 [88°67£'6S -|96'296'8S
7€°6LS 67945 9¢'€LS €5°0L8 £8/9% 12595 TL29$ 62°09S 86725S VAN 79°€S$ vS'15S 43
CYrS'ETS [89'BEO'ETS |95 LTS CTS [8S'SE0TTS [8Y VLS TTS [0S'ZZT'TTS |92°669°0TS |9E'067°0TS VO €68'65 |18 OIS 6S P SYT'6S |04°S64°8S
€8°LLS 8vLS v6'TLS LT°69% 75°99% 56°€9$ 67'19$ r1'65S$ 98'95$ 99°75S 95°75$ S50SS viE
OT'9LT'ETS |VO'YIL'TLS [2T'2LLTTS [2h'208 TTS |8Z'8VETTS [82'€T6'0TS [9°06¥°0TS [25°880°0TS [20°269°6S |0v'92E'65 |96 29685 0£7T29'8S
0£°94$ 9€°€LS €5°0L$ €8°£95 77°59S 747298 62°09% 86'£5S €4°55% 09°¢5$ vSISS SS6YS 1€
89'8T0°€TS [95°£TSZTS [85°SE0'ZTS |81 'vLS ITS [0€ £21'TTS [97°669°01S [9€'062°0TS [V9'€68°65 [V80TS'6S |riSvl6e 0£'S6.'85 |0V 95t'8S
8'VLS v6'TLS L1693 79799% S6°€9$ 6v°19S v1°65S 98'95$ 99'v¥SS 959°75$ S5°0S$ 09'8vS vog
YOVILTLS 222 LTS |2 208 TTS |bS OVE'TTS [8Z'ET6'0TS [91°06V°0TS [25'880°0TS [20°Z69°65 |0v'97E'65 |96 296'8S 0LT29'8S (V8'Z6T'8S
9€'€LS €5°04$ €8°/9% 17°59S 74798 62°09% 86°L5S €4°55$ 09°€SS vSTSS SS67S 99°/v$ 113
9S'LTS'CIS |8S'SE0'TTS (81 vLS TS [0€ 22T TT$[92°669°0TS [9€°067°015 [v9°€68'65 |8 OTS6S |v0O'STZ6S 0L°S6L'8S |OV'9SV'8S |ZOTET'SS
v6'TLS L169% 75°99% S6'€9S 6v°'19% ¥I°65S$ 9895S 99'%5$ 96'25$ 66°0S$ 09'8¥$ £L°9S v6e
96'€LZ'TTS |2V 208 TTS |VS9VE'TTS [vSTI6°0TS [9b'061°0TS |[25°880°0TS (20269765 |0v97E'6S 96729685 |0L129°8S |VBZ6ZRS |V6046'LS
vS'0L$ €8'29% 17°59% 1,298 67°09$ 86°LSS €£°65% 09'¢S$ vSTSS SS6YS 99°L¥$ 8:8972 6T
CELEQTTS BV VLS TTS [0€° LTI TTS [92°669°0TS [9€°067°0TS [V E68'65 [r80TS'6S |V SUI 6 - |04S62°8% Ov'9S¥'8S [CO'TET'8S |0E'TT8LS .
81°69% 75'99% S6'€9$ 67°T9S $1'65$ 98°95$ 99'vS$ 95°ZSS §5°0SS 09'8vS €L9%S S6YYS 474
CVZO8TITS |PSIVETTS VS TI60TS [9Y'061'0TS [25°880°0TS [20'£69'65 [0v'9ze'65 [96296'8S |02T29'8S |v8 26785 v6'0L6'LS |0L¥99LS
€8°L9S 12°59$ TL'29$ 627095 86'£5S €£°SSS 09°'€5$ vS'1SS SS6vS 99°L¥S 18°5vS SOvrS 8¢
8V'VLS'TTS [0E° LTI TTS |9T°669'0TS [9€°06Z°0TS [v9°€68'65 [¥8'0TS'6S. |vrSvT 65 |0LS6L'8S. Ov'9Sv'8S |20°IET'8S |0€TZ8'LS [08'9154S
75995 S6°€95 6’19 v1°65S 98'95$ 99'%S$ 95°75$ §5°05S 09'8v$ VACTZS S6'vvS 0T EYS \ X4
vS'OVETTS [VSIT6'0LS [9v°067 0TS [25'880°0TS [20°269%65 0v'92e'6S [96'296'8S |0£°129'8S |v8'267'8S [v6°0£67LS |04¥992 [vI0LE'2S
17°59$ 1L798 62°09$ 86'L5S A 09°€5$ vSISS SS6YS 99°Lv$ I8'GHS SOvvs 9¢°Z¥S Lz
VO'6ZT'TTS [92°669°0TS [9€°06T°0TS [19'€68°65 [v8'0TS'6S |vb'SvI'6S (0256285 |0v'9S0'8S |20 TEL'SS 0€TC8LS |08°91S°LS |967£27°LS
96'€9$ 67'19$ v1°65$ 98'95% 99'%5$ 95°25$ §5°05$ 09'81$ ACT7S S6'PYS 0T VS vSIvS V9
shep pled T9Z yum 3akojdwa 4noy g ue 10§ Alejes Ajyjuow e sajedipul eale paysiSiH
SIA+SE | SIAVEOE | SIA6Z-SZ | SIAUT-0Z | SIAGI-GT | SIAVI-OT | SIA69 a3uey
X IX X X A 1A In A Al 1 It !

a|npayas Atejes Alosinuadng/i010aa1g
8T0¢-LT0C
1ILSI(] [O0Y3S paljiun soueg SO

26



08'LLY'9TS |vr vv8'STS [0L°€ET'STS [08°059'VTS [V0 L8OV TS [06'SPS ETS [9T 2ZOETS |25 P2S TTS [08°0P0'CTS [04°6£5 TTS [2S'ZETTTS [96°£0L0TS

0L76S 90° 165 S5/8S 0T'v8s 96°085 S8 LLS 8 vLS 86°TLS 07695 657995 86°€9S vS19S vae
06'SST'9TS |86°ZES'STS [9T°9€6'VTS (96 TIE VTS TTCTSETS |V6' LLT'ETS [TT'89LTTS [8T°64T°CTS [06°SO8TTS |94 TSETTS |20°ST6'0TS [2v L6V°0TS

G8°Z6S L7685 87685 vSZ8S 8E'6LS 1£°948 8E'ELS LS0LS 58495 PZ'59% €£779S £€°09% 9¢
8T'9¥8'STS 8V 8TT'STS 0T'ZV9PIS |Z8'T8OVIS |TV CVSETS |89'8TO'ETS (95 LTS TTS |85 GEQTTS (8 VLS TTS |0E LT TIS |92°669'0TS [9E°06Z01S:
LO0°T6S 75°L8% STv8S £6°08S €8445 8'vLS v6'TLS L1°69% 75'99% S6°€9S 6v'19S r1°695 VSE
86°CES'STS V6°0€6 VTS (V£ 9SEVTS |89 TOBETS wv.vmmﬂ.mﬁm Y9'v9L'ZTS |2T°TLL'CTS |2V ZORTTS |[PS'9VETTS |vSTT6'0TS |9V 06¥'0TS |25'880°0TS

LT68S 18°685 1S°28S 7E°6LS 67°9LS 9¢'€/S £5°0.5 £87/95 12995 TL7T9S 62°09% 86°LSS S¢
8F'8TZ'STS [OT°ZV9'YTS [¢8'T80'PTS |20 ZVS ETS [89°8TO'ETS |95°LTS'TTS 85 SE0'TTS |8Y v/S'TTS |0 LZTTTS [97°6690TS [9€°062°0TS [v97€68°6S

757485 ST V8S £6°08$ €8°1LS 8vLS Ye'TLS L1695 75°99% 56°€9$ 6V°'19S YT65$ 98°95S Ve
V6'0E6'VTS VL 9SEPTS [89'TOS'ETS |9V VLL'ETS [P VIL TS (22242 TTS [2r 208 TTS [vSOvE'TTS PSS TI6'0TS [9v°06v°0TS [25°880°0TS (2026965

18689 TGZ8S €648 62°9LS 9¢€'€LS €5°0LS £8°£9$ 12995 T£295 62095 86°/SS €4°65$ 143
V8'EV9VIS |78 T80 VTS |2 ZHS'ETS [89°8TO'ETS 95 L1SCTS [8S'SE0'TTS |8V v£S TTS |0 L2T'TTS [97°669°0TS [9€°062°0TS |V9°€68'65 |v8'015'6S

" *sAep pied T9Z ynm w@>o_mEo t_.:os g ue Joy Asejes Alyiuow: e sajedipul ease pajy3iSiH
SIA +SE SIAVE-0F | SIA6T-ST | SIAVT-0Z | SIA 61-ST | SIAVT-0T | SIA6-9 o3uey
1) 4 IX X Xi A HA In A Al Hi i |

aInpayos Asejes Alosiaiadns/i010anQ
810¢-LT0C
PHISIQ [00YIS paylun soueg SOy

27



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: First Reading: Board Policv Updates

REQUESTED ACTION: Review

Action Discussion/Information X
h
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board review the following Board Policies as submitted.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

This is a part of routine policy update and Manual Maintenance program. This is the first reading
of the December 2017 updated policies. These policies address mandated legal changes. The
updates are primarily legal requirements and/or changes in the law. Below are the specific
reasons for the policy updates.

BP 0500 Accountability

BP 3280 Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property
AR 3515.6 Criminal Background Checks for Contractors
BP 4140/4240/4340 - Bargaining Units

BP/AR 5117 Interdistrict Attendance

AR 5125.2 Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts
BP/AR 6020 Parent Involvement

AR 6112 School Day

BP 6153 School-Sponsored Trips

BP 6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten

BP/AR 6173.2 Education of Children of Military Families

BP 0500 - Accountability

(BP revised)
Policy updated to reflect the new state accountability system (the California School
Dashboard), which consists of both state and local indicators to assist districts in
identifying strengths and areas in need of improvement in each priority area addressed by
the LCAP.

BP 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property

(BP revised)
Policy updated to delete the requirement to first offer surplus property to a charter school
with at least 80 students. Material regarding the appointment of the district advisory
committee expanded to specify the circumstances under which the district is not required
to appoint a committee, including the exception for the sale, lease, or rental of excess
property to be used for teacher or other employee housing pursuant to NEW LAW (AB
1157, 2017). Policy expands section on "Use of Proceeds" to reflect additional legal
requirements, and deletes the authority (repealed) to use the proceeds from the sale of

28



surplus property for any one-time general fund purpose provided that the district adopted
a plan and made certain certifications to the State Allocation Board.

AR 3515.6 - Criminal Background Checks for Contractors

(AR revised)
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 949, 2017) which requires criminal
background checks for sole proprietors who contract with the district to provide specified
services, if they will have contact with children, and provides that it is the responsibility
of the district to prepare and submit the fingerprints of the sole proprietor to the
Department of Justice. Regulation also reorganized to clarify criminal background check
requirements applicable to entities contracting for construction, reconstruction,
rehabilitation, or repair of a school facility.

BP 4140/4240/4340 - Bargaining Units

(BP revised)
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 285, 2017) which prohibits districts from
deterring or discouraging employees from becoming or remaining members of an
employee organization. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB 119, 2017) which requires
districts to provide employee organizations with specified contact information for new
employees in the bargaining unit and to give employee organizations access to new
employee orientations (limited in scope to onboarding sessions where newly hired
employees are advised of their employment status, rights, benefits, duties,
responsibilities, or any other employment-related matters).

BP/AR 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance

(BP/AR revised)
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 99, 2017) which makes a number of changes
to the school district of choice program, including (1) requiring a participating district to
register as a school district of choice with the Superintendent of Public Instruction and
the county board of education by July 1, 2018; (2) expanding the factors that must not be
considered by districts in the selection process; and (3) revising the requirements for
annually reporting the disposition of transfer requests. Regulation updated to reflect
provisions of AB 99 related to public announcements regarding the program, priorities
for admission, and the timeline for notification of a student's provisional acceptance or
rejection. Regulation also reflects NEW LAW (SB 344, 2017) which gives the county
board in a class 1 county, as defined, 60 calendar days to decide an appeal when a district
denies a transfer under an interdistrict attendance agreement. Section on "Transfers Out
of the District" moved from BP to AR, and revised to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2659,
2016) which provides that a district must not prohibit the transfer of a child of a military
family to any district that approves the transfer.

AR 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts

(AR revised)
Regulation updated to clarify the circumstances under which the district may withhold a
student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts until the student's parents/guardians have
paid for the damages to or loss of district property willfully caused by the student.
Regulation also clarifies the student's due process rights, as well as the requirement to
continue to withhold the grades, diploma, and/or transcripts when such a student transfers
from one district to another.

29



BP/AR 6020 - Parent Involvement

(BP/AR revised)
Policy and regulation updated to reflect requirements for parent involvement in schools
receiving federal Title I, Part A funding, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act,
including expanding activities to include engagement of family members. Policy also
reflects parent involvement as a state priority that must be addressed in the district's
LCAP.

AR 6112 - School Day

(AR revised)
Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 99, 2017) which permits districts to
maintain kindergarten or transitional kindergarten classes for different lengths of time
during the school day, either at the same or different school sites. Regulation also reflects
provision of AB 99 which allows districts to schedule classes in an early college high
school or middle college high school so that students attend classes for at least 900
minutes during any five school day period or 1,800 minutes during any 10 school day
period.

BP 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips

(BP revised)
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 341, 2017) which eliminates the prohibition
against the use of district funds to pay for the expenses of students participating in field
trips or excursions to another state, to the District of Columbia, or to a foreign country.

BP 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten

(BP revised)
Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 99, 2017) which permits districts to maintain
transitional kindergarten classes for different lengths of time during the school day, either
at the same or different school sites, provided that the length of the school day complies
with legal requirements related to the minimum and maximum length of the school day.

BP/AR 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families

(BP/AR revised)
Policy updated to reflect the Every Student Succeeds Act, which provides that military-
connected students will be assigned a national identification number to facilitate
monitoring of their academic progress and requires districts to issue an annual report card
that includes state achievement results for such students. Policy also adds optional
language on collaborating with the military's school liaison officers and providing staff
development related to the educational rights of military-connected students. Regulation
updated to add material regarding the transfer of course credits, exemption from local
graduation requirements when a student transfers after the completion of the second year
of high school, and use of the uniform complaint procedures for allegations of
noncompliance by the district, pursuant to NEW LAW (AB 365, 2017). Regulation also
reflects NEW LAW (SB 455, 2017) which provides that a student will be deemed to
meet district residency requirements if his/her parent/guardian is transferred or is pending
transfer to a military installation within the state, and NEW LAW (AB 2659, 2016)
which provides that districts must not prohibit the transfer of a military-connected student
out of the district regardless of whether the district has an interdistrict transfer agreement
with another district.

30



HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This activity is operational in nature.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None

ORIGINATOR: Dr. Mark Marshall, Superintendent
DATE: December 14,2017

31



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0500(a)
ACCOUNTABILITY
‘E)te: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. B ~

The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure accountability to the public for the
performance of the district and each district schools. The Board shall regularly review the
effectiveness of the district's programs, personnel, and fiscal operations, with a focus on the

distriets-effectivenessin capacity to improveing student achievement. The Board shall establish
appropriate processes and measures to monitor results and to evaluate progress toward
accomplishing the district's vision and goals set forth in the local control and accountability

plan (LCAP).

(cf- 0000 - Vision)

(cf- 0200 - Goals for the School District)

{cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)
(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent)

fcf. 3460 - Financial Accowntability-and Reports Reports and Accountability)
(cf 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision)

(cf 4215 - Evaluation/Supervision)

(cf- 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision)

(cf- 6011 - Academic Standards)

(cf- 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)
(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation)

| Note: Cahfomlas accountab111ty system, Whlch is based on both state and federal requlrements —me}aémg—the

measures dlstrlct and school performance on a variety

of indicators of school success. 20 USC 6311, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95),
requires each state to have an accountability system that incorporates multiple measures. including. but not
limited to. statewide assessment results for all students as well as numerically sienificant subgroups. The
California Accountability and Continuous Improvement Svstem consists of both state and local indicators
to assist districts in identifying streneths and areas in need of improvement in each priority area addressed
by the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). The degree to which districts and schools are meeting |
these criteria is reflected in the California School Dashboard. which is a color-coded chart that includes the

| status of performance on the indicators as well as the change in performance from vear to vear.

Beginning in the 2018-19 school vear, the California Department of Education (CDE) will notify schools
identified for comprehensive and/or targeted support and improvement pursuant to 20 USC 6311. Until |

32



then, the CDE encourages schools previously identified for program improvement to utilize the

BP 0500(b)

ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)

Dashboard to determine areas of improvement in preparation for implementation of support and
improvement requirements.

Further information about the Accountability and Continuous Improvement Svstem and the Dashboard
l can be foungi on the CI_)E web site.

O he o A darni NN oo Ao A ] c 2 Y a = = N1 Yo
AYP) required-under-thefederal accountability system: District and school performance shall
be annually evaluated based on multiple measures specified in the California
Accountabilitv and Continuous Improvement Svstem as reported on the California School
Dashboard.

(cf- 6162.5 - Student Assessment)
(¢f. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

| Note: The following parasraph should be revised to reflect the tvpes of alternative schools mainta}ned by i

the district. Pursuant to Education Code 52052, alternative schools serving high-risk student populations
are subject to an alternative accountability svstem. Commencing in the fall of 2018, alternative
accountability indicators will be incorporated into the Dashboard Alternative School Status (DASS)
program, as a replacement for the Alternative Schools Accountability Model. The schools described in the
following paragraph will automatically qualify for this alternative status. In addition. schools approved
through the former Alternative Schools Accountability Model process between July 1. 2016 and June 30,
2017 are considered active DASS schools. Other schools serving high-risk students may apply to establish
eligibility for DASS. Further information regsarding the DASS and participation/withdrawal instructions
and forms are available on the CDE web site.

The district's aAlternative schools serving high-risk student populations, including continuation
high schools, opportunity schools, ard community day schools, and nonpublic, nonsectarian
schools pursuant to Education Code 56366, shall be subject to an alternative accountability
system established by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. (Education Code 52052, 56366)

(cf. 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education)
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)

33



The district and each district school shall demonstrate comparable improvement in academic

achievement;—as—measured—by—the—APREL for all numerically significant student subgroups.
Numerically  significant  subgroups include ethnic  subgroups, socioeconomically

BP 0500(c)

ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)

disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless
students, when the subgroup consists of at least 30 students with a valid test score or 15 foster

youth or homeless students. (Education Code 52052)

Note: The followmg optlonal paragraph may be rev1sed to reflect dlstrlct practlce AB—Q—’/—(Gh——47—S%ath

lzias eg F—sekodede e 5: Fanohs cskihole Prov1dlng regular
reports to the pubhc and receiving input from the pubhc in regard to school and district progress are key
components of accountability.

Education Code 52060 and 52061;—as—a 3 : 2
requires—that-the district to consult with parents/guardlans students teachers pr1nc1pals admmlstrators other
school personnel, and employee bargaining units in the development and annual update of the district's loeat

| conirol-and-accountability-plan{LCAP); see BP 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan.

The Superintendent shall provide regular reports to the Board and the public regarding district
and school performance. Opportunities for feedback from students, parents/guardians, staff, and
community members shall be made available as part of any review and evaluation of district
programs and operations and as part of the development or annual update of the leeal-control-and

aceountability-plan-(LCAP).

(cf- 0510 - School Accountability Report Card)
(cf- 1100 - Communication with the Public)
(cf- 1113 - District and School Web Sites)

(cf: 1112 - Media Relations)

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

(¢f. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

Pursuant to Education Code 52071, as-added-by-AB-97-{Ch-47-Statutes-of 26043); a district will receive technical

assistance whenever the County Superintendent of Schools does not approve the district's LCAP or annual update
to the LCAP, the district fails to improve student achievement across more than one state priority identified in
Education Code 52060, or the district requests technical assistance. AB-97-alse—added Education Code 52072
whieh provides that, under specified conditions, the Superintendent of Public Instruction may intervene to revise
the district's LCAP or budget and/or to stay or rescind any district action, not required bv local collective

34



bargaining agreement, that is preventing the district from improving outcomes for all student subgroups-and-is |

‘ notrequired-by-a-collective bargainingapreement. See BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan.

Evaluation results may be used as a basis for revising district or school goals, updating the LCAP
or other comprehensive plans, identifying and developing strategies to address disparities in
achievement among student subgroups, implementing programmatic changes, determining the
need for additional support and assistance, awarding incentives or rewards, and establishing

other performance-based consequences.
BP 0500(d)

ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)

(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans)
(cf- 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)

(cf- 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
33127-33129 Standards and criteria for fiscal accountability
33400-33407 California Department of Education evaluation of district programs
44660-44665 Evaluation of certificated employees
51041 Evaluation of the educational program
52052 52052.1 Aeadefm&ﬁeffeﬁﬁaﬁee—bedexPubltc schoal performance accountabtlm progranmt
l A

52060 52077 Local com‘rol and accountabzltty plan
56366 Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools

60640-60649 California Assessment of Student Performance and Prooress
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

1068-1074 Alternative schools accountability model, assessments
15440-15463 15464 Standards and criteria for fiscal accountability
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6311 Accountability, adegnateyearly-progress state plan
6312 Local educational agency plan

6316-School-and-district-improvenent

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

2004320020 200.12-200.24 Adeqguateyearbprogress State accountability system
200.30-280-53 200.48 Program—improvement State and LEA report cards and plans

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education, Accountability: htip://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac
California School Dashboard: http://www.caschooldashboard.org
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed gov

35



(10/13 10/15) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.*

36



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3280(a)

SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY

Note: The following optional policy and_aceompanﬁlg administrative regulation detail the procedures that
govern the district's sale or lease of surplus real property.

When district properties are not being utilized for school purposes after specific time periods, Education Code
17219 17224 authorlze the State Allocatlon Board (SAB) to charge an "unused site fee " fllhegiﬁee—ef—llubhe

paymenfés— For further mformatlon reuardmcr non-use navments see the Office of Publlc School
Construction's Unused Site Program Handbook.

Education Code 17455 authorizes the sale, or lease of up to 99 years, of any district real property together with
any personal property located thereon without taking a vote of the electors of the district. To do so, the property
must not or will not be needed by the drstrrct and the dlstrlct must follow the procedures under Educatron Code

The Governing Board believes that the-district shewld-utilize-its facilities and resources should
be utilized in the-mest an economical and practical manner. The Superintendent or designee
shall periodically study the current and projected use of all district facilities to ensure the
efficient utilization of space for the effective delivery of instruction.

(cf- 1330 - Use of School Facilities)

(cf: 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)

(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings)
(cf- 7160 - Charter School Facilities)

| Note: Pursuant to Education Code 17388 17387- 17391, before surplus real property is sold or leased, the
Governing Board must appoint an advisory committee to advise the Board on the disposition of such property.

37



Education Code 17388 and 17391 establish exceptions from this requirement for rentals not exceeding 30 |
davs and for the lease or rental of a district facility to a private educational institution
for the purpose of offering summer school. In addition. Education Code 17391, as amended by AB 1157
(Ch, 717, Statutes of 2017). provides that an advisory committee need not be appointed prior to the sale,
lease, or rental of excess real property if it is to be used for teacher or other emplovee housing,

Education Code 17389 requires that the advisory committee be representative of specific groups within the
community and be composed of not less than seven nor more than 11 members (commonly referred to as a "7-11
committee"). See the accompanying administrative resulation for further information on the composition
and duties of this committee.

Prior-to-the-sale-orlease-of any-surplusreal-property; The Board shall appoint a district advisory

committee prior to the sale or lease of any surplus real property to advise the Board
regarding the use or disposition of schools or school building space which is not needed for
school purposes. Rentals of surplus property not exceeding 30 days are exempted from this
requirement, When the sale, lease, or rental of surplus property is for the purpose of
teacher or other employee housing or for the offering of summer school by a private
educational institution, the Board may elect not to appoint a district advisory committee.
(Education Code +7388-17389 17387-17391)

(cf 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

count\ or city has adopted a oeneral plan whlch is apphcable in the area where the dlstrlct nropert\ is

located, the district must notify the county or citv planning agency of the location. purpose. and extent of
the proposed disposition of district property so that the agency can determine and report on the extent to
which the disposition conforms with the local planning agency's general plan, The planning agency has 40

days during Wthh it may ra1se Ob_]CCthl’IS If objectlons are not ralsed w1th1n 40 days the lack of responsc is

dlstnct' nroposed dlsnosmon of the nropert\ is in conformity with the local planning agencyv's adopted
| general plan, o |

fatufe-t}me— If the local planning agencv has adopted a general plan that affects or includes
the area where the surplus nropertv is located the Board shall first submit a report to the local
planning agency as-te w orty - e describing
the location of the surplus propertv and the purpose and extent of the proposed sale or
lease. (Government Code 65402)

Note: When proposing the sale or lease of surplus property, the district must also comply with Public Resources |
Code 21000-21177 (the California Environmental Quality Act) (CEQA). when applicable. Pursuant to 14
CCR 15061, the sale or lease of property is exempt from detailed CEQA review if there is no possibility

| that the sale or lease will have a significant environmental effect. In such cases, the district must adopt a

| notice of exemption in accordance with 14 CCR 14062.

The Board shall determine whether the sale or lease of the surplus propertv is subject to
review under the California Environmental Quality Act. (Public Resources Code 21000-
21177; 14 CCR 15061-15062)

38



Note: When a district is selling any surl_)lu property or leasmg it with an option to purchase, Education Code
17464 lists the public entities that have must be given priority to lease or purchase surplus-distriet-properties-the
property and the types of notice that the district must provide such entities before disposing of the property.
Under certain circumstances, districts may also need to comply with the Navior Act (Education Code 17485-
17500-¢the-Naylor-Ast), which requires that the-granting-of priority be given to public agencies when disposing
of any district property that includes a playground, playing field, or land with an outdoor recreational purpose.
Under certain conditions, the district may grant priority to licensed child care providers pursuant to Education
Code 17458 or may sell surplus property for less than fair market value to public entities for recreatronal
purposes pursuant to Educatlon Code 17230 Pursaan ed-by ' h

et e 5 s 3 etretisr ppert—The requlrement to frst offer
surplus property to a charter school with a prOJected m-dlstrlct average daily attendance of at least 80
students expired July 1, 2016 pursuant to the terms of Education Code 17457.5.

property,

A : , with comply with
the priorities and procedures spec1ﬁed in apphcable law (Educatlon Code 17230, +1387-1739%;
1745755 17464, 17485-17500-17499; Government Code 54222:-65402)

(cf- 5148 - Child Care and Development)
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)
(cf 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 17462.3, as-amended-by AB-308 {Ch-496, Statutes-o£ 2013); the SAB may |
require a district selling real property purchased eonstructed improved, or modernized with funds received from

a state school facilities funding program to return those funds if: (1) the state funds were received and the
property purchased or improved within the previous 10 years; (2) the proceeds from the sale are not used for
capital outlay; and (3) the property is not sold to a charter school, another schootl district, a county office of
education, or an agency that will use the property exclusively for the delivery of child care and development
services.

In addition, when selling real property purchased, constructed, or modernized with funds
received within the past 10 years from a state school facilities funding program, the Board shall
consider whether any of the proceeds from the sale will need to be returned to the State
Allocation Board (SAB) pursuant to Education Code 17462.3.

Resolution of Intention to Sell or Lease

Before ordering the sale or lease of any real property, the Board shall adopt a resolution by a
two-thirds vote of all of its members at a regularly scheduled open meeting. The resolution shall
describe the property proposed to be sold or leased in such a manner as to identify it, specify the
minimum price or rent, describe the terms upon which it will be sold or leased, and specify the
commission or rate, if any, which the Board will pay to a licensed real estate broker out of the
minimum price or rent. The resolution shall fix a time, not less than three weeks thereafter, for a

39



public meeting, held at the Board's regular meeting place, at which sealed proposals to purchase
or lease will be received and considered. (Education Code 17466)

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(¢f. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide notice of the adoption of the resolution and of the
time and place of the meeting that will be held to consider bids by posting copies of the
resolution, signed by the Board, in three public places not less than 15 days before the date of the
meeting. In addition, the notice shall be published at least once a week for three successive
wecks before the meeting, in a newspaper of general circulation published in the county in which
the district is located, if such a newspaper exists. (Education Code 17469)

In accordance with Education Code 17470, the Superintendent or designee shall take reasonable
steps to provide notification to the former owners of the property of the district's intent to sell it.

Acceptance/Rejection of Bids

At the public meeting specified in the resolution of intention to sell or lease property, the Board
shall open, examine, and declare all sealed bids. Before accepting a written proposal, the Board
shall call for oral bids in accordance with law. (Education Code 17472, 17473)

The Board may reject any and all bids, either written or oral, and withdraw the properties from
sale when the Board determines that rejection is in the best public interest. If no proposals are
submitted or the submitted proposals do not conform to all the terms and conditions specified in
the resolution of intention to lease, the Board may lease the property in accordance with
Education Code 17477. (Education Code 17476, 17477)

Of the proposals submitted by responsible bidders which conform to all terms and conditions
specified in the resolution of intention to sell or lease, the Board shall finally accept the highest
bid after deducting the commission, if any, to be paid to a licensed real estate broker, unless the
Board accepts a higher oral bid or rejects all bids. (Education Code 17472)

The final acceptance of the bid may be made either at the same meeting specified in the
resolution or at any adjourned/continued meeting held within 10 days. Upon acceptance of the
bid, the Board may adopt a resolution of acceptance that directs the Board president, or any other
Board member, to execute the deed or lease and to deliver the document upon performance and
compliance by the successful bidder of all of the terms and conditions of the contract.
(Education Code 17475-17478)

(cf 1431 - Waivers)

Use of Proceeds

40



Note: Pursuant to Education Code 17462, the proceeds derived from the sale erlease of surplus property or
lease with an ontlon to uurchase must generallv be used for capltal outlay or mamtenance, except as nrovlded

eeﬂdmeﬂs—ﬁpeeéed—m—Edaeaﬁet%ede#Lé%-afe—saasﬁed-In addltlon Educat1on Code 17462 requlres that the

proceeds be used for one-time expendltures and prohlblts the use for ongomg expendltures such as salarles and

speaal—fa—nd—m—suppert—eﬁ-salaﬁes— However 2 CCR 1700 ematses—aa—e*eept}en—and authorlzes the use of such

proceeds, if approved by the SAB, for one-time funding to reduce a district's unfunded liability for other
postemployment benefits (OPEBs) (i.e., medical, dental, vision, hearing, life insurance, long-term care, long-
term disability, and other nonpension benefits for retired employees). For information about prefunding OPEBs
and reporting the district's liability for OPEBs, see BP 3100 - Budget and AR 3460 - Financial Reports and
Accountability.

The law does not place limitations on the use of proceeds for a lease of surplus property that does not
include an option to purchase,

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the proceeds from the sale; or lease with an
option to purchase; of distriet-surplus district property are used in-aceordance-with-law-for one-
time expenditures and not for ongoing expenditures such as salaries and general operating
expenses. (Education Code 17462)

Proceeds from a sale of surplus district property shall be used for capital outlay or
maintenance costs that the Board determines will not recur within a five-vear period.
(Education Code 17462)

Proceeds from a lease of district property with an option to purchase may be deposited into
a restricted fund for the routine repair of district facilities, as defined by the SAB. for up to
a five-vear period. (Education Code 17462)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 17462, proceeds from the sale or lease with an option to purchase may be
deposited in the district's general fund when the Board and SAB determine that the district has no
anticipated need for additional sites or building construction for the next 10 years and no major deferred
maintenance requirements. Thus, districts may not apply to the state for new construction or modernization
funding during that time period unless certain conditions specified in Education Code 17462 are satisfied.

If the Board and SAB determine that the district has no anticipated need for additional
sites or building construction for the next 10 vears and no major deferred maintenance
requirements, the proceeds from the sale or lease with an option to purchase may be
deposited in a special reserve fund for the future maintenance and renovation of school
sites or in the district's general fund. Proceeds from the sale or lease with option to
purchase of district property may also be deposited in a special reserve fund for capital
outlay or maintenance costs of district property that the Board determines will not recur
within a five-vear period. (Education Code 17462)

(¢f- 3100 - Budget)
(¢f- 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)

41



Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
17219-17224 Acquisition of property not utilized as school site; nonuse payments, exemptions
17230-17234 Surplus property
17385 Conveyances to and from school districts
17387-17391 Advisory committees for use of excess school facilities
17400-17429 Leasing property
17430-17447 Leasing facilities
17453 Lease of surplus district property
17455-17484 Sale or lease of real property, especially:

17462.3 State Allocation Board program to reclaim funds

17485-17500 Surplus school playground (Naylor Act)
17515-17526 Joint occupancy

42



17527-17535 Joint use of district facilities

33050 Request for waiver

38130-38139 Civic Center Act

GOVERNMENT CODE

50001-50002 Definitions

54220-54232 Surplus land, especially:

54222 Offer to sell or lease property

54950-54963 Brown Act, especially:

54952 Legisiative body, definition

PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE

21000-21177 California Environmental Quality Act
CODE OF REGULATIONS. TITLE 2

1700 Definitions related to surplus property
COURT DECISIONS

San Lorenzo Valley Communilv Advocates for Responsible Education v. San Lorenzo Valley Unified School
District, (2006) 139 Cal App. 4th 1356

Management Resources: (see next page)

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Closing a School Best Practices Guide
OFFICE OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION PUBLICATIONS
Unused Site Program Handbook, Mea2008 December 2015
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education, School Facilities Planning Division: http.//www.cde.ca.gov/Is/fa
Coalition for Adequate School Housing: http://www.cashnet.org
Office of Public School Construction: http.//www.dgs.ca.gov/opsc

(7/11 4/14) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

43



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation
Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3515.6(a)

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS FOR CONTRACTORS

Education Code 45125.1 and 45125.2 require certain emplovees of entities contracting to provide services to
the district, as specified below. to obtain a criminal backsround check. Pursuant to Education Code
45125.1. as amended by AB 949 (Ch. 84. Statutes of 2017), the requirement for a criminal backeround
check also applies to any individual operating as a sole proprietor who contracts with the district. In the
case of a sole proprietor, Education Code 45125.1. as amended. provides that it is the responsibilitv of the
district to prepare and submit the emplovee's fingerprints to the Department of Justice (DOJ) for

processing, -

emnlm ees of anv entity contracting w1th the district to prov1de specified services will have
contact with students, the entity shall certify in writing to the Superintendent or designee
that none of those emplovees has been convicted of a violent or serious felony as deﬁned in
Education Code 45122.1 ¢

pardonr. In the case of a sole proprietor, the Supermtendent or designee shall prepare and
submit the emplovyee's fingerprints to the Department of Justice. If anv contracting
emplovee who may have contact with students has been convicted of a violent or serious
felony as defined, a certificate of rehabilitation and a pardon as required pursuant to
Education Code 45125.1 shall be submitted to the Superintendent or designee before the
contractine employee is authorized to perform the work for the district. (Education Code

45125.1)

These requirements shall apply to a sole proprietor or entity contracting with the district to
provide any of the following services: (Education Code 45125.1, 45125.2)

1. School and classroom janitorial services
2. School site administrative services
3. School site erounds and landscape maintenance services

44



4. Student transportation services

5. School site food-related services

6. Construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or repair of a school facilitv

(¢f. 3540 - Transportation)

(cf 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund)
(cf 3600 - Consultants)

(cf. 7140 - Architectural and Engineering Services)

On a case-by-case basis, the Superintendent or designee may alse require a contracting entity
providing school site services; other than those listed above; to comply with these requirements.
(Education Code 45125.1)

These—requirements—shall-not-apply The Superintendent or designee may determine that

criminal background checks will not be required if:

1. H#the-Superintendent-or-designee—determines—thattThe contracting entity is providing

services in an emergency or exceptional situation, such as when student health or safety
is endangered or when repairs are needed to make school facilities safe and habitable.
(Education Code 45125.1)

at e a a¥a a¥alic A NIy N S Timarimtandaon

determines-thattThe employees of the contracting entity will have limited contact with
students. In determining whether a contract employee has limited contact with students,
the Superintendent or designee shall consider the totality of the circumstances, including
the-fellowing factors such_as: 4= Fthe length of time the contractors will be on school
grounds, 2= Wwhether students will be in proximity with the site where the contractors
will be working, and 3. Wwhether the contractors will be working by themselves or with
others. (Education Code 45125.1)

45



AR 3515.6(c)

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS FOR CONTRACTORS (continued)

Upon a determination that an employee shall will have limited contact with students, the
Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate steps to protect the safety of any
students who may come in contact with this employee. (Education Code 45125.1)

These steps may include, but are not be limited to, ensuring that the employee is working
during nonschool hours, providing for regular patrols or supervision of the site from
district security or personnel, ensuring that the employee is not working alone when

students are present, limiting the employee's access to school grounds, and/or providing
the employee with a visible means of identification.

‘ Note: The followi_rié paragrapB ma_y be revised to reflect district practice.

(¢f- 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

3. The contract is for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or repair of a
school facility and either item #1 or #2 above applies or the district uses one or more
of the following methods to ensure student safety: (Education Code 45125.2)

+a.  The installation of a physical barrier at the worksite to limit contact with students:

2Zb. Continual supervision and monitoring of all employees of the entity by an
employee of the entity whom the Department of Justice has ascertained has not
been convicted of a violent or serious felony-

46



AR 3515.6(d)

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS FOR CONTRACTORS (continued)

3-¢.  Surveillance of employees of the entity by school personnel-

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
41302.5 School districts, definition
45122.1 Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony
45125.1 Criminal background checks for contractors
45125.2 Criminal background checks for construction
PENAL CODE
667.5 Prior prison terms, enhancement of prison terms
1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
Department of Justice: hitps://oag.ca.gov/fingerprints

(10/97 10/98) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

47



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

All Personnel BP 4140(a)
4240
BARGAINING UNITS 4340

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 3544, an employee organization may become the employees' exclusive
representative for negotiations by filing a request with the district providing proof that a majority of the employees
in an appropriate unit wish to be represented by that organization. Notice of such request must be immediately
posted conspicuously on all employee bulletin boards in each district facility in which members of the unit are
employed. Government Code 3544.1 requires the district to grant the request for recognition unless (1) the district
doubts the appropriateness of the unit, (2) another employee organization files a challenge to the appropriateness
of the unit or submits a competing claim of representation within 15 work days of the posting of notice of the
written request, or (3) the district currently has a lawful written agreement with another employee organization
representing the same employees.

AB-S501 (Ch—674 Statutes-of 204 D-amended-Pursuant to Government Code 3540.1, te-expand the definition of

"exclusive representative"-te includes representation of "all public school employees” other than management and
confidential employees, as defined. Thus, employees such as noon-time aides who are neither certificated nor

classified employees {e-g--noon-time-duty-aides)now-have-therightte-may be represented.

Education Government Code 3543 provides that public school employees have the right to represent themselves
individually in their employment relations with the district except that, once an exclusive representative has been
| recognized, an employee in that unit is prohibited from meeting and negotiating with the district. _ [

The Governing Board recognizes the right of district employees to form a bargaining units,
select an employee organization as their exclusive representative, and be represented by that
organization in their employment relationship with the district. The Board is committed to
negotiating in good faith with recognized employee organizations and respecting the rights of
employees and employee organizations.

(cf 4141/424] - Collective Bargaining Agreement)
(cf 4143/4243 - Negotiations/Consultation)
(cf- 9000 - Role of the Board)

The district shall not dominate or interfere with the formation or administration of any employee
organization or contribute financial or other support to it. (Government Code 3543.5)

48



BP 4140(b)
4240
BARGAINING UNITS (continued) 4340

Note: Gov_ern;n_entz(;de 3550, as adde(_i bv SB 285 (Ch. 567. Statutes of 2017). prohibits a district from '
deterring or discouraging emplovees from becoming or remaining members of an emplovee organization.

Neither-the-district-nor-the-employee-organization The district shall not deter or discourage

employees from becoming or remaining members of an employee organization, impose or
threaten to impose reprisals on employees, discriminate or threaten to discriminate against
employees, or otherwise interfere with, restrain, or coerce employees because of their
membership or nonmembership in an employee organization. (Government Code 3543.5,-3543.6
3550)

(cf 4119.1/4219.1/4319.1 - Civil and Legal Rights)
Formation of Bargaining Units

Certificated and classified employees shall not be included in the same bargaining unit.
(Government Code 3545)

The district may recognize a bargaining unit of supervisory employees if; (Government Code
3545)

1. The bargaining unit includes all supervisory employees.

2. The supervisors are not represented by the same organization that represents employees
whom the supervisory employees supervise.

(cf- 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel)
(cf 4301 - Administrative Staff Organization)
(cf 4312.1 - Contracts)

For this purpose, supervisory employee means any employee, regardless of job description,
having the authority, in the interest of the district, to hire, transfer, suspend, layoff, recall,
promote, discharge, assign, reward, discipline, assign work, direct, adjust grievance of other
employees, or effectively recommend that action. The exercise of this authority shall not be
merely routine or clerical in nature, but shall require the use of independent judgment.
(Government Code 3540.1)

Government Code 3540.1, are excluded from the right to be represented in negotiations by an employee
organization. The Public Employment Relations Board ultimately determines, based upon the duties of the
position, which positions qualify as "management" or "confidential" and thus are excluded from bargaining;as |

| detailed-below. |

49



Employees serving in management, senior management, or confidential positions shall not be
represented by an exclusive representative. Such employees may represent themselves

individually or may be represented by an employee organization whose membership is composed
entirely of employees designated as holding those positions. but—When represented by an
emplovee organization, that organization shall not meet and negotiate with the district. For this
purpose: (Government Code 3540.1, 3543.4)

1. Management employee means any employee who has significant responsibilities for
formulating district policies or administering district programs, and whose position is
designated as a management position by the Board.

2. Confidential employee means any employee who is required to develop or present
management positions with respect to employer-employee relations or whose duties
normally require access to confidential information that is used to contribute significantly
to the development of management positions.

Access to Employee Orientations and Contact Information

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 3556, as added by AB 119 (Ch. 21. Statutes of 2017), districts are
required to provide recognized emplovee organizations access to new emplovee orientations. as defined, and
to eive at least 10 days' notice in advance of anv such orientation. However, shorter notice may be provided
if an unforeseeable urgency critical to the district's operations prevents giving the required 10 davs' notice.

Government Code 3556 and 3557, as added by AB 119, require that the structure, time, and manner of
access to new emplovee orientations be determined by mutual agreement of the district and emplovyee
organization. If the parties fail to reach an agreement regarding the new emplovee orientation, the
negotiations become subject to compulsory interest arbitration. Although districts are required to negotiate
how access is provided to emplovees, they are not required to negotiate the manner in which onboarding is
conducted.

The district shall permit emplovee organizations access to new emplovee orientations
where newly hired emplovees are advised, whether in person, online, or through other
means or mediums, of their employment status, rights, benefits, duties, responsibilities, or
any other employment-related matters. The district shall provide emplovee organizations
at least 10 davs' notice in advance of an orientation. However, in anv specific instance
where an unforeseeable, urgent need critical to the district's operation prevents the
required 10 davs' notice, a shorter notice may be provided. (Government Code 3555.5,

3556)

The structure, time, and manner of the access to new emplovee orientations shall be
determined by mutual agreement of the district and the exclusive representative, following
a request to negotiate by either party. If the district and exclusive representative fail to
reach an agreement, matters related to the access to new employvee orientation shall be
subject to compulsory interest arbitration. The district and employee organization may
mutually agree to submit any dispute to compulsory interest arbitration at any time. In
addition, if any dispute arises during negotiations

50




and is not resolved within 45 days after the first meeting or within 60 days after the initial
request to negotiate, whichever is earlier, either party mayv make a demand for compulsory
interest arbitration. When anv such dispute arises during the summer when the district's
administrative office is closed, the timeline shall commence on the first dav the
administrative office reopens. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on
the parties. (Government Code 3556, 3557)

Pursuant to Government Code 3558, as added by AB 119 (Ch. 21, Statutes of 2017), districts are required

to provide recognized emplovee organizations with specified contact information for new emplovees in the
bargaining unit, as provided below. The information required bv Government Code 3558 must be provided
in a manner consistent with Government Code 6254.3, which authorizes disclosure of an emplovyee's home
address. home telephone number(s), and personal cell phone number to an emplovee organization unless
the district receives a written request by the emplovee to not disclose the information. Pursuant to ‘
|
|
|

Government Code 6254.3, as amended by AB 119, the personal email address of an emplovee is not
disclosable unless used bv the emplovee to conduct public business. The following paragraph should be
revised if districts have an agreement with their employee organization(s) requiring more frequent or more
detailed contact lists.

In Countv of Los Angeles v. Service Emplovees International Union, Local 721. the California Supreme
Court held that (1) an emplover has a duty to provide information relevant to collective bargaining to the
applicable bargaining unit and failure to do so is a violation of the emplover's obligation to bargain in good
faith: (2) the disclosure of an emplovee's home address and phone number(s) by an emplover to the union
does not violate the emplovee's constitutional right of privacy; and (3) other avenues for implementing
privacy safeguards are available, such as bargaining for a notice and opt-out procedure or drafting
emplovment contracts that will notify emplovees that their home contact information is subject to
disclosure to the union and that thev mav request nondisclosure.

The Superintendent or designee

} i —shall provide an exclusive representative with the name, job title,
department, work location, telephone numbers (work, home, and personal cell phone),
personal email address(es) on file with the district, and home address of any newly hired
emplovee in the bargaining unit, within 30 days of hire or by the first pav period of the
month following hire. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the same
information on all employees in the bargaining unit to an exclusive representative at least
every 120 days, unless more frequent or detailed lists are required by agreement with the
exclusive representative. (Government Code 3558, 6254.3)

However, the Superintendent or designee shall not disclose the home address and any
phone numbers on file for emplovees performing law enforcement-related functions, nor
shall he/she disclose the home address, home or personal cell phone number(s), or personal
email address(es) of any emplovee who is a participant in the Safe at Home address

51



confidentiality program pursuant to Government Code 6207 or any employees who
provides written request that the information not be disclosed for this purpose. Following
receipt of a written request, the district shall remove the emplovee's home address, home
and personal cell phone numbers, and personal email address from any mailing list
maintained by the district unless the list is only used by the district to contact the employee.
(Government Code 3558, 6207. 6254.3)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

Payment of Dues or Service Fee

Note: Pursuant to Government Code 3546, all emplovees in a classification represented by an emplovee

organization are required to pay a fee to the employee organization to.-cover the costs of negotiations,

contract administration. and other activities that are germane to its function as the exclusive bargaining

representative (i.e.. "azency fee" arrangements. which require emplovees to either join the union or pay a

'fair share service fee"). However, the constitutionality of agency fee statutes such as Government Code

3546 is a legal issue currentlv before the U.S. Supreme Court in Janus v. American Federation of State,
| County, and Municipal Emplovees.

Upon the written request of a recognized employee organization, the Superintendent or designee
shall deduct the amount of organization dues or the fair share service fee, determined in
accordance with Government Code 3546, from the wages and salary of each employee
represented by that employee organization and shall pay that amount to the employee
organization. (Education Code 45060, 45168; Government Code 3546)

Any employee who is a member of a religious body whose traditional tenets or teachings include
objections to joining or financially supporting employee organizations shall not be required to
join, maintain membership in, or financially support any employee organization as a condition of
employment. However, such an employee may be required to pay an amount equal to the service
fee to a designated charitable fund. (Government Code 3546.3)

Each employee organization shall, within 60 days after the end of its fiscal year, provide the
Board and the employees who are members of the organization with a detailed financial report
consisting of a balance sheet and an operating statement. If the employee organization fails to
provide the financial report, the Board may issue an order compelling the organization to provide
the financial report or any employee within the organization may petition the Board for such an
order. (Government Code 3546.5)

(cf 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)

Legal Reference: (see next page)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
45060-45061.5 Deduction of fees from salary or wage payment, certificated employees
45100.5 Senior management positions
45104.5 Abolishment of senior classified management positions
45108.5 Definitions of senior classified management employees
45108.7 Waiver of provisions of 45108.5

52



45168 Deduction of fees from salary or wage payment, classified employees

45220-45320 Merit system, classified employees

GOVERNMENT CODE

3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act, especially:

3540.1 Definitions

3543.4 Management position; representalion

3545 Appropriateness of unit; basis

3550-3552 Prohibition on public emplovers deterring or discouraging union membership
3555-3559 Public employee communication, information and orientation

6205-6210 Confidentiality of addresses for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking
6254.3 Disclosure of employee contact information to employee organization

6503.5 Joint powers agencies

53260-53264 Employment contracts

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8

33015-33490 Recognition of exclusive representative; proceedings

33700-33710 Severance of established unit

34020 Petition to rescind organizational security arrangement

34055 Reinstatement of organizational security arrangement

COURT DECISIONS

Janus v. American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, Council 31, (7th Cir. 2017)
851 F.3d 746, cert granted Sept. 28, 2017, No. 16-1466

Friedrichs v. California Teachers Association, et al., (2016) 136 S.Ct. 1083

Countv of Los Anzeles v. Service Emplovees International Union, Local 721, (20092 CalApp4th-1409
(2013) 56 Cal. 4th 905

Abood v. Detroit Board of Education, (1977) 431 U.S. 209

Management Resources:

olgctive B e DVD-ROM
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

Association of California School Administrators: hitp.//www.acsa.org
California Federation of Teachers: http://www.cft.org

California School Employees Association: http.//www.csea.com
California Teachers Association: http://www.cta.org

Public Employment Relations Board: http://'www.perb.ca.gov

(3/07 11/11) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

53



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Students BP 5117(a)

INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE

Note: The Education Code provides a number of options under which a district may enroll a student whose
parent/puardian does not reside within district boundaries may-attend-school-in-a-district-otherthan-the
distriet-where-he/sheresides. Under an "interdistrict attendance permit" or "reciprocal agreement" pursuant to
Education Code 46600-46611, a student may attend school in a different district when both the district of
residence and the district of proposed attendance agree (Option 1 below). Bnder-the—"school-district-of choice
program; ™ Alternatively, pursuant to Education Code 48300-48316 48317, the Governing Board may declare
the district to be a "school district of choice" willing to accept a specific number of interdistrict transfers into the
district through a random selection process (Option 2 below). In order to maintain the integrity of the random
selection process, it is recommended that a school district of choice not also accept transfers under the
interdistrict attendance permit option except when extraordinary circumstances exist, as provided in Option 2
below. Districts that wish to use both sources of authority should consult legal counsel.

In addition, pursuant to Educatlon Code 48204, a dlstrlct may authonzes a student f-p-pardekoatinodisteisat fo

e-de a—"residen e histher whose parent/guardian is
employed w1th1n dlstrlct boundarles to attend a school in the dlstrlct (A]len bill transfer); see AR 5111.1 -
District Residency. A student attending a school identified as low achieving on the state's Open Enrollment List
may transfer to a school in any other district in the state, pursuant to Education Code 48350-48361; see BP/AR
5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers.

The Governing Board recognizes that parents/guardians of students who reside within the
geographic boundaries of i one district may, for a variety of reasons, ehoose desire to enroll
their children in a school in another district.

(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency)
(cf- 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment)
(cf 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers)

OPTION 1: Interdistrict Attendance Permits

Note: The following section is for use by districts that have entered into an agreement with one or more other
districts to accept transfers through interdistrict attendance permits pursuant to Education Code 46600-46611.
Districts selecting this option should also select Option 1 in the accompanying administrative regulation.

The Board may enter into an agreement with any other school district, for a term not to exceed
five school years, for the interdistrict attendance of students who are residents of the districts.
(Education Code 46600)

Note: Education Code 46600 requires that the interdistrict attendance agreement specify the terms and conditions
under which individual permits may be granted or denied. In addition, pursuant to Education Code 46600,

54



students who have been granted an interdistrict attendance permit must be allowed to continue

to attend the school without having to reapply unless the agreement between the two districts contains specific
agreed-upon standards for reapplication; see the accompanying administrative regulation. Districts also may
include in the agreement their agreed-upon standards for revocation of students' interdistrict attendance.
Examples of conditions that may result in revocation include falsification of information stated on the permit
application, unsatisfactory attendance, continual disruption, or poor academic achievement.

The agreement shall specify the terms and conditions under which interdistrict attendance shall
be permitted or denied. It also may contain standards agreed to by both districts for reapplication
and/or revocation of the student's permit. (Education Code 46600)

| Note: Pursuant to Education Code 46600, it is the responsibility of the attendance supervisor of the district of
residence, subject to board policies of the district of residence and terms of the agreement, to issue an individual
permit verifying the district's approval of an interdistrict transfer out of the district. The permit shall become
valid when endorsed by the board's designee in the district of proposed attendance.

Upon receiving a permit for transfer into the district that has been approved by the student's
district of residence, or upon receiving a written request from the parent/guardian of a district
student who wishes to enroll in another district, the Superintendent or designee shall review the
request and may approve or deny the permit subject to the terms and conditions of the
interdistrict attendance agreement.

OPTION 2: School District of Choice Program

Note: The following section is for use by districts that elect to participate in the school district of choice program
pursuant to Education Code 48300-48316 48317, Districts selecting this option should also select Option 2 in
the accompanymg admlmstratlve regu lation. Pupsaaﬂt—te—Edaeaﬂeﬂ—Gede%—the—seheel—éls%ﬁeFef—ehe&ee

Pursuant to Education Code 48301, as amended by AB 99 (Ch. 15, Statutes of 2017), any district that
elects to participate in this program must, on or before July 1, 2018, register as a school district of choice
with the Superintendent of Public Instruction and the County Board of Education. Pursuant to Education
Code 48317, as amended by AB 99, failure to register will result in the loss of a portion of the district's
local control funding formula apportionment attributable to the average daily attendance (ADA) of
students enrolled through the school district of choice program in the previous vear.

BP 5117(c)

55



INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE (continued)

Note: Education Code 48301, as amended b_v AB 99 (Ch. 15, Statutes of 2017), requires that a school

| district of choice accept all transfers up to the maximum number established by the Board.

Note: Whenever the number of student applications exceeds the number of transfers that the Board has
established, Education Code 48301 requires a random. unbiased process for selecting students who will be
admitted and prohibits consideration of certain factors. AB 99 (Ch. 15, Statutes of 2017) amended
Education Code 48301 to expand the list of factors that must not be considered. Pursuant to Education
Code 48301, family income may only be considered to the extent necessary to determine enrollment
prioritlpursuant to Education Code 48306: see the accompanying ad_ministrative regulation.

Note: Because the school district of choice program requires a random selection process, it is recommended that
participating districts not admit students through the interdistrict attendance permit process described in Option 1
above except under extraordinary circumstances. Such circumstances might include approving interdistrict
attendance permits for students who are victims of an act of bullying. Such students are given priority for

interdistrict attendance permits pursuant to Education Code 46600;-as-amended-by-ABH56-(Ch—732;Statutes-of

201-D); see the accompanying administrative regulation.

BP 5117(d)

56



INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE (continued)

Note: Education Code 48313 requires a school district of choice to maintain _and report specified
information regarding requests for transfers and the disposition of those requests. As amended by AB 99
(Ch. 15, Statutes of 2017). Education Code 48313 requires this report to include the eligibility for free or
reduced-price_meals of students transferring into or out of the district and the number of students
provided transportation; see items #3 and S below.

._Note: Education Code 48311 authorizes. but does not require. a school district of choice to provide |
transportation to participating students to the extent that the district provides transportation assistance to
other students. See section on "Transportation' below. Item #5 mayv be deleted by districts that do not

provide tLa{lSQortation.

Note: AB 99 (Ch. 15, Statutes of 2017) amended Education Code 48313 to revise the deadline for ]
submittine the above report and to delete the requirement to submit the report to the Department of
Finance. As amended, Education Code 48313 requires the California Department of Education to collect
and report statewide data on its web site and to share the information with specified state agencies. |

57



.-_
e
W
e
-+
4~

o

(cf- 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)

Transportation

Note: The following optional section is for use by all districts and should be revised to reflect district practice.
Districts are not required to provide transportation or transportation assistance to students admitted under an
interdistrict attendance permit pursuant to Education Code 46600-4661 1-ex-through-the-school-districtof choice
program-pursuant-to-Edueation Code-48300-48316. Pursuant to Education Code 48311, a school district of
choice is authorized, but not required, to provide transportation assistance to the extent that the district
otherwise provides transportation assistance to students. ‘

The district shall not provide transportation beyond any school attendance area. Upon request of
a student's parent/guardian, the Superintendent or designee may authorize transportation for
an interdistrict transfer students to and from designated bus stops within the attendance area of
the school that the student attends if space is available.

[SECTION ON "TRANSFERS OUT OF THE DISTRICT" MOVED TO AR|

Legal Reference. (see next page)

58



BP 5117(H)

INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
41020 Annual district audits
46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements
48204 Residency requirements for school attendance
48300-48346 48317 Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program
48350-48361 Open Enrollment Act
48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion; definition of bullying
48915 Expulsion, particular circumstances
4891]5.1 Expelled individuals: enrollment in another district
48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures
48980 Notice at beginning of term
52317 Regional occupational center/program, enrollment of students, interdistrict attendance
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION
Article 1. Section 31 Nondiscrimination on the basis of race, sex, color, ethnicity, or national origin
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
87 Ops.Cal. Atry.Gen. 132 (2004)
84 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 198 (2001)
COURT DECISIONS
Walnut Valley Unified School District v. the Superior Court of Los Angeles County, (2011) 192
Cal App.4th 234
Crawford v. Huntington Beach Union High School District, (2002) 98 Cal. App.4th 1275

Management Resources:
CSBAPUBLICATIONS
Lransferfaw-Comparison—tact-Sheet-March-2011
WEB SITES
CSBA: hutp./fwww.csba.org

California Department of Education: http.//www.cde.ca.gov

(7712 12/15) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

59



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation
Students AR 5117(a)

INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE

OPTION 1: Interdistrict Attendance Permits

| Note: The following option is for use by districts that have entered into an agreement with one or more other
school districts to accept transfers through the "interdistrict attendance permit" or "reciprocal agreement" process
pursuant to Education Code 46600-46611. (See Option 1 in the accompanying Board policy.) In 87
Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 132 (2004), the Attorney General opined that districts could not charge students a fee for
processing applications for interdistrict attendance.

In accordance with an agreement between the Governing Board and the board of another district,
a permit authorizing a student's attendance outside his/her district of residence may be issued
upon approval of both the district of residence and the district of proposed attendance.

The Superintendent or designee may approve an interdistrict attendance permit for a student for
any of the following reasons when stipulated in the agreement:

] Note: AB-1156{Ch.- 732 Statutes-of 20H)-amended Education Code 46600 te requires districts to give priority

for interdistrict attendance permits to a student who is a victim of an act of bullying, as provided below. For this
purpose, Education Code 48900(r) defines bullying to include, but not be limited to, bullying committed by
means of an electronic act directed specifically toward the student; see AR 5144.1 - Suspension and
Expulsion/Due Process.

1. When the student has been determined by staff of either the district of residence or
district of proposed attendance to be a victim of an act of bullying as defined in
Education Code 48900(r). Such a student shall be given priority for interdistrict
attendance under any existing interdistrict attendance agreement or, in the absence of an
agreement, shall be given consideration for the creation of a new permit. (Education
Code 46600)

(cf 5131.2 - Bullying)

‘ Note: Optional items #2-12 below should be revised and/or deleted to reflect district practice. w

2. To meet the child care needs of the student. Such a student may be allowed to continue
to attend district schools only as long as he/she continues to use a child care provider
within district boundaries.

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)

60



3. To meet the student's special mental or physical health needs as certified by a physician,
school psychologist, or other appropriate school personnel

(cf 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

4. When the student has a sibling attending school in the receiving district, to avoid splitting
the family's attendance.

5. To allow the student to complete a school year when his/her parents/guardians have
moved out of the district during that year.

6. To allow the student to remain with a class graduating that year from an elementary,
middle, or senior high school.

7. To allow a high school senior to attend the same school he/she attended as a junior, even
if his/her family moved out of the district during the junior year.

8. When the parent/guardian provides written evidence that the family will be moving into
the district in the immediate future and would like the student to start the year in the
district.

9. When the student will be living out of the district for one year or less.

10. When recommended by the school attendance review board or by county child welfare,

probation, or social service agency staff in documented cases of serious home or
community problems which make it inadvisable for the student to attend the school of
residence.

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)
fcf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board)

11. When there is valid interest in a particular educational program not offered in the district
of residence.
12. To provide a change in school environment for reasons of personal and social adjustment.

Note: In 84 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 198 (2001), the Attorney General opined that a lack of school facilities is a
justifiable reason for denial of the interdistrict attendance permit request. However, according to the Attorney
General, once the student is admitted, the district may not later deny the student continued attendance at a district
school because of overcrowding. Although Attorney General opinions are not binding on the courts, they are
generally afforded deference in the court when there is no specific statutory or case law to the contrary. The
following paragraph is based on this Attorney General opinion.

The Superintendent or designee may deny initial requests for interdistrict attendance permits due
to limited district resources, overcrowding of school facilities at the relevant grade level,
or other considerations that are not arbitrary. However, once a student is admitted, the district
may not deny him/her continued attendance because of overcrowded facilities at the relevant
grade level.

61



(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

Note: Education- Code 46601 requires that, within 30 days of a request for an interdistrict permit,
parents/guardians whose permit application was denied must be informed about their right to appeal to the
County Board of Education. This notice shall be provided by the district denying the request, or, in the absence
of an agreement between the districts, by the district of residence.

Pursuant to Education Code 46601, parents/guardians may submit their appeal within 30 calendar days of the
failure or refusal to issue the permit. The County Board then has 30 calendar days, unless extended by an
additional five school days for good cause, to make its determination as to whether the student should be allowed
to attend the district of his/her choice. However, as amended by AB1854{Ch-—104,Statutes-of 2044; until-July
1,-2018;_SB 344 (Ch. 461, Statutes of 2017), Education Code 46601 allows a larger class 1 county (ie., a
county with a 1994-95 average daily attendance (ADA) of 180,600 500,000 or more for all districts in the
county) 40 60 calendar days to make its determination, and a class 2 county (i.e., a county with a 1994-95
ADA of 180.000-499.999) 45 calendar davs to make its determination.

Pursuant to Education Code 46602, if the County Board determines that the student should be permitted to attend
the district of his/her choice, the district shall admit the student without delay.

Within 30 calendar days of a request for an interdistrict permit, the Superintendent or designee
shall notify the parents/guardians of a student who is denied interdistrict attendance regarding the
process for appeal to the County Board of Education as specified in Education Code 46601.
(Education Code 46601)

(cf- 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Pending a decision by the two districts or an appeal by the County Board, the Superintendent or
designee may provisionally admit a student who resides in another district for a period not to
exceed two school months. (Education Code 46603)

Students who are under consideration for expulsion or who have been expelled may not appeal
interdistrict attendance denials or decisions while expulsion proceedings are pending or during
the term of the expulsion. (Education Code 46601)

(cf 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)
(cf: 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 46600, once an interdistrict permit is granted and the student is enrolled in
the new school, the district of enrollment (1) may not require the student to reapply; (2) must allow the student to
continue to attend the school, unless the permit contains specific standards for reapplication; and (3) along with
the district of residence, may not revoke the student's existing permit if he/she is entering
grade 11 or 12, Therefore, even if an interdistrict attendance agreement between the two districts has expired, the
student may be allowed to continue attending the school to which he/she has transferred, unless the agreement
contains specific language requiring reapplication.

Once a student is admitted to a school on the basis of an interdistrict attendance permit, he/she
shall not be required to reapply for an interdistrict transfer and shall be allowed to continue to
attend the school in which he/she is enrolled, unless reapplication standards are otherwise
specified in the interdistrict attendance agreement. Existing interdistrict attendance permits shall

62



not be rescinded for students entering grade 11 or 12 in the subsequent school year. (Education
Code 46600)

=
)
£74]
1

e

63



"y

R S117(F
LY A=l e A T

A

64



Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48301 48307, the-distriet a school district of choice may prohibit a transfer
under-the-sehool into the district efchoice pregram if the Governing Board determines that the transfer would
negatively impact a court-ordered desegregation plan, a voluntary desegregation plan, or the racial and ethnic
balance of the district. In Crawford v. Huntington Beach Union High School District, a California appellate
court held that a district's intradistrict open enrollment policy, which contained a racial and ethnic balance
component as authorlzed by Educatlon Code 35160 5, was unconstltutlonal flihe—ee&ﬁ—d}d—ne%—eenﬁder—wﬂae%hef
: , : ; ienal: According to the
court, because the const1tut10nal prov1s1ons added by Proposmon 209 in 1996 ( Callforma Constitution, Article
1, Section 31) prohibit discrimination against or preferential treatment for anv individual or group on the
basis of race, sex, color, ethnicity, or national origin, prohibit-a-districtfrom adopting a district must not

dop a pohcy contammg dlfferent admlssmn criteria on the ba51s of race. A—ltheugh—the—p%ews&ens—m—l%d&eaﬂen

&aﬂs&*s-—eﬂ—ﬂaat——basas—sheald—eeﬂsuk—legal—eeuﬂsel- However. nursuant to Educatlon Code 48307 as
amended by AB 99 (Ch. 15, Statutes of 2017), denial of transfers on the basis of a voluntary desegregation
plan or the racial and ethnic balance of the district must be consistent with the provisions of Proposition
209. It is recommended that the district consult legal counsel before adopting a policy to allow the denial
of transfers on either of these bases,

For language regarding student transfers out of the district for any of the reasons specified in item #2a-c,
see section '"Transfers Out of the District' below,

65




S AR-SH7(h)

66



I es]

AR

67



}

AR S
e

68



69



(11/10 7/12) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 35691
All rights reserved.

70



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation
Students AR 5125.2(a)

WITHHOLDING GRADES, DIPLOMA OR TRANSCRIPTS

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48904. parents/suardians of any minor who willfully cuts, defaces. or
otherwise injures anv real or personal propertv belonging to the district. or who does not return district
property that was loaned to the student, are liable for paving damages to the district up to the amount
specified in law and annually adjusted for inflation: see BP/AR 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or
Damavge. Until the damapges are paid. the district is authorized to withhold the srades. diploma. and/or
transcripts of the student responsible for the damage.

Education Code 48904 mandates the Governing Board to estabhsh fegalaﬁeﬂs—ge’v‘efmﬂg—&s

procedures for see arhe e
for W1thhold1ng a student's grades d1ploma, and/or transcrlpts untll reparatlon 1s rnade Iﬂ—sueh

When a minor student willfully cuts, defaces, or otherwise injures real or personal

property of the district or does not return district property that has been loaned to him/her
upon demand of a district emplovee, the student's parents/cuardians mav be required to
pay the costs of all damages within the limits established pursuant to Education Code
48904, Until the student's parents/cuardians have paid for the damages, the
Superintendent or designee mav withhold the student's grades, diploma, and/or
transcripts. (Education Code 48904)

(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage)
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

(cf 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti)

(cf. 6161.2 - Damaged or Lost Instructional Materials)

m&seeﬂduet—aﬂd—the—wﬁafa&eﬁh&t—may—bﬁéaevBefore w1thhold1nn the student's ;_,rades.

diploma, and/or transcripts, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the student's
parents/guardians in writing of the student's alleged misconduct. (Education Code 48904)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

71



AR 5125.2(b)

WITHHOLDING GRADES, DIPLOMA OR TRANSCRIPTS (continued)

Note: Education Code 48904 mandates that the district's procedures for withholding a student's grades,
diploma. and/or transcripts conform to procedures established in the Education Code for student
expulsion. For due process procedures related to student expulsion, see BP/AR 5144.1 - Suspension and
Expulsion/Due Process.

diploma-or-transeripts—The student shall be afforded due process consistent with procdures
established for the expulsion of students, (Educat_ion Code 48904)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

If the student and parents/guardians are unable to pay for the damages or return the property, the
prineipal Superintendent or designee shall provide a program of voluntary work for the student
to—de in lieu of monetary damages. When-this Upon completion of the voluntary work-is
completed, the student's grades, diploma, and/or er transcripts shall be released. (Education
Code 48904)

When a student who is transferring into the district has had his/her grades., diploma,
and/or transcripts withheld by the previous district, the Superintendent or designee shall
continue to withhold the student's srades, diploma, and/or transcripts until notified bv the
previous district that the decision to withhold has been rescinded. (Education Code 48904.3)

o a¥alla y A-_ne a o = -0 o

the—debthas—been—<cleared—Upon receiving notice that a student whose grades, diploma,
and/or transcripts have been withheld by the district has transferred to another district in
California, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the student's records to the new
district and notifv the new district that the student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts

72



are being withheld from the student and parents/gcuardians pursuant to Education Code
48904.

AR 5125.2(c)

WITHHOLDING GRADES, DIPLOMA OR TRANSCRIPTS (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall also notify the student's parents/guardians in writing that
this-distriet's the decision to withhold the student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts will be
enforced by the new district. (Education Code 48904.3)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

48904 Liability of parent

48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts of pupils causing property damage or injury, transfer of
pupils to new school districts; notice to rescind decision to withhold

48911 Suspension by principal, designee or superintendent

49069 Absolute right to access

(12/91) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

73



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Instruction BP 6020(a)

PARENT INVOLVEMENT

Note: 20 USC 6318, as amended by the Everv Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95), mandates each district
receiving federal Title I, Part A, funds to have a written parent/guardian and familv engacement invelvement
policy developed jointly with and agreed upon by parents/guardians and family members of participating
students.  Education Code 11504 mandates districts to adopt a policy on parent/guardian involvement
applicable to each school that does not receive Title I funds. The following policy and accompanying
administrative regulation contain language satisfying both mandates and should be revised to reflect district
practice.

In addition, Education Code 51101 mandates policy for all districts addressing the manner in which
parents/guardians, school staff, and students may share responsibility for continuing the intellectual, physical,
emotional, and social development and well-being of students; see BP/AR 5020 - Parent Rights and
Responsibilities for language fulfilling this mandate.

For best practices in implementing parent/suardian and familv engasement programs. see the California
Department of Education's Familv Engagement Framework: A Tool for California School Districts.

The Governing Board recognizes that parents/guardians are their children's first and most
influential teachers and that sustained parent/guardian involvement in the education of their
children contributes greatly to student achievement and a positive school environment. The
Superintendent or designee shall wesk—with staffand consult with parents/guardians and family
members in the development of to-develop meaningful opportunities at-al-gradetevels for
parents/guardians them to be involved in district and school activities at all grade levels;
advisory, decision-making, and advocacy roles; and activities to support learning at home.

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

(cf: 1230 - School-Connected Organizations)
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)

(cf 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders)

Parents/guardians shall be notified of their rights to be informed about and to participate in their
children's education and of the opportunities available to them to do so.

(¢f. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)

The district's local control and accountability plan shall include goals and strategies for
parent/cuardian involvement, including district efforts to seek parent/guardian input in

74



BP 6020(b)

PARENT INVOLVEMENT (continued)

district and school site decision making and to promote parent/cuardian participation in
programs for English learners, foster vouth, students eligible for free and reduced-price
meals. and students with disabilities. (Education Code 42238.02, 52060)

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountabiliry Plan)

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly evaluate and report to the Board on the
effectiveness of the district's parent/guardian and family engagement invelvement efforts,
including, but not limited to, input from parents/guardians, family members, and school staff on
the adequacy of parent involvement opportunities and on barriers that may inhibit

parent/guardian participation.

(cf 0500 - Accountability)

Title I Schools

Note: The following section is for use by districts that receive Title I funds. 20 USC 6318 mandates that such
districts develop, jointly with parents/guardians and family members of participating students, a—parent
involvementpolicy which establishes expectations and objectives for meaningful parent/guardian and family
involvement and describes how the district will address specified components. See the accompanying
administrative regulation for the required components and optional strategies for addressing each component.

State law (Education Code 11503) also mandates—reinforces-federal law-by requiring-annual-objectivesforthe

7 procedures to ensure that parents/guardians are consulted and participate in the
planning, design, implementation, and evaluation of the Title I parent/guardian_and family engagement
involvementprogram.

The Superintendent or designee shall involve parents/guardians and familv members in

establishing district expectations and objectives for meaningful parent/guardian and family
encagcement in schools supported by Title I funding, developing strategies that describe

75



how the district will carry out each activity listed in 20 USC 6318, as contained in the
accompanving administrative regulation, and implementing and evaluating such programs,
activities, and procedures. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall conduct
outreach to all parents/guardians and family members. (Education Code 11503; 20 USC

6318)

(cf 6171 - Title I Programs)

The followmu naraﬂranh is for use by districts that receive

more than $500.000 in Title I. Part A fundmo Pursuant to 20 USC 6318, the Governing Board must reserve
at least one percent of the district's Title I funding to carry out parent/guardian and family engagement

invelvement activities, ineluding prometion-of family literacy-and-parenting slkills; provided that one percent of
the allocation received by the district totals more than $5,000. As amended by P.L. 114-95. 20 USC 6318

requires that aAt least 95 90 percent of the reserved funds must be distributed to eligible schools, with priority
siven to "high-need schools' as defined in 20 USC 6631.

When the district's Title I, Part A allocation exceeds the amount specified in 20 USC 6318,
the Board shall reserve at least one percent of the funding to implement parent/guardian
and famllv enoaoement act1v1t1es. The Supermtendent or demgnee—shal—l—eeﬁsu%t—wﬁh

and famllv members of part101pat1ng students n decmons regarding how the district's Title I

funds will be allotted for parent/guardian and family engagement invelvement activities and
shall ensure that priority is given to schools in high poverty areas in accordance with law.
(20 USC 6318, 6631)

(cf. 3100 - Budget)

Note: As amended by PI: 114-95. 20 USC 6318 identi_fies allowable uses of the Title I funds reserved f;
parent/cuardian and family engagement, as provided below. These uses are consistent with the activities
that must be addressed in the district's parent/suardian and family engagement policy. as deseribed in the

‘ accompanying administrative regulation,

Expenditures of such funds shall be consistent with the activities specified in this policy and
shall include at least one of the following: (20 USC 6318)

1. Support for schools and nonprofit organizations in providing professional
development for district and school staff regarding parent/guardian and family
engagement strategies, which may be provided jointly to teachers, principals, other
school leaders, specialized instructional support personnel, paraprofessionals, early
childhood educators, and parents/guardians and family members

76



BP 6020(d)

PARENT INVOLVEMENT (continued)

2. Support for programs that reach parents/guardians and family members at home,
in the community, and at school

3. Dissemination of information on best practices focused on parent/cuardian and
familv engagement, especially best practices for increasing the engagement of
economically disadvantaged parents/guardians and family members

4. Collaboration with communitv-based or other organizations or emplovers with a
record of success in improving and increasing parent and family engagement

5. Any other activities and strategies that the district determines are appropriate and
consistent with this policy

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each school receiving Title T funds develops a
school-level parent/guardian and family engagement invelvement policy in accordance with

20 USC 6318.

Non-Title I Schools

| Note: The following section is for use by districts that do not receive any Title I funds or that have one or more ]
individual schools that do not receive Title I funds. Education Code 11504 mandates the Board to adopt a
policy on parent/guardian involvement, applicable to each school that does not receive Title I funds, that is

consistent with the purposes and goals in Education Code 11502. See the accompanying administrative
regulation for information about these goals and sample strategies for addressing each goal.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement strategies applicable to each school
that does not receive federal Title I funds to encourage the involvement and support of
parents/guardians in the education of their children, including, but not limited to, strategies
describing how the district and schools will address the purposes and goals described in
Education Code 11502. (Education Code 11504)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
11500-11506 Programs to encourage parent involvement
48983 Notices in languages other than English

77



51101 Parent rights and responsibilities
52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

Legal Reference continued: (see next page)

PARENT INVOLVEMENT (continued) BP 6020(e)

Legal Reference: (continued)
EDUCATION CODE (continued)
54444.1-54444.2 Parent advisory councils, services to migrant children
56190-56194 Community advisory committee, special education
64001 Single plan for student achievement
LABOR CODE
230.8 Time off to visit child's school
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
18275 Child care and development programs, parent involvement and education
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
6311 Paren sotice-ofteachar-quali
6312 Local educational agency plan
6314 Schoolwide programs

tate plan

63 6-Schoolimprovement

6318 Parent invelvement and family engagement

6631 Teacher and school leader incentive program, purposes and definitions
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS. TITLE 28

35.104 Definitions, auxiliary aids and services

35.160 Communications

Management Resources:

L20_[) 2, Al 5 5 004

'ALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Title 1 School-Level Parental Involvement Policy
Family Enzagement Framework: A Tool for California School Districts, 2014
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS NON-REGULATORY GUIDANCE
Parental Involvement: Title I Part A, Non-Regulatory Guidance, April 23, 2004
WEB SITES
CSBA: hitp://'www.csba.org
California Department of Education, Family, School, Community Parinerships:
hitp:/'www.cde.ca.gov/Is/pf
California Parent Center: http://parent.sdsu.edu
California State PTA: http://www.capta.org
National Coalition for Parent Involvement in Education: http://www.ncpie.org
National PTA: hitp://www.pla.org

Parent Information and Resource Centers: http.//www.pirc-info.net
Parents as Teachers National Center: http.//www.parentsasteachers.org
U.S. Department of Education. http://www.ed.gov

78



(6/96 8/06) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

79



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation
Instruction AR 6020(a)

PARENT INVOLVEMENT

Note: The following administrative regulation contains parent/guardian and family engagement involvement

strategies that meet legal requirements applicable to districts and schools receiving federal Title I funds and
[ those that do not receive Title I funds. The district should use and adapt the section(s) applicable to its
circumstances. If desired, the district may develop one set of strategies applicable to all schools, provided that
all the provisions required by law for both types of schools are included.

District Strategies for Title I Schools

Note: The following section is for use by districts that receive Title I, Part A, funds. 20 USC 6318, as amended
by the Every Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95), mandates that such districts develop a policy that describes
the means by which the district will address the components specified in items #1-6 below. Under each required
component; below are optional strategies for addressing the component, which should be modified to
reflect the specific strategies jointly developed by the district and the the—distriet—shouldlist—specific
strategies-developed-jointly-with parents/guardians and family members of participating students;-that-deseribe

how-it-will-address-the compenent. In the state's Federal Program Monitoring process, California Department of
Education (CDE) staff will check to ensure that the district has identified such strategies.

To ensure that parents/guardians and family members of students participating in Title I
programs are provided with opportunities to be involved in their children's education, the

Superintendent-or-designee district shall:

| Note: Pursuant to 20 USC 6318, districts must involve parents/suardians and family members in the
development of the Title I local educational agency (LEA) plan described in 20 USC 6312; also see BP
6171 - Title I Programs. In California, all the requirements of the LEA plan are addressed in an
addendum to the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). See BP 0460 - Local Control and
Accountability Plan for further information about the development of the LCAP, including requirements
for consultation with parents/guardians and other stakeholders and for the establishment of a parent
advisory committee and English learner parent advisory committee.

1. Involve parents/guardians ef-participating—students and family members in the joint
development of the-TFitle Tlocal-educational-ageney—J-EA)plan-pursuant-to a_district
plan that meets the requirements of 20 USC 6312 and in the precess-of-schoolreview

development of school support and

improvement plans pursuant to 20 USC 6311 (20 USC 6318)

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

80



AR 6020(b)
PARENT INVOLVEMENT (continued)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a. In accordance with Educatlon Code 52063 eEstabhsh a dlstrlct level paren
advisory committee i : ; h
site—and, as applicable, an EnOIlsh learner parent adv1son committee to
review and comment on the EEA plan in accordance with the review schedule
established by the Governing Board

b. Invite input on the EEA plan from other district committees and school site
councils

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

C. Communicate with parents/guardians through the district newsletter, web site, or
other methods regarding the HEA plan and the opportunity to provide input

d. Provide copies of working drafts of the EEA plan to parents/guardians in an
understandable and uniform format and, to the extent practicable, in a language
the parents/guardians can understand

e. Ensure that there is an opportunity at a public Board meeting for public comment
on the EEA plan prior to the Board's approval of the plan or revisions to the plan

f. Ensure that school-level policies on parent/guardian and family engagement
invelvement-address the role of school site councils and other parents/guardians
as appropriate in the development and review of school plans

2. Provide coordination, technical assistance, and other support necessary to assist and
build the capacity of Title I schools in planning and implementing effective
parent/guardian_and family engagement invelvement activities to improve student
academic achievement and school performance, which may include meaningful
consultation with emplovers, business leaders. and philanthropic organizations or
individuals with expertise in effectively engaging parents/guardians and family
members in education (20 USC 6318)

(¢f. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools)

81



Note: 20 USC 6318 mandates that the district's policy or regulation include items #2a-f below. The district
may expand these items to describe methods the district will use to carry out each activity.

The Superintendent or designee shall: (20 USC 6318)

a. Assist parents/guardians in understanding such topics as the challenging state's
academic content standards and academic achievement standards, state and local
academic assessments, the requirements of Title I, and how to monitor a child's
progress and work with educators to improve the achievement of their children

(cf- 6011 - Academic Standards)
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)
(cf 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

b. Provide parents/guardians with materials and training, such as literacy training
and using technology (including education about the harms of copvright

piracy), as appropriate, to help parents/guardians them work with their children
to improve their chlldrens ach1evement—saeh—&s—%&eraey—tr&&&ng—aﬂd—&s+ﬂg

82



With the assistance of parents/guardians, eEducate teachers, student—services
specialized instructional support personnel, principals and other school
leaders, and other staff, with-the-assistance-of parents/guardians; in the value and
utility of parent/guardian contributions and in how to reach out to, communicate
with, and work with parents/guardians as equal partners, implement and
coordinate parent/guardian programs, and build ties between parents/guardians
and the schools

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf: 4331 - Staff Development)

To the extent feasible and appropriate, coordinate and integrate parent/guardian
involvement programs and activities with other federal, state, and local

pro;,rams, 1ncludmg publlc preschool programs, Head-Start;Reading- sk

and conduct other act1v1t1es such as parent resource centers, that encourage and
support parents/guardians in mere fully participating in their children's education

Ensure that information related to school and parent/guardian programs, meetings,
and other activities is sent to the parents/guardians of participating students in a
format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the parents/guardians can
understand

Provide other such reasonable support for parent/guardian involvement activities
as parents/guardians may request

them.

Note: Although not mandated to be included in the district's policy or regulation, item #2g reflects a legal
requirement in 20 USC 6318(g) to inform parents/guardians about the existence of parent information and
resource centers in the state that work with Title I schools, districts, and parents/guardians. See the management
resources in the accompanying Board policy for resources that can help districts locate the centers closest to

g

Inform parents/guardians and parent organizations of the existence and purpose of
parent information and resource centers in the state that provide training,
information, and support to parents/guardians of participating students

Note: Items #2a-pt below are optional and should be revised to reflect strategies—jointly-developed-by-distriet
staff-and—parents/guardians—of-participating —students

required, by 20 USC 6318.

district practice. Items #a2-h are authorized, but not

83



In addition, the Superintendent or designee may:

a.

Involve parents/guardians in the development of training for teachers, principals,
and other educators to improve the effectiveness of such training

Provide necessary literacy training, using Title I funds if the district has exhausted
all other reasonably available sources of funding for such training

Pay reasonable and necessary expenses associated with parent/guardian
involvement activities, including transportation and child care costs, to enable
parents/guardians to participate in school-related meetings and training sessions

Train parents/guardians to enhance the involvement of other parents/guardians

Arrange school meetings at a variety of times or, when parents/guardians are
unable to attend such conferences, conduct in-home conferences between
parents/guardians and teachers or other educators who work directly with
participating students, in order to maximize parent/guardian involvement and

participation

Adopt and implement model approaches to improving parent/guardian
involvement

Establish a districtwide parent advisory council to provide advice on all matters
related to parent/guardian involvement in Title I programs

Develop appropriate roles for community-based organizations and businesses in
parent/guardian involvement activities

Make referrals to community agencies and organizations that offer literacy
training, parent/guardian education programs, and/or other services that help to
improve the conditions of parents/guardians and families

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)

Provide a master calendar of district activities and district meetings

Provide information about opportunities for parent/guardian and family
engagement involvement through the district newsletter, web site, or other
written or electronic means

84



AR 6020(f)

PARENT INVOLVEMENT (continued)

Engage parent-teacher organizations to actively seek out and involve
parents/guardians through regular communication updates and information
sessions

{cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations)

m.

€0,

o:d.

p-r.

To the extent practicable, provide translation services at school sites and at
meetings involving parents/guardians and family members as needed

Provide training and information to members of district and school site councils
and advisory committees to help them fulfill their functions

Provide ongoing district-level workshops to assist school site staff, and
parents/guardians, and family members in planning and implementing

improvement strategies, and seek their input frem—parents/guardians—in

developing the workshops

Provide training for the principal or designee of each participating school
regarding Title I requirements for parent/guardian and family engagement
invelvement, leadership strategies, and communication skills to assist him/her in

facilitating the planning and implementation of parent—invelvement related
activities

Regularly evaluate the effectiveness of staff development activities related to
parent/guardian and family engagement involvement

Include expectations for parent/guardian outreach and involvement in staff job
descriptions and evaluations

(cf- 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision)
(cf- 4215 - Evaluation/Supervision)
(cf- 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision)

a8.

a:t.

Assign person(s)-in-the-distriet-offiee district personnel to serve as a liaison to

the schools regarding Title I parent/guardian and family engagement

invelvement 1Ssues

Provide information to schools about the indicators and assessment tools that will
be used to monitor progress

85



AR 6020(g)

PARENT INVOLVEMENT (continued)

4: 3.

To the extent feasible and appropriate, cCoordinate and integrate Title I

parent/guardian _and family engagement invelvement strategies with Head—Start;

3 3

parent/guardian and family engagement strategies of other relevant federal, state,
and local programs and ensure consistency with federal, state, and local laws (20

USC 6318)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a. Identify overlapping or similar program requirements

{cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education)

(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups)

fcf. 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property)

fef. 5030 - Student Wellness)

{cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)

icf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)

{cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners)

fcf. 6175 - Migrant Education Programt)

fcf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)

b. Involve district and school site representatives from other programs to assist in
identifying specific population needs

c. Schedule joint meetings with representatives from related programs and share
data and information across programs

d. Develop a cohesive, coordinated plan focused on student needs and shared goals

Conduct, with meaningful involvement of parents/guardians and family members, an

annual evaluation of the content and effectiveness of the parent/guardian and family
engagement invelvement policy in improving the academic quality of the schools served

et — Ll D

by Title I, including identification of: (20 USC 6318)

86



a. Ensure—that—the—evaluation—include—the identification—of-bBarriers to greater
participation in parent/guardian and family engagement invelvement activities,
with particular attention to parents/guardians who are economically
disadvantaged, are disabled, have limited English proficiency, have limited
literacy, or are of any racial or ethnic minority background 20-H5C-6318)

b. The needs of parents/gsuardians and family members, so thev can better assist
with their children's learning and engage with school personnel and teachers

c. Strategies to support successful school and family interactions

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)

Note: Although it is not mandated to be included in the district's policy or regulation, item—#e—below the
following paragraph reflects a legal requirement of Education Code 11503 pertaining to evaluation of the
district's parent/guardian involvement efforts.

B

. The Superintendent or _designee shall notify
parents/guardians of this review and assessment through regular school
communications mechanisms; and shall provide a copy of the assessment to

parents/guardians upon their request. (Education Code 11503)

The Superintendent or designee may:

87



a. Use a variety of methods, such as focus groups, surveys, and workshops, to
evaluate the satisfaction of parents/guardians and staff with the quality and
frequency of district communications

b. Gather and monitor data regarding the number of parents/guardians and family
members participating in district activities and the types of activities in which
they are engaged

c. Recommend to the Board measures to evaluate the impact of the district's
parent/guardian and family engagement involvement efforts on student
achievement

Use the evaluationresults findings of the evaluation conducted pursuant to item #4
above to design evidence-based strategics for more effective parent/guardian and

family involvement and, if necessary, to recommend—changes—in revise the
parent/gunardian and family engagement invelvement policy (20 USC 6318)

Involve parents/guardians in the activities of schools served by Title I, which may
include establishing a parent advisory board comprised of a sufficient number and
representative group of parents/guardians or family members served by the district
to adequately represent the needs of the population served by the district for the
purposes of developing, revising, and reviewing the parent/guardian and family
engagement policy (20 USC 6318)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a. Include information about school activities in district communications to
parents/guardians and family members

b. To the extent practicable, assist schools with translation services or other
accommodations needed to encourage participation of parents/guardians and
family members with-specialneeds

C. Establish processes to encourage parent/guardian input regarding their

expectations and concerns for their children

| Note: Pursuant to 20 USC 6318, the district's parent/guardian and family engagement invelvement policy must |

be incorporated into the district's Title I loeal-educational-ageney LEA plan.

See2RAAR 6171 Tidle [ Precrams
for-lancuage—regardingtheplan's—development: In_California, all the requirements of the LEA plan are
addressed in an addendum to the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). See BP 0460 - Local

Control and Accountability Plan.

88



The district's Board policy and administrative regulation containing parent/guardian and family

ngagement invelvement strategies shall be incorporated into the EEA—plan district's local

e_h_b__—

control and accountability plan in accordance with 20 USC 6312 and shall be distributed to

parents/guardians of students participating in Title I programs. (20 USC 6318)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

School-Level Policies for Title I Schools

Note: The following section is for use by districts that receive federal Title I, Part A funds. 20 USC 6318, as
amended bv P.L. 114-95, mandates that each individual school receiving Title I funds have a written
parent/guardian _and family engagement invelvement policy, developed jointly with and agreed upon by
parents/guardians and family members of participating students, that describes the means for carrying out the
requirements of 20 USC 6318(c) through (f), reflected in items #1-8 below. The following section lists the
required components but does not include specific strategies which should be added by each school. Schools
mav also use a template available on the web site of the California Department of Education, Title I
School-Level Parental Involvement Policy. to develop the school-level policy.

At each school receiving Title I funds, a written policy on parent/guardian and family

engagement involvement shall be developed jointly with and—agreed—upon—by the
parents/guardians and family members of participating students. Such policy shall describe the

means by which the school will: (20 USC 6318)

1.

Convene an annual meeting, at a convenient time, to which all parents/guardians of
participating students shall be invited and encouraged to attend, in order to inform
parents/guardians of their school's participation in Title I and to explain Title I
requirements and the right of parents/guardians to be involved

Offer a flexible number of meetings, such as meetings in the morning or evening, for
which related transportation, child care, and/or home visits may be provided as such
services relate to parent/guardian involvement

| Plans/Site Councils for further information about the development of this plan.

Note: As provided in item #3 below, 20 USC 6318 requires parent/guardian involvement in the development of
the comprehensive plan required by 20 USC 6314 for schoolwide programs. Under state law (Education Code
64001), this plan must be incorporated into the single plan for student achievement covering all categorical
programs in the state's consolidated application; see AR 6171 - Title I Programs and BP/AR 0420 - School

Involve parents/guardians in an organized, ongoing, and timely way in the planning,
review, and improvement of Title I programs, including the planning, review, and
improvement of the school's parent/guardian and family engagement invelvement
policy and, if applicable, the joint development of the plan for schoolwide programs
pursuant to 20 USC 6314

The school may use an existing process for involving parents/guardians in the joint
planning and design of the school's programs provided that the process includes adequate
representation of parents/guardians of participating students.

89



Provide the parents/guardians of participating students all of the following:

Timely information about Title I programs

A description and explanation of the school's curriculum, forms of academic

assessment used to measure student progress, and the-proficieney-levels—students
are-expected-to-meet-the achievement levels of the challenging state academic

standards

(cf 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)
(cf 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention)

If requested by parents/guardians, opportunities for regular meetings to formulate
suggestions and to participate, as appropriate, in decisions related to their
children's education, and, as soon as practicably possible, responses to the
suggestions of parents/guardians

If the schoolwide program plan is not satisfactory to the parents/guardians of
participating students, submit any parent/guardian comments when the school makes the
plan available to the district

Note: 20 USC 6318 requires Title I schools to develop a school-parent compact as provided in item #6 below.
U.S. Department of Education non-regulatory guidance, Parental Involvement: Title . Part A, provides a sample
| template that schools may use in the development of the school-parent compact.

6.

Jointly develop with the parents/guardians of participating students a school-parent
compact that outlines how parents/guardians, the entire school staff, and students will
share responsibility for improved student academic achievement and the means by which
the school and parents/guardians will build a partnership to help students achieve state
standards

This compact shall address:

a.

The school's responsibility to provide high-quality curriculum and instruction in a
supportive and effective learning environment that enables participating students
to achieve the state's stadent challenging academic achievement standards

Ways in which parents/guardlans w111 be respon51ble for supportmg their
children's learning, ’

televiston—viewing: volunteerlng in the classroom,, and partlclpatmg, as
appropriate, in decisions related to their children's education and the positive use

of extracurricular time

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)
(cf 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
(cf 5113 - Absences and Excuses)

90



(cf 6145 - Extracurricular/Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work)

c. The importance of communication between teachers and parents/guardians on an
ongoing basis through, at a minimum:

(D Parent-teacher conferences in elementary schools, at least annually, during
which the compact shall be discussed as it relates to the student's
achievement

(2) Frequent reports to parents/guardians on their children’s progress

3) Reasonable access to staff, opportunities to volunteer and participate in
their child's classroom, and observation of classroom activities

(4) Regular two-way, meaningful communication between family
members and school staff, and, to the extent practicable, in a language
that familv members can understand

7. Build the capacity of the school and parents/guardians for strong parent involvement by
implementing the required activities described in items—#3ah-item #2-in the section
"District Strategies for Title I Schools" above

8. To the extent practicable, provide fall opportunities for the informed participation of
parents/guardians and family members (including parents/guardians and family
members with limited English proficiency, parents/guardians and familv members with
disabilities, and parents/guardians and family members of migrant children), including
providing information and school reports required under 20 USC 6311(h) in a format and
language such parents/guardians can understand

If the school has a parent involvement policy that applies to all parents/guardians, it may amend
that policy to meet the above requirements. (20 USC 6318)

Each school's parent/guardian_and family engagement invelvement policy shall be made
avallable to the local commumty Parents/fruardlans shall be notified of the policy and

: a3 : ng in an understandable and uniform
format and, to the extent practlcable prov1ded in a language the parents/guardians can
understand. (20 USC 6318)

Note: The following paragraph is optional. Education Code 64001 requires that the single plan for student
achievement covering the categorical programs in the state's consolidated application, including Title I
schoolwide programs, be annually reviewed by the school site council and submitted to the Board for approval;
see BP/AR 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils.

Each school receiving Title I funds shall annually evaluate the effectiveness of its
parent/guardian_and family engagement invelvement policy. Such evaluation may be

91



conducted during the process of reviewing the school's single plan for student achievement in
accordance with Education Code 64001.

oal-or-desteneeJointly-with % artieipating erts; The school's
policy shall be periodically updated the—schools—poliey to meet the changing needs of
parents/guardians and the school. (20 USC 6318)

District Strategies for Non-Title I Schools

Note: The following section is for use by districts that do not receive any Title I funds or that have one or more
individual schools that do not receive Title I funds. Education Code 11504 mandates the Board fo adopt a
policy on parent/guardian involvement, applicable to each school that does not receive Title I funds, that is
consistent with the purposes and goals in Education Code 11502 as reflected in items #1-5 below. Subitems
under items #1-5 are optional strategies for carrying out the legal requirement and should be revised to reflect
district practice. |

For each school that does not receive federal Title I funds, the Superintendent or designee shall,
at a minimum:

1. Engage parents/guardians positively in their children's education by helping them
develop skills to use at home that support their children's academic efforts at school and
their children's development as responsible members of society (Education Code 11502,
11504)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a. Provide or make referrals to literacy training and/or parent education programs
designed to improve the skills of parents/guardians and enhance their ability to
support their children's education

b. Provide information, in parent handbooks and through other appropriate means,
regarding academic expectations and resources to assist with the subject matter

c. Provide parents/guardians with information about students' class assignments and
homework assignments

2. Inform parents/guardians that they can directly affect the success of their children's
learning, by providing them with techniques and strategies that they may use to improve
their children's academic success and to assist their children in learning at home
(Education Code 11502, 11504)

92



The Superintendent or designee may:

a.

Provide parents/guardians with information regarding ways to create an effective
study environment for their children at home and to encourage good study habits

Encourage parents/guardians to monitor their children's school attendance,
homework completion, and television viewing

Encourage parents/guardians to volunteer in their child's classroom and to
participate in school advisory committees

Build consistent and effective communication between the home and school so that
parents/guardians may know when and how to assist their children in support of
classroom learning activities (Education Code 11502, 11504)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a.

Ensure that teachers provide frequent reports to parents/guardians on their
children's progress and hold parent-teacher conferences at least once per year with
parents/guardians of elementary school students

Provide opportunities for parents/guardians to observe classroom activities and to
volunteer in their child's classroom

Provide information about parent/guardian and family engagement involvement
opportunities through district, school, and/or class newsletters, the district's web
site, and other written or electronic communications

To the extent practicable, provide notices and information to parents/guardians in
a format and language they can understand

Develop mechanisms to encourage parent/guardian input on district and school
issues

Identify barriers to parent/guardian and family participation in school activities,
including parents/guardians and family members who are economically
disadvantaged, are disabled, have limited English proficiency, have limited
literacy, or are of any racial or ethnic minority background

93



g. Encourage greater parent/guardian participation by adjusting meeting schedules to
accommodate parent/guardian needs and, to the extent practicable, by providing
translation or interpreter services, transportation, and/or child care

4. Train teachers and administrators to communicate effectively with parents/guardians

(Education Code 11502, 11504)

The Superintendent or designee may:

a. Provide staff development to assist staff in strengthening two-way
communications with parents/guardians, including parents/guardians who have
limited English proficiency or limited literacy

b. Invite input from parents/guardians regarding the content of staff development
activities pertaining to home-school communications

5. Integrate parent/guardian and family engagement invelvement programs into school

plans for academic accountability

The Superintendent or designee may:

a.

b.

Include parent/guardian _and family engagement invelvement strategies in
school reform or school improvement initiatives

Involve parents/guardians and family members in school planning processes

(8/06) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

94



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation
Instruction AR 6112(a)

SCHOOL DAY

Note: The following optional administrative regulation specifies minimum and maximum school days for each
grade level as provided by law. The district may revise this regulation to reflect district practice.

Pursuant to Education Code 46114, the minimum school day in grades K-8 may be computed by determining the
average number of minutes over 10 consecutive school days (i.e., the number of minutes of attendance in any 10
consecutive school days, divided by 10). Education Code 46142 authorizes the minimum school day in junior
high and high schools to be computed by averaging the number of minutes over two consecutive school days.
The district will be in compliance if the average is at least the minimum day required by law, even if the number
of minutes in any one school day is less than the minimum required school day specified below. However,
Education Code 46114 and 46142 provide that no single school day may be less than 60 minutes for
kindergarten, 170 minutes for grades 1-3, or 180 minutes for grades 4-12.

Education Code 46201 and 46207 require districts that have reached their local control funding formula
(LCFF) funding target, as well as districts that received longer day or longer vear funding prior to the
implementation of the LCFF. to offer at least the following instructional minutes per school vear: 36.000
minutes for kindergarten. 50.400 for crades 1-3, 54.000 for grades 4-8, and 64.800 for grades 9-12,
Pursuant to Education Code 46201 and 46207. if this requirement is not met for any grade level. a portion
of the district's LCFF allocation will be withheld.

Kindergarten/Transitional Kindergarten

| Note; The following section is for use by districts that maintain kindergarten and transitional

| kindergarten (TK) classes. Education Code 37202, as amended by AB 99 (Ch. 15. Statutes of 2017).

| permits districts to maintain kindersarten or TK classes for different lengths of time during the school
dav. either at the same or different school sites. Districts offering kindergarten or TK classes for different
lengths of time are still required to meet the minimum and maximum length of school day described
below.

Kindergarten and transitional kindergarten (TK) classes in district schools may be
maintained for different lengths of time, either at the same or different school sites.
(Education Code 37202)

Note: TFhe i ection-i i intain—lin asses: Education Code 46117
establishes a mmlmum school day of three hours (180 mmutes) for kmdergarten students as—previdedbelow.
However, pursuant to Education Code 46119, if a district has less—than a-tetal-of fewer than 40 kindergarten
students, the Governing Board may apply to the Superintendent of Public Instruction to maintain two
kindergarten classes of 150 minutes each, including recesses, taught on the same day by the same teacher.

Except as otherwise provided permitted by law, the average school day established for
kindergarten and TK students shall be at least three hours, including recesses but excluding

95



noon intermissions, but no longer than four hours, excluding recesses. (Education Code 46111,
46114, 46115, 46117)

AR 6112(b)

SCHOOL DAY (continued)

Note: The following paragraph is optional. Although Education Code 46111 provides that recess shall be
excluded from determining the maximum school day, it is the interpretation of the California Department of
Education (CDE) that recess time may be counted as instructional minutes, at the district's discretion, if teacher
supervision occurs.

Recess may be counted as instructional minutes for purposes of determining the maximum
school day if it occurs under teacher supervision-eeeurs.

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that maintain multitrack year-round schools
pursuant to Education Code 37670).

In any multitrack year-round school operating pursuant to Education Code 37670¢a), the
kindergarten school day may be up to 265 minutes, excluding recesses. (Education Code 46111)

(cf 6117 - Year-Round Schedules)

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that have established an early primary program
pursuant to Education Code 8970-8974 in order to provide an integrated, experiential, and developmentally
appropriate educational program with specified components for students in prekindergarten through grade 3.
Education Code 8973 provides that the kindergarten school day in such programs may exceed four hours under
the conditions described below, although districts do not receive additional apportionment funds.

In any district school operating an early primary program pursuant to Education Code 8970-
8974, the kindergarten school day may exceed four hours, excluding recess, if both of the
following conditions are met: (Education Code 8973)

1. The Governing Board has declared that the extended-day kindergarten program does not
exceed the length of the primary school day.

2. The extended-day kindergarten program includes ample opportunity for both active and
quiet activities within an integrated, experiential, and developmentally appropriate
educational program.

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48003, districts are required to provide an annual report to the CDE |
resarding the tvpe of kindergarten program offered by the district, including part day, full dav, or both,
bv completing the School Information Form 2017 located on the CDE web site. The form also includes the
tvpe(s) of TK program offered.

96



The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the California Department of
Education as to whether the district's kindergarten and TK procrams are offered full day,
part dav, or both. (Education Code 48003)

AR 6112(c)

SCHOOL DAY (continued)

Grades 1-8

Note: The following section is for use by districts that maintain any of grades 1-8 and should be modified to
reflect the grade levels offered by the district.

Except as otherwise provided by law, the school day for elementary and middle school students
shall be:

1. At least 230 minutes for students in grades 1-3, unless the Board has prescribed a shorter
school day because of lack of school facilities requiring double sessions, in which case

the minimum school day shall be 200 minutes: (Education Code 46112;-46142)

2. At least 240 minutes for students in grades 4-8 (Education Code 46113, 46142)

In determining the number of minutes for purposes of compliance with the minimum school day
for students in grades 1-8, both noon intermissions and recesses shall be excluded. (Education

Code 46115)

97



)

AR 6112
RO IS

o8



AR 6112(e)

SCHOOL DAY (continued)

99



Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

100

(11/06 4/13) 10/17



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Instruction BP 6153(a)

SCHOOL-SPONSORED TRIPS .

Note: The following optional policy should be revised to reflect district practice. For language regarding
transportation for field trips, see AR 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips.

The Governing Board recognizes that sehoel-spensored field trips are-an-impertant-component
of a-student's-development-and supplement and enrich the classroom learning experience, lead to

increased student achievement, and foster student engagement. The Board encourages field
trips to reinforce and increase learning opportunities and to enhance district programs.

{cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

| Note: The following paragraph is consistent with the goals of field trips and excursions specified in Education
Code 35330. Districts that wish to prohibit certain types of trips (e.g., trips to amusement parks, boating)
because of educational or safety concerns may modify the following paragraph accordingly.

Scheol-spensered Field trips may shall be conducted in connection with the district's course of
study or school-related social, educational, cultural, athletic, school band-aetivities, or other
extracurricular or cocurricular activities. A field trip to a foreign country may be permitted to
familiarize students with the language, history, geography, natural science, and other studies
relative to the district's course of study. (Education Code 35330)

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)
(cf: 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

| Note: The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. ]

Requests for seheel-spensored field trips involving out-of-state, out-of-country, or overnight
travel shall be submitted to the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee shall
review the request and make a recommendation to the Board as to whether the request should be
approved by the Board. All other seheeol-sponsered field trips shall be approved in advance by
the principal.

(cf 3312.2 - Educational Travel Program Contracts)

101



BP 6153(b)

SCHOOL-SPONSORED TRIPS (continued)

The principal shall establish a process for approving a staff member's request to conduct a
sehool-sponsered field trip. When planning trips, staff shall consider student safety, objectives
of instruction, the most effective use of instructional time, the distance from school, district and
student expense, and transportation and supervision requirements. Principals may exclude from
the trip any student whose presence on the trip would pose a safety or disciplinary risk.

(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance)

(cf- 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips)
(cf 5142 - Safety)

(cf. 5143 - Insurance)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

(cf 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

No field trip shall be authorized if any student would be excluded from participation because of a
lack of sufficient funds. The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate with community
groups to supply funds for students in need. (Education Code 35330)

(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations)
(cf 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students)
(cf 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools)

Note: Education Code 35330. as amended by AB 341 (Ch. 40. Statutes of 2017). eliminates the prohibition
acainst the use of district funds to pav for the expenses of students participating in field trips or
excursions to another state. to the District of Columbia. or to a foreign country. Pursuant to Education
Code 35330. unlike field trips within the state, no transportation allowances will be made by the
| Superintendent of Public Instruction for out-of-state field trips.

The Board may approve the use of dBistrict funds shall-net-be—used—te—pay for student
expenses for in-state, out-of-state, or out-of-country field trips or excursions when permitted by

law. Hewever; In_addition, expenses of instructors, chaperones, and other personnel
participating in such trips, as well as incidental expenses for the use of district equipment during
the trip, may be paid from district funds. (Education Code 35330)

Legal Reference: (see next page)

102



BP 6153(c)

SCHOOL-SPONSORED TRIPS (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
8760 Authorization of outdoor science and conservation programs
32040-32044 First aid equipment: field trips
35330 Excursions and field trips
35331 Provision for medical or hospital service for pupils (on field trips)
35332 Transportation by chartered airline
35350 Transportation of students
44808 Liability when pupils not on school property
48908 Duties of pupils, authority of teachers
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE

17540-Travel promoters
17550-17550.9 Sellers of travel
17552-17556.5 Educational travel organizations

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
American Red Cross: http://www.redcross.org
California Association of Directors of Activities: http://www.cadal.org
U.S. Department of Homeland Security: http://www.dhs.gov

(3/91 7/06) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

103



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Instruction BP 6170.1(a)

TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN

Note: The following policy is for use by districts that maintain kindergarten and may be revised to reflect
district practice. Education Code 48000 provides that children are eligible for kindergarten enrollment if they
have their fifth birthday on or before September 1 in that school year; see AR 5111 - Admission. Pursuant to
Education Code 48000, any child whose birthday is between September 2 and December 2 must be offered a
transitional kindergarten (TK) program.

Education Code 48000 defines TK as the first year of a two-year kindergarten program that uses a modified
kindergarten curriculum that is age and developmentally appropriate. Many of the requirements applicable to
kindergarten (e.g., class size, minimum school day, facilities) are also applicable to TK. The district will receive
funding based on average daily attendance (ADA) for students in a TK program that meets the requirements
specified in Education Code 48000.

For guidance on implementing TK programs, see the Transitional Kindercarten Implementation Guide: A
Resource for California Public School District Administrators and Teachers, published by the California
Department of Education (CDE).

The Governing Board desires to offer a high-quality transitional kindergarten (TK) program for
cligible children who do not yet meet the minimum age criterion for kindergarten. The TK
program shall assist Fk—children students in developing the academic, social, and emotional
skills they need to succeed in kindergarten and beyond.

The district's TK program shall be the first year of a two-year kindergarten program. (Education
Code 48000)

The Board encourages ongoing collaboration among district preschool staff, other preschool
providers, elementary teachers, administrators, and parents/guardians in pregram—the
development, implementation, and evaluation of the district's TK program.

(cf 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf- 6020 - Parent Involvement)

Eligibility

oY N i ation; i BeEv S e 0NeIRp —aw—Thus;parents/e ans-are-potreqy
enroll-childrenin Tl or kindercarten-but- i they-de-soraresubjectiothe-age eriteriaspecified-below

The district's TK program shall admit children whose fifth birthday is from September 2 through
December 2. (Education Code 48000)

104



Note: The CDE's "Transitional Kindergarten FAQs" clarify that children are required to have documentation of
required immunizations or a valid exemption prior to admission to TK. For information about required
immunizations and exemptions, see BP/AR 5141.31 - Immunizations.

Parents/guardians of eligible children shall be notified of the availability of the TK program and
the age, residency, immunization, and any other enrollment requirements. Enrollment in the TK
program shall be voluntary.

(cf 5111 - Admission)

(cf- $111.1 - District Residency)

(¢f 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations)

(cf 5141.31 - Immunizations)

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry)

Note: The following paragraph is optional, If the district chooses to allow kindergarten-eligible children to
enroll in the TK program, CDE recommends that the district establish criteria to determine selection
requirements. The parent/guardian of a kindergarten-eligible child who is enrolled in TK must, at the end of the
year, sign a Kindergarten Continuance Form verifying that he/she agrees to have the child continue in
kindergarten the following year; see section "Continuation in Kindergarten" below.

Upon request of a child's parents/guardians, the district may, on a case-by-case basis after the
Superintendent or designee determines that it is in the child's best interest, admit into the
district's TK program a child whose fifth birthday is on or before September 1 and who is
therefore eligible for kindergarten.

| Note: The following paragraph is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 48000, as-amended-by-AB-104-(Ch—13;
Statutes—o£2015); the district may, at its discretion, determine whether to ailow admittance of children whose

fifth birthday is after December 2. Such students may be admitted at any time during the school year, including
at the beginning of the year. Education Code 48000 provides that districts will not receive ADA
apportionment for a child whose birthday is after December 2 until the child reaches his/her fifth

birthday.

The-distriet-may;—aAt any time during the school year, the district may admit into the TK
program a child whose fifth birthday is after December 2 of that same school year, provided that
the Superintendent or designee recommends that enrollment in a TK program is in the child's
best interest and the child's parents/guardians approve. Prior to such enrollment, the child's
parents/guardians shall be provided information regarding the advantages and disadvantages and
any other explanatory information about the effect of early admittance. (Education Code 48000)

Curriculum and Instruction

The district's TK program shall be based on a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age and
developmentally appropriate. (Education Code 48000)

(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation)
(cf 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)

105



Note: As-amended-by-SB-858-(Ch--32; Statutes-o£ 2614); Education Code 48000 states the Legislature's intent
that the TK curriculum be aligned to the California Preschool Learning Foundations developed by the CDE.
These standards address essential skills in the subject areas listed below. The standards and companion preschool
curriculum frameworks are available on CDE's web site.

The program shall be aligned with the preschool learning foundations and preschool curriculum
frameworks developed by the California Department of Education. It shall be designed to
facilitate students' development in essential skills related to language and literacy, mathematics,
physical development, health, visual and performing arts, science, history-social science, English
language development, and social-emotional development.

(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)
(cf 6011 - Academic Standards)
(cf 6174 - Education for English Learners)

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 37202, as
amended by AB 99 (Ch. 15, Statutes of 2017), permits districts to maintain TK and kindergarten classes
for different lensths of time during the school day, either at the same or a different school site. Districts
offering TK classes for dlfferent lengths of time are still required to meet the mmlmum and max1mum

Educatlon Code 461 11 and 461 17, at the kmdergarten and TK level the minimum school day is three hours (180
minutes), including recess but excluding noon intermission, and the maximum school day is four hours (240

minutes), excluding recess, unless the district has adopted an extended-day kindergarten pursuant to Education
Code 8973. However, pursuant to Education Code 46119, if the district has fewer than 40 kindergarten students,
the Governing Board it may apply to the Superintendent of Public Instruction to maintain two kindergarten
classes of 150 minutes each, including recesses, taught on the same day by the same teacher. Also see AR 6112
- School Day.

Pursuant to Education Code 48003, districts are required to provide an annual report to the CDE
resarding the type of kindergarten program offered by the district, including part day. full day. or both.
The School Information Form 2017. located on the CDE web site, requires a report on the tvpe of TK
program offered.

The Board shall fix establish the length(s) of the school day in the district's TK program.;-which
TK programs may be maintained for different lengths of time either at the same or

different school sites, as long as the school day is shall-be at least three hours but no more than

four hours. The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the California
Department of Education as to whether the district's TK programs are offered full day,

part day. or both. (Education Code 37202, 46111, 46117, 48003)

(cf. 6111 - School Calendar)
(cf 6112 - School Day)

BP 6170.1(d)

106



TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN (continued)

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. According to the CDE's i
"Transitional Kindergarten FAQs," it is the intent of the law to provide separate and unique experiences for TK
and kindergarten students. However, districts have flexibility to determine how best to meet the curricular needs
of each child and whether TK and kindergarten students may be enrolled in the same classrooms.

TK students may be placed in the same classrooms as kindergarten students when necessary,
provided that the instructional program is differentiated to meet student needs.

Staffing

Note: To be qualified to teach a TK class, the teacher must possess an appropriate multiple subjects or early
childhood education credential issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) authorizing

instruction in TK. As—amended by SB-876-(Ch—687Statutes—o£2044); Education Code 48000 establishes

additional requirements for credentialed teachers who are first assigned to a TK class after July 1, 2015, as
provided below.

TK assignments are subject to assignment monitoring and reporting by the County Superintendent of Schools in
accordance with Education Code 44258.9.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers assigned to teach in TK classes possess
a teaching credential or permit from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) that
authorizes such instruction.

(cf 4112.2 - Certification)

A credentialed teacher who is first assigned to a TK class after July 1, 2015, shall, by August 1,
2020, have at least 24 units in early childhood education and/or child development, comparable
experience in a preschool setting, and/or a child development teacher permit issued by the CTC.
(Education Code 48000)

The Superintendent or designee may provide professional development as needed to ensure that
TK teachers are knowledgeable about the standards and effective instructional methods for
teaching young children.

(cf 4131 - Staff Development)

Continuation to Kindergarten

| Note: The following section is consistent with guidance in the CDE's "Transitional Kindergarten FAQs." I
Students who complete the TK program shall be eligible to continue in kindergarten the

following school year. Parents/guardians of such students shall not be required to submit a
signed Kindergarten Continuance Form for kindergarten attendance.

107



BP 6170.1(e)

TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN (continued)

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that allow kindergarten-eligible children to enroll
| in TK; see "Eligibility" section above. When such students are subsequently enrolled in kindergarten, the district
is required to obtain a signed Kindergarten Continuance Form in order to receive kindergarten ADA for those
children since they would otherwise be age-eligible for first grade. CDE recommends that approval for a student |
to continue in kindergarten not be sought until near the end of the year of TK, since permission obtained
unreasonably far in advance could be found invalid.

However, whenever children who would otherwise be age-eligible for kindergarten are enrolled
in TK, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain a Kindergarten Continuance Form signed by
the parent/guardian near the end of the TK year consenting to the child's enrollment in
kindergarten the following year.

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 46300, the district may not include for ADA purposes the attendance of any
student for more than two years in a combination of TK and kindergarten.

A student shall not attend more than two years in a combination of TK and kindergarten.
(Education Code 46300)

(cf. 5123 - Promotionw/Acceleration/Retention)

Assessment

Note: The following section may be revised to reflect district practice. One assessment resource for TK students
is the CDE's Desired Results Developmental Profile, which is designed to assess the developmental progression
of all children from early infancy to kindergarten entry.

The Superintendent or designee may develop or identify appropriate formal and/or informal
assessments of TK students' development and progress. He/she shall monitor and regularly report
to the Board regarding program implementation and the progress of students in meeting rclated
academic standards.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(¢f. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
8973 Extended-day kindergarten
37202 School calendar; equivalency of instructional minutes
44258.9 Assignment monitoring by county superintendent of schools
46111 Kindergarten, hours of attendance
46114-46119 Minimum school day, kindergarten

108



46300 Computation of ADA, inclusion of kindergarten and tramsitional kindergarten
48000 Age of admission, kindergarten and transitional kindergarten

48002 Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade
48003 Kindergarten annual report

48200 Compulsory education, starting at age Six

Managemeni Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
What Boards of Education Can Do About Kindergarten Readiness, Governance Brief, May 2016
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Transitional Kindervarten FAQs
Desired Results Developmental Profile, 2015
Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Guide: A Resource for California Public School District
Administrators and Teachers, 2013
California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 1, 2010
California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 1, 2008
WEB SITES
CSBA: hitp.//www.csba.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov
California Kindergarten Association: http://www.ckanet.org
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: hitp.//www.cic.ca.gov
Transitional Kindergarten California.: http://mww.tkcalifornia.org

(4/15 10/15) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

109



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Instruction BP 6173.2(a)

EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES

eptionaland may be revised to reflect district practice. |

The Governing Board recognizes the-challenges—to—the—academie—suceess—of that children of

military families face challenges to their academic success caused by the frequent moves or
deployments of their parents/guardians in fulfillment of military service. In-accordance-with-laws;
tThe district shall provide such students with academic resources, services, and opportunities for
extracurricular and enrichment activities that are available to all district students.

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

(cf 6011 - Academic Standards)

(cf 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

(cf 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

o 2| d o . h
b:

emme—eente&t—ei;assessmeﬂt—Pursuant to Educatlon Code 49700 49704 the Interstate Comnact on
Educational Opportunity for Military Children is applicable to California school districts. Education
Code 49700-49701 establish uniform means of assisting children of military families, as defined in the
accompanvine administrative regulation, by reducing or eliminating the barriers to their educational
success caused by the frequent moves and deployments of their parents/guardians. Among other things,
Education Code 49701 requires that districts be flexible in applving certain local rules to such students in
order to facilitate their enrollment. placement, advancement, eligibility for extracurricular activities. and
on-time graduation,

d-xstﬂet—pekc—y— The Supermtendent or des1rrnee may waive district nollc1es or rules when

necessary to facilitate the enrollment, placement, advancement, eligibility for
extracurricular activities, or on-time graduation of children of military families, in

110



accordance with the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children
as ratified in Education Code 49700-49704.

(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)
(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit)

| Note: The following opt'ional paragraph reflects a recommendation in the California Department of
Education's (CDE) Final Report to the Legislature on the Interstate Compact on Educational
Opportunity for Military Children.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide information and/or training to
administrators. other appropriate district staff. and military families regarding the
provisions of the Interstate Compact and the educational rights of children of military
families.

fcf. 4131 - Staff Development)
fef. 4231 - Staff Development)
fef. 4331 - Staff Development)
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)

| Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Each b_r;mch of the -

military appoints school liaison officers or comparable positions to serve as the primarv point of contact
for school-related matters. Their duties include coordinating with local school systems and assisting
military families with school issues.

L

The Superintendent or designee shall wesk collaborate with parents/guardians, and—shall
collaberate—with school liaison officers from military installations, and/or local;—state—and
other agencies within and outside the state to facilitate the transition of children of military
families into and out of the district.

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

Note: The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to 20 USC 6311. as
amended bv the Every Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95). states and districts are required to issue an
annual report card which must include state achievement results for students who have
parents/guardians who are members of the Armed Forces on active duty or full-time National Guard
duty. The CDE has updated the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System to indicate such
students. These students will be assicned a national identification number that will facilitate monitoring of
their academic prosress as they move across military bases and from state to state.

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly annually report to the Board and the public on
the educational outcomes of children of military familics. enreled—in—distriet—schools, Such

reports may include, including; but are not limited to, school attendance, student achievement

test results, promotion and retention rates by grade levels,—participation—in—extracurricular

aetivities; and graduation rates.

111



(cf- 0500 - Accountability)
BP 6173.2(c)

EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES (continued)

(cf 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention)
(cf 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)

Legal Reference.
EDUCATION CODE
35160.5 District policy rules and regulations, requirements,; matters subject to regulation
35179 Interscholastic athletics; associations or consortia
35181 Students’ responsibilities
35351 Assignment of students to particular schools
46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance agreements
48050-48054 Nonresidents
48200-48208 Persons included (compulsory education law)
48300-48316 Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program
49700-49704 Education of children of military families
512253 Requirements for graduation
51240-51246 Exemptions from requirements
51250-51251 School-age military dependents

66204 Certification of high school courses as meeting university admissions criteria
UNITED STATES CODE TITLE 10

101 Definitions

1209 Transfer to inactive status list instead of separation

1211 Members on temporary disability retived list: return fo active duty; promotion
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

6311 State plan

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act

Management Resources.
CALIFORNIA CHILD WELFARE COUNCIL
Partial Credit Model Policy and Practice Reconumendations
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS TASK FORCE-REPORT TO-THE

Final Report to the Levislature on the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military
Children, April 2014

WEB SITES

CSBA: hittp.//'www.csba.org

California _Child _Welfare Council: hittp://www.chhs.ca.gov/Paves/CAChild WelfareCouncil. aspx
California Department of Education, Educational Options Office: http://www.cde.ca. gov/ls/pfime
Military Interstate Children's Compact Commission: http://www.mic3.net

112



(11/09) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

113



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation
Instruction AR 6173.2(a)

EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES

Note: The following administrative regulation is optional. Pursuant to Education Code 49701, as-added:by
: ; - districts are required to be flexible in applying their local gﬁL@S" to

children of military families in order to facilitate their enrollment, placement, advancement, elig’[@ﬂi'ty for

extracurricular activities, and on-time graduation. Y

-
In addition, Education Code 51251 authorizes the Governing Board to establish a cogrge)dcjredit transfer
policy and to provide early entry transfer, pretranscript evaluation, student suppo‘):’rc,- §efvices, and other
similar assistance to any school-aged child of a military service member who is on S,Ctive duty, or within one
year of his/her discharge, or when the child's transfer to a new school is a &irgza result of the military
transfer or discharge of his/her parent/guardian. S

-

Definitions Q}o

Children of military families are school-aged children mj@ig household of: (Education Code

49701) C ;{vy
1. Members who are in full-time duty {sgatu)s in the active uniformed service of the
United States, including any membgfof the National Guard and Reserve on active

duty order pursuant to 10 USC é;,og& 1211

ANY . . .

2. Members or veterans oi he uniformed services who are severely injured and
medically discharged of retired, for one year after their medical discharge or
retirement A

)
3. Members of the‘*finiformed services who have died while on active duty or as a result

of injuries sur_stgined on active duty, for one year after their death
Enrollment , J.\ff-,.J
A O ! . -
The Supe igteﬁ)dent or designee shall facilitate the enrollment of children of military families
and ens(rg that they are not placed at a disadvantage due to difficulty in the transfer of their
re ;orgﬁ “from previous school districts and/or variations in entrance or age requirements.
(Education Code 49701)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48204.3. as amended by SB 455 (Ch. 239, Statutes of 2017), a_i
student will be deemed to meet district residency requirements if his/her parent/cuardian is
transferred or is pendino transfer to a military installation. as defined. within the state. See AR 5111.1

- District Residency.

A child of a military family shall be deemed to meet district residency requirements if
his/her parent/gsuardian, while on active military duty pursuant to an official military

114



AR 6173.2(b)
EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES (continued)

order, is transferred or is pending transfer to a military installation within the state.
The Superintendent or designee shall accept electronic submission of such a student's
application for enrollment, including enrollment in a specific school or program within
the district, and for course registration. (Education Code 48204.3) Qv

(cf- 5111.1 - District Residency) ‘\

When a child of a military family is transferring into the district, the Sy éﬁintendent or
designee may enroll the child based on the child's placement in the prev1ou§ﬁ%strlct pending
receipt of the child's records. Upon enrollment, the Superintendenf{ dr designee shall
immediately request the student's records from the student's far@mous district.  The
Superintendent or designee shall allow the student 30 days fro ’ﬂfe date of enrollment to
obtain all required immunizations. (Education Code 49701) Q )

(cf- 5111 - Admission) ' ‘S
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) OO
(cf 5141- Health Care and Emergencies) \Q’

(cf. 5141.31- Immunizations) C-O

| Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48301-48307. asamended bv AB 99 (Ch. 15, Statutes of 2017), as
amended by-AB-306-(Ch-771-Statutes-of 2045)grdjStrict must not deny a student whose parent/guardian is
on active military duty from transferring out, 6f the district to a—"seheol-district-of choice any other
district. In addition, Education Code 46‘600’ as amended by AB 2659 (Ch. 186. Statutes of 2016).
provides that districts must not prohibit the transfer of such a student out of the district to any other
district that approves the transfer~régirdless of whether or not an interdistrict transfer asreement
‘ exists or a permit is issued. Also see BP 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance.

A child of an active m1y{aﬁ}3 duty parent/guard1an shall not be prohibited from transferrmg
out of the district

pﬁpmam—te—Edueaﬁga—Geée—%%M%—l-é, if the e%hef school dlstrlct of proposed
enrollment approvés the application for transfer. (Education Code 46600, 4836+ 48307)
LY «v

(cf 5117 - Inter’ﬂzsfrzctAttendance)

,»{ v
When & c\hlld of a military family is transferring out of the district, the Superintendent or
de&ghég shall provide the student's parents/guardians with a complete set of the student's
rec,ofds or, if the official student record cannot be released, an unofficial or "hand-carried"
record. Upon request from the new district, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a
copy of the student's record to the new district within 10 days. (Education Code 49701)

Placement and-Attendance

Note: The following optional par_agraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to -
Education Code 51251, the district may provide pretranscript evaluations, as described below, in
| order to address the needs of children of military families.

115



AR 6173.2(c)
EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES (continued)

Whenever a student's parent/guardian is serving on active duty or has been discharged
from militarv service within the last vear and the student transfers to a new school as
the direct result of the military transfer or discharge, the Superintendent or designee
may, prior to the receipt of official transcript(s) or the arrival of the student, review:the
student's coursework to date, including anv unofficial transcript(s), to determine the
appropriate placement of the student in classes. The evaluation shall alsoMsinclude
communication with school counselors and teachers at the former Cschool by
videoconferencing. email, and/or telephone calls. (Education Code 51251/1.‘?»)

The Superintendent or designee shall initially honor the placement of a }Y child of a military
family in educational courses and programs based on the clf_ﬂ 3 enrollment and/or
assessment in his/her previous school. The Superintendent or dgsignee may, to the extent
permitted by Board policy, waive course or program prereq(isites, preconditions, and/or
application deadlines when making decisions regarding ,%lvﬁ’g’ement of children of military

>, athletic, and social activities.

families and their eligibility for extracurricular academ}

(Education Code 49701) RS
o

(cf 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) Comy:

(cf 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) Qe

(cf 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) et

(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) A.:/Ky
(cf- 6174 - Education for English Learners) ¢, Q’

AAY
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 4970 1jthe district is required to provide a child of a military family who
has been identified as a student with' ,.cfisability eligible for services under the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act (20 USC 1400-1482) or Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act (29 USC 794) with
services based on his/her curr'ér{fjin ividualized education program or Section 504 plan, as appropriate. See
BP/AR 6159 - Individualiie‘q Education Program and BP/AR 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under
Section 504. 'S
- ;‘J

When a child of a military family transferring into the district has been identified as an
individual witl1.4 disability pursuant to 20 USC 1400-1482, the Superintendent or designee
shall provide gomparable services to the student based on his/her current individualized
educatioh ﬁrogram. In addition, when the child of a military family transferring into the
distriefis” eligible for services under Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act, the
Stuiperintendent or designee shall make reasonable accommodations and modifications to
address the needs of the student subject to the student's existing Section 504 plan. The district
may authorize subsequent evaluations of the student to ensure appropriate placement.
(Education Code 49701)

(cf 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

116



AR 6173.2(d)

EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES (continued)

)_' e
{.»\ {ZJJ

.....
A

Noter—Adthough—tiducation ('(;fle—;éliaén’,—rwﬁw s—districts—to—award-partial-credits—to—children—of i

bt ]

Absences

' Note: The California Department of Education's (CDE) Final _Renort to _the Legislature on the ‘
Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children, available on its web site, ‘

| contains a sample letter that may be provided to parents/guardians to report deployment-related
absences.

117



AR 6173.2(c)

EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES (continued)

When a student's parent/guardian is an active duty member and is called to duty for, is on
leave from, or is immediately returned from deployment to a combat zone or to combat
support posting, the Superintendent or designee may grant additional excused absences to the

student to visit with his/her parent/guardian. (Education Code 49701) (:)&/
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) . q-;\ﬁ

N
e’
G{raﬂuatlon Requirements

Note: The following section is for use by districts maintaining high schools. Education Code 51225.1,
as amended by AB 365 (Ch. 739. Statutes of 2017). exempts children of military families from district-
established sraduation requirements, under certain conditions. when they transfer after completing
two vears of high school. Also see BP 6146.1 - High School Graduation Regquirements.

118



e\a .'--

mmmmHmmthmhawﬁmmmmmm

O
Mﬁmwh%l%ﬁ%hﬂ%ﬂ%mm%mf
Mafmm%mmwmmmmhwm s-of

119



AR 6173.2(g)

EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES (continued)

\ereemen e stadentorwith-the-narenthaardisn G e stad
- ) '.. a8 ’ [ . '.'l v 13‘ -
R 3-yed of -age—perm ae dent—to—std n—sehoolfor— —yread—a
I he-distriet! i . . &};}
>
Notification and Complaints 0‘0

Note: Education Code 51225.1 and 51225.2. as amended bv-AB 365 (Ch. 739. Statutes of 2017).
provide that complaints of noncompliance with specified requirements related to the educational
richts of children of military families may be filed in{accordance with the uniform complaint
procedures specified in 5 CCR 4600-4687. As with~othér complaints covered under the uniform
complaint procedures. a complainant may appeal the district's decision to the CDE and. if the district
or CDE finds anv merit in the complaint, the diSt‘ﬁizt must provide a remedy to the affected student.
See BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Proced'l'i'_'ne’s'.

cOY
Information regardine the educéfti’ﬁ%zil richts of children of military families, as
specified in Education Code 51225.1 and 51225.2. shall be included in the annual
uniform complaint procedures.notification distributed to students, parents/guardians,
emplovees, and other interested parties pursuant to 5 CCR 4622. (Education Code
51225.1, 51225.2) '/\‘v '

Any complaint alm{;;il;q that the district has not complied with requirements regarding
the education of children of military families, as specified in Education Code 51225.1 or
51225.2, maj"r{‘b\é’ filed in accordance with the district's procedures in AR 1312.3 -
Uniform Complaint Procedures.

PR
(cf. 13153 < Uniform Complaint Procedures)

7

(11/09 3/16) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

120



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Apex Physical Education - CORE P.E. Course # 2550 (First Reading)

REQUESTED ACTION: Declare Intent to Adopt

Action X Discussion/Information

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the board declare intent to adopt the PE offerings for Crossroads
Alternative Education Center for targeted high school students.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Some high school students focus on Ag classes or music classes, and are unable to complete
required PE classes due to additional electives. Those students have traditionally taken those PE
courses during summer school.

The Apex Physical Education course combines the best of online instruction with actual student
participation in weekly cardiovascular, aerobic, and muscle toning activities, related to the CORE
P.E. program approved for LBUSD.

Students will be required to report to their teacher weekly to review progress in the assigned
course and review their activity logs. The online courses are available 7 days per week from
APEX Leaming. Students will earn five credits of P.E. per quarter.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

Ensuring that all students graduate from high school having completed a clear pathway of A-G
requirements and are ready to enter a four-year university is consistent with the Los Banos
Unified School District Board Goals.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

nonc

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

Teachers would be paid at the hourly rate after school hours of $44.18. Each student will be
assigned a 20 minute appointment per week. This would then negate the need for students to
take this class in summer school.

———————————__—_—-—__—-——_
ORIGINATOR: Paul J. Enos, Assistant Superintendent, Secondary Education
Board Date: December 14, 2017

121



LOS BANOS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
November 16, 2017

Mr. Parreira called the meeting to order at 6:15 P.M.

PRESENT: Mr. Areias, Ms. Benton, Ms. Goin, Mr. Martinez, Mr. Munoz, Mr.
Parreira, Ms. Smith

A closed session was held at 6:30 P.M. for:

Student Discipline: Cases #6185995784, #5518917, #1136976873, #3174324647,
#9195515741, #6191908064, #8178349228 (Action)

Public Employee: Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment (Section 54957)
(Action)

The audience was led in the Pledge of Allegiance by LBTA President, Jason Walsh.

On a motion by Member Areias, seconded by Member Benton, Trustees approved
the agenda as submitted. Ayes: Mr. Areias; Benton, Goin, Martinez, Munoz,
Parreira, Smith; Noes: 0; Absent: 0. Motion carried.

No one came forward.

LBHS Student, Elena Gutierrez Ramirez, LBHS teacher Jon Betschart, LBJH
Student, Ignacio Gutierrez Ramirez and LBJH teacher Jason Walsh were recognized
for recent student accomplishments. Retirees, Martie Lloyd, Christina Torres,
Randall W. Ware, Virginia Iudice, and Maria T. Rojas were recognized for their
years of service with the LBUSD. New Director of Fiscal Services, Amer Igbal was
introduced and welcomed to the District.

Pacheco High School Student Representative, Marielle Gimeno, reported on the
many activities at Los Banos and Pacheco High Schools.

No Report
No Report

Dr. Marshall reported that a board member asked for information regarding
lowering the cost of summer school. He said Crossroads Alternative Education
Program has identified some online courses that could possibly help to reduce the
cost of summer school and he hopes to have more information for the next Board
Meeting. He reported that the 11" Street and Pacheco crossing guard position is
posted and the goal is to have the position filled by the beginning of second
semester. He said he hopes to have the follow up report to his initial Entry Plan
Presentation at the December or January Board Meeting. He said the District will be
conducting a Bond Election Survey and encouraged everyone to participate when
they get the phone call. He wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.

122

City Hall
Council Chambers

Call to Order

Roll Call

Closed Session

Pledge of
Allegiance

Approval of
Agenda
Public Forum

Recognition /
Introductions

Student Report

CSEA Report
LBTA Report

Superintendent’s
Report



No report

Mr. Parreira thanked the sites for inviting the board members to the many activities
at the schools. He said he recently judged the LBE Spelling Bee, read to students at
LFE and commended the LFE student government for their participation with OPC
(Operation Packing Company). He said he was also a judge for the MSE Poetry
contest and praised all the school sites for honoring Veterans’ with wonderful flag
ceremonies. Ms. Benton congratulated LBHS FFA for winning a National Food
Service Award at the FFA National Convention. She said she attended the LBHS
FFA Greenhand Banquet, read to LFE students, attended PHS multi-cultural open
house, judged the Red Ribbon Week poster contest at WUES, and judged the MSE
Poetry Contest. She congratulated the teachers and students recognized earlier in the
evening and commended them for doing a great job. She thanked Dr. Marshall for a
successful Community Cafe and thanked Jane Brittell for a wonderful job hosting
the event. She said she is pleased that Caltrans approved a crossing guard at Hwy.
152 and 11™ Street and hopes that in the future a stop light will be installed. She
wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. Mr. Munoz thanked LFE for inviting him
to their Jump Start Reading Program. He said he attended the Unconscious Bias
Training Workshop in Merced, Parenting Partners at LBJH, and a MESA fieldtrip.
He said he is very excited about the Parent Leadership Training Program that will
have graduates at a November 28" ceremony and encouraged anyone wanting more
information to call him. He wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. Mr. Areias
commended Volta Elementary School for a wonderful flag raising ceremony and
was very impressed with the Poetry Contest at MSE. He reported that at a recent
Facilities Committee meeting the Bond Survey was reviewed. He stressed that it is
very important that everyone take the time to respond to the survey and emphasized
that the District is in need of a new elementary school. He said he has been working
with Dr. Marshall on policies related to PE Credit. He wished everyone a Happy
Thanksgiving. Mr. Martinez thanked everyone for coming to the Board Meeting,
welcomed Mr. Igbal to the District, and congratulated the retirees and students that
were recognized. He said he recently attended the LFE Jump Start Reading
Program, FFA Greenhand Banquet and MSE Poetry Contest. He thanked all
administrators and staff for their hard work, encouraged everyone to work together
and wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. Ms. Goin thanked everyone for all
they do for the students and wished everyone an enjoyable holiday. Ms. Smith said
she recently attended the LFE awards ceremony and complimented how nice it was
to see so how many students receive awards. She commended Ms. Brittell for doing
a great job and wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.

Francisco Romo, from Merced County Office of Education, presented the annual
Williams Settlement Report.

On motion by Member Areias, seconded by Member Martinez, Trustees declared
intent to adopt the revised Governance Handbook. Ayes: Mr. Areias; Benton, Goin,
Martinez, Munoz, Parreira, Smith; Noes: 0; Absent: 0. Motion carried.

On a motion of Member Areias, seconded by Member Smith, Trustees approved
December 14, 2017, 7:00 P.M., as the date and time of its annual organizational
meeting. Ayes: Mr. Areias; Benton, Goin, Martinez, Munoz, Parreira, Smith; Noes:
0; Absent: 0. Motion carried

123

Facilities Report

Trustee Reports

Williams Report

Governance
Handbook (first
Reading)

Annual
Organizational
Meeting



On motion of Member Martinez, seconded by Member Benton, Trustees approved
the 2017-18 Single Plans for Student Achievement. Ayes: Mr. Areias; Benton, Goin,
Martinez, Munoz, Parreira, Smith; Noes: 0; Absent: 0. Motion carried.

Trustees reviewed the 2018-19 school calendars with an anticipated adoption at the
December 14, 2017 Board meeting.

On motion by Member Areias, seconded by Member Goin, Trustees adopted
Resolution #28-17 authorizing the signatures of the Superintendent, Assistant
Superintendent of Fiscal Services, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources,
Assistant Superintendent of Elementary Education, Assistant Superintendent of
Secondary Education and Director of Fiscal Services as signatories for orders drawn
on District funds. Ayes: Mr. Areias; Benton, Goin, Martinez, Munoz, Parreira,
Smith; Noes: 0; Absent: 0. Motion carried.

On motion by Member Areias, seconded by Member Benton, Trustees adopted
Resolution #27-17 designating Don Laursen as the District’s representative and
Amer Iqbal as alternate to the Merced County School’s Insurance Group. Ayes: Mr.
Areias; Benton, Goin, Martinez, Munoz, Parreira, Smith; Noes: 0; Absent: 0. Motion
carried.

On motion by Member Areias, seconded by Member Smith, Trustees approved the
authorized signatures for the District Revolving Fund, Clearing Account and
Children’s’ Welfare Fund. Ayes: Mr. Areias; Benton, Goin, Martinez, Munoz,
Parreira, Smith; Noes: 0; Absent: 0. Motion carried.

On a motion by Member Benton, seconded by Member Martinez, Trustees declared
its intent to adopt the following mandated policies: BP 0400 Comprehensive Plan,
BP/AR 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan-LCAP, BP 3513.4 Drugs and
Alcohol Free Schools- New Policy, BP/AR 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy,
BP/AR 1113 (a) District and School Web Sites, AR 5113.11 Attendance
Supervision- New Policy, BP/AR 5113.12 District School Attendance Review
Board-SARB- New Policy, BP 5131.6 Alcohol and Other Drugs, AR 6173.1
Educations for Foster Youth, BB 9150 Student Board Members Ayes: Areias,
Benton, Goin, Martinez, Munoz, Parreira, Smith; Noes: 0; Absent: 0. Motion
carried.

On motion by Member Goin, seconded by Member Areias, Trustees approved the
Consent Calendar as submitted. Ayes: Mr. Areias; Benton, Goin, Martinez, Munoz,
Parreira, Smith; Noes: 0; Absent: 0. Motion carried.

Trustees approved minutes of the: Regular Meeting held on October 12,2017 and a
Special Board Meeting held on October 17, 2017

Certificated Report: Appointments: Nehme, Nadia — First Grade Teacher, Los Banos
Elementary — effective 11/1/2017, McRae, Brad — Fifth Grade Teacher, Los Banos
Elementary — effective 11/1/2017; Extra Duty Appointments: Jennifer Leyva- Head
Soccer Coach Girls-PHS, Marcus McGraw-Head Varsity Basketball Coach-Boys-
LBHS, Tyrell Jenkins-Head Varsity Basketball Coach-Boys-PHS, Jose Castro-Head
Varsity Wrestling Coach-LBHS, Chuck Castaneda-Head Varsity Wrestling Coach-
PHS, Scott Brady-Asst. Varsity football Coach-PHS, Marcee Lander-Volleyball

124

2017-18 Single
Plans for Student
Achievement

2018-19 School
Calendar (First
Reading)

Signatures on
Warrant Registers

District
Representative,
MCSIG

Authorized
Signatures

Mandated Policies
(First Reading)

CONSENT
CALENDAR

Minutes

Personnel Actions



Coach Frosh Girls-PHS, Hannah Green-Volleyball Coach JV Girls-PHS, Chancey
Lee-Asst. Football Coach-Frosh-PHS, Josh Solis-Asst. Football Coach-Frosh-PHS,
Esteban Mendoza-Asst. Wrestling Coach-LBHS, Manuel Silva-Asst. Wrestling
Coach-PHS, Jordan Macias-Asst. Wrestling Coach-PHS, Shirley Brand-Flag Team
Advisor-CJHS, Anthony Silva-Athletic Trainer/Equipment-LBHS, Carla Cazares-7"
Grade Girls Basketball Coach-LBJH, Erica Franco-8" Grade Girls Basketball
Coach-LBJH, Cody Mabe- 8" Grade Basketball Coach- CJHS, Robert Smith- 7"
Grade Asst. Basketball Coach-LBJH, Kelly Todd-8" Grade Asst. Basketball Coach,
Samantha Brand-Boys Soccer Coach-LBHS, Sergio De Alba-Pentathlon-RME, Jim
Keller-Pentathlon-MSE, Gerardo Reyes-JV Girls Basketball Coach-LBHS, Peter
Costello- JV Girls Basketball Coach-PHS, John Wes Wing- Boys Soccer Coach-
PHS, Gonzalo Rodriguez-JV Boys Basketball Coach-LBHS. Classified Report: New
Hires: Iqbal, Amer — DO, Director of Fiscal Services (8.0 Hrs), Mendoza, Esteban —
LBJH, Campus Security (6.0 Hrs); Promotional: Aaron, Christina — FS, Child
Nutrition Worker (7.0 Hrs), Duke, Evangelina — FS, Child Nutrition Site Specialist
(8.0 Hrs); Termination: Castaneda, Adriana — SS — Effective 10/31/2017.

The monthly Fiscal Report was submitted for Board information.

The quarterly GASB 45 Trust Investment Report was provided for informational
purposes.

Trustees approved the new job description for the Preschool Development Program
Director.

Trustees approved the updated list of student organizations/clubs for Los Banos
High School to include the addition of: Public Speaking and Communications Club,
Biology Club, Community Improvement Club.

Trustees approved the following agreements/proposals: LDA Partners, Loftin
Stadium Project and Global Modular Inc., Loftin Stadium Modular’s.

Trustees approved the following overnight/out-of-state travel: PHS FFA MFE/ALA
Conference Jan. 21-22, Monterey, CA, Chico State Field Day March 9-10 Chico,
CA, State FFA Convention April 22-25 Anaheim, CA, Cal Poly State Finals May 4-
5 San Luis Obispo, CA, Officer Retreat June 13-15 Pinecrest, CA; LBHS Varsity
Girls’ Wrestling Napa Valley Girls Classic: Napa, CA, January 4-5, 2018, Sac-
Joaquin Girls Regional’s: Location TBD, February 2-3, 2018, Sac-Joaquin Girls
Masters:  Stockton, CA, February 15-16, 2018, Girls CIF State Wrestling
Championships: ~ Visalia, CA, February 22-23, 2018; LBHS Varsity Boys’
Wrestling December 28-29, 2017: California Coast Classic, Aptos, February 3,
2018: Sac-Joaquin Section Div. IV Dual Team Championship, Stockton, February
15-16, 2018: Boys’ Divisional, Foothill High School, February 22-23, 2018: Sac-
Joaquin Sections Masters, Stockton, March 1-2, 2018: CIF State Championship,
Bakersfield; HME Teacher, Teach It Conference, Charlotte, NC, December 11-12,
2017; CTH MESA college road trip, November 20-22, 2017.

Trustees declared specific library books and textbooks obsolete and authorize their
disposal in accordance with Board Policy #3270.

125

Fiscal Report

Quarterly SISC
GASB 45 Trust

Job Description
Student
Organization/Club
Approval

Agreements/
Contracts

Travel

Obsolete Books



Trustees declared specified electronic equipment as obsolete and authorized disposal
in accordance with Board Policy #3270.

Trustees approved the removal and disposal of an obsolete/beyond repair of Buses
#20 and #27.

Trustees approved the warrants for payment.

On motion by Member Smith, seconded by Member Martinez, Trustees expelled
student cases #6185995784, #5518917, #1136976873, #3174324647, #9195515741,
#8178349228 the following students from the District for the remainder of the
school year and expelled student case #6191908064 for the current trimester.
Students shall enroll at Valley Community Day School.

On motion by Member Smith, seconded by Member Martinez, Trustees approved
Public Employee: Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment (Section 54957).

Ayes: Areias, Benton, Goin, Martinez, Munoz, Parreira, Smith; Noes: 0; Absent: 0.
Motion carried.

None

The meeting was adjourned by Mr. Parreira at 8:18 P.M.

SECRETARY

126

Obsolete
Electronic
Equipment

Disposal of
Obsolete
Equipment
Warrants

Reporting Closed
Session

Future Agenda
Items

Adjournment



LOS BANOS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIVISION OF HUMAN RESOURCES

Tammie Calzadillas, Assistant Superintendent

REPORT OF CERTIFICATED EMPLOYMENT
FOR BOARD APPROVAL — December 14, 2017

APPOINTMENT: None

RESIGNED:
Brinlee, Kelli — Henry Miller Elementary, Reading Intervention Teacher —effective 12/15/17

EXTRA DUTY

APPOINTMENTS:

Pricilla Gutierrez-Frosh Girls Basketball-LBHS, Carlos Rodriguez- Frosh Girls Basketball-PHS,
Michael Perkins- JV Boys Soccer Coach-PHS, Cynthia Hernandez- J'V Girls Soccer Coach-PHS,
Michael Singh- Asst. Wrestling Coach-PHS, Manuel Rico- Asst. Wrestling Coach-LBHS,
Claudine Gutierrez-Academic Mentor-CJHS.

127



LOS BANOS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIVISION OF HUMAN RESOURCES

Tammie Calzadillas, Assistant Superintendent

REPORT OF CLASSIFIED EMPLOYMENT
FOR BOARD APPROVAL - December 14, 2017

New Hires:
Appointments:

Promotional:
Lewis, Lynn — FS, Child Nutrition Technician (8.0 Hrs)

Retired:

Resioned:

Termination:
Kumar, Anthony — SS, Effective 11/13/2017

128



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Monthlv Fiscal Report

REQUESTED ACTION: None—report only

Action Discussion/Information X

RECOMMENDATION:

The attached reports are provided for informational purposes only.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

e Board Financial Summary Report, General Fund
e Enrollment Graphs
e Developer Fee Collection Report (summary only)

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This is an operational activity and does not directly support a specific Board goal.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

N/A

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

N/A

ORIGINATOR: Amer Igbal, Director of Fiscal Services
Date: December 14, 2017

129



011 Los Banos Unified School Dist.

monthly Board report
UNRESTRICTED/RESTRICTED COMBINED

J26265 FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR PERIOD 07/01/2017-06/30/2018 GLD500 L.00.03 12052017 1229 PAGE 1

FUND: 01 GENERAL FUND/COUNTY SSF

0BJECT ADOPTED BUDGET CURRENT INCOME/ BUDGET BUDGET
NUMBER  DESCRIPTION BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET EXPENSE BALANCE % USED
REVENUE DETAIL
REVENUE LIMIT SOURCES : 105,774,890.00 1,688,018.00- 104,086,872.00 34,050,957.83 70,035,914.17 32.71
FEDERAL REVENUES : 5,112,500.00 1,780,698.00 6.893,198.00 1,469,937.36 5,423,260.64 21.32
OTHER STATE REVENUES : 9,958,703.00 585,489.00 10,544,192.00 3,018,825.74 7.525,366.26 28.63
OTHER LOCAL REVENUES : 810,000.00 1,787,287.00 2,597,287.00 405,673.65 2,191,613.35 15.61
* TOTAL YEAR TO DATE REVENUES * % 121,656,093.00 *  2,465,456.00 * 124,121,549.00 * 38,945,394.58 85,176,154.42 =  31.37
EXPENDITURE DETAIL
CERTIFICATED SALARIES : 50,790,534.00 174,892.00- 50,615,642.00 20,401,311.76 30,214,330.24 40.30
CLASSIFIED SALARIES : 18,669,563.00 573,909.00-  18,095,654.00 7,944,027 .36 10,151,626.64 43.90
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS : 32,862,412.00 37,751.00- 32,824,661.00 11,957,651.16 20,867,009.84 36.42
BOOKS AND SUPPLIES : 8.607,083.00 3.433,790.00 12,040,873.00 1,769,815.67 10,271,057.33 14.69
SERVICES, OTHER OPER. EXPENSE: 7,205,527.00 483,295.00 7,688,822.00 3,919,554.01 3,769,267.99 50.97
CAPITAL OUTLAY : 784,594 .00 141,428.00 926,022.00 453,014.66 473,007.34 48.92
OTHER OUTGOING : 1,640,000.00 35,043.00 1,675,043.00 416,727.00 1,258,316.00 24.87
DIRECT SUPPORT/INDIRECT COSTS: 381,000.00- 13,116.00- 394,116.00- .00 394,116.00- 0.00
PRIOR YEAR EXPENDITURE : 1,122,003.00 1,122,003.00 568,196.20 553,806.80 50.64
* TOTAL YEAR TO DATE EXPENDITURES  * * 121,300,716.00 *  3,293,888.00 * 124,594,604.00 * 47,430,297.82 * 77,164,306.18 * 38.06
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ( USES )
INTERFUND TRANSFERS - OUT : .00 .00 17,930.47- 17,930.47  NO BDGT
CONTRIB. - RESTRICTED PROGRAMS: .00 .00 .00 .00 NO BDGT
* TOTAL YEAR TO DATE OTHER FINANCING * .00 * .00 * .00 * 17,930.47-* 17.930.47 * NO BDGT

130



011 Los Banos Unified School Dist. J26265 FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR PERIOD 07/01/2017-06/30/2018 GLD500 L.00.03 12052017 1229 PAGE

monthly Board report
UNRESTRICTED/RESTRICTED COMBINED

FUND: 01 GENERAL FUND/COUNTY SSF

2

OBJECT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

BEGINNING
BALANCE

YEAR TO DATE
ACTIVITY

ENDING
BALANCE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES :

9110 CASH IN COUNTY TREASURY

9130 REVOLVING CASH ACCOUNT

9135 CASH W/ FISCAL AGENT

9210 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE PRIOR YEAR
9310 DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS

9319 DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS - SET UP
9340 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

9510 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CURRENT LIAB
9522 STRS REF EXCESS CONTRIBUTION
9550 USE TAX LIABILITY

9553 REPAY

9554 INSURANCE

9555 125 DEP CARE & MED REIMBURSE
9556 MISC DISTRICT VOL-DEDS (1)
9557 Refunds of PERS, STRS, SS, MED
9564 RETIREE LIABILITY

9567 INSURANCE MISCELLANEQUS

9610 DUE TO OTHER FUNDS

9640 CURRENT LOANS (TRANS)

9650 UNEARNED (DEFERRED) REVENUE

* NET YEAR TO DATE FUND BALANCE L

* EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) * *

FUND RECONCILIATION
15,458,309.41
24,900.00

2,444 ,314.72
301.893.89

2,250.00
2,731,275.67-
166.72-
12,932.46-
5,066.81
100.80
17,754.41-
105.98
438.53-

555,843.72-

131

6.047,314.10-

100.00

40.51-
2,170,673.16-
301,893.89-

30,000.00
.00
1,959,284.22

697.18-

7,340.66

1,480.44-

25,351.69
10.00

3,562.08-

.09
293.67
8.79
438.53

2,000,000.00-

.00

8,502,833.71-*%

8,502,833.71-*

9,410,995.31
25,000.00

40.51-

273,641.56
.00
30,000.00
2,250.00

771,991.45-
863.90-
5,591.80-
1,480.44-

30,418.50
10.00

3,461.28-

.09

17,460.74-

114.77
.00

2,000,000.00-
555,843.72-

14,918,530.10 * 6,415,696.39 *

6,415,696.39 *

14,918,530.10 *



L10¢/L/ZL

T .
L1-O1 s
Q-G | emtpm
Slbl —¥—
plL-gl —m—
LTl —o—

yuol

0cig

0¢.LS

ZelS

8/85 | £886G

§z/S | eels |

125G

125G

125G

9¢ss

9¢ss

92ss

—

| ev9S | 6095

0£SS | 0LSS

6EYS

6EYS

0SvS

1G¥S 8615

0€.Ls P0O.LS

189G

 p8gs |

¢899

6899

9889

8699

789G

6645 98495

G9GS

L LGS

6195

251

095G

[47%4%4°)

0SvS

8EYS

Yorg

ELva

GhPS | GZPS

194"

LLvS

8365 |

G0vS

GOvS

Clvs

1 pzps

TANZ

| ev¥s | vEvS

8¢/.

0€/9

9¢/S

WS | e

| vere | el

0LYg

I we

LL¥S

e

yTeS
62/6

8015

ypES |

6/6

VLEG

1Tvs
ge/8

e

B—

e _.I....nFlln.lnnﬂ.”.“.._rF sl

AT

00¥S

0G¥S

00SS

0659

009s

0599

004S

06.9

0089

068G

0065

puop Aq (0@as Buipnjaul) Juswijosuz 9-y

0569

juswijjoiug

132



VAN T4 IA®

L1-9| emmn
91 -G| =i
Gl-vl ——
Pl —m—

8l-L] e

€Ll —e—

ypuoly

B B 9891 | 2891 | €89l | 1891 | 9/9L [8L-L) =]
869l | 8€9l | O¥9L | Z¥OL | 0G9L | 6v9L | 6VOL | €¥OL | 0S9L | GGOL | £99L |/L-O) =]
| €8GL | €8Sl | Gl | 99GL | 8/GL | 08GL | 69GL | €/GL | 1/SL | t8SL | 0BG |QL-Gleie|
856l | 865l | 856L | 89GL | /GGL | LeSL | Ll9GL | 19GkL | 2S8L | 2SSL | LISL | 05l |Gl-pL—%—
?eGh | z6SL | veSl | 9sGl | 8SSL | 1GGL | pSL | GSSL | SSGL | €9SL | LG | 9SG |pl-gl—m—
GGvL | GSvL | €9Vl | wivL | 8bL | 68l | ¥8PL | i8YL | IVl | GSYL | 6SPL | 96WL |€l-TL—e—
8oL | O%/9 | 9y | wis | wvere | wee | Leh | Mk | €Al | 6U6 | 66 | Se8 o
|
“ —+ 0551
1
- G/S)
: 009}
— - — t 529l
I -~ J¢|/,x1 e g9l
_
|
~ — . et Sl01
00LL

(oas Buipnjoul) Juswyjoiug g-2

jusawijjosuy

133



Z1L0e/L/el

QL)
L1-9) =
OL-G | e
Gl-pl —¥—
pL-€) —m—
€17 —o—

Yjuopy

| ] 6LEE | LZEE | OEEE | LEEE | [EEE [Bh-Lle=em
| WWLe | WWLe | ble | ¥GLE | LOLE | IBLE | [BLE | 9BLE | €4ZE | OLZE | ¥ZTE | SPZE | LL-Olede|
_8v0E | 8YOE | BYOE | S90E | 9806 | EME | OSIE | 69 | GLE | ELLE | SOIE | VBLE |Gl
| 1967 | /96T | [96T | v¥B6C | OZOE | 9S0€ | 890E | LEOE | O0S0E | 9/0S | €60S | 0BOE |Gl-pl——
== =— t t
968C | 968C | 026 | €96C | 96C | €/6C | 96Z | LI6T | 067 | 16T | 686C | 6S6C |pi-ClL—m—
| l12Z | l1JT | vBITZ | 88T | YE8T | GE8Z | €€8C | [T8C | O¥8T | GZ8CT | €S.T | 88T |EL-TL—e—
8uL | 0%9 | 9SS | vis | vee | wele | Juv | wew | enL | 6ue | 66 | Se8 | .
_ - — = 0062
— - — 0562
X K i
—— — 000€
. - 050€
: 00l€
e : 0sle
| - s e | 00ze
| e
| e
— — — 052€
- — 0o0ge
f — .
: | ogge

(odas Buipnjoui) yuswijoiuz zi-6

juswijjoiuy

134



£10¢/L/iC)

8L/ | ==t
L1-9) =i
91-G| =ili=
Gl-v| —=%—
rl-gl —m—
el-¢cl —o—

i ] | | | 688'0L | 768'0L | Z06'0L | 006'0L | G98'0L |8h-L =i
66Y'0L | 66v'0L | €160} | 1ZG'0L | ¥KG'OL | 0G'0L | 06G'0L | 92G'0L | SYSOL | 095'0L | G850 | LIGOL | L)-Ql =i
982'0L | 9870} | 9820} | 18Z'0L | LGZ'0L | 06Z'0L | 9LE'0L | EOE'OL | BLE'DL | 66Z'0L | €VE'0L | PYEOL |OL-GL—l

| 150'0L | 1G0'0L | LGO'0L | 280°0L | 800} | 82O} | ZZL'OL | OvO'0L | £80°0L | LO'OL | VEL'OL | £20°0L |GL-bl—%-

/886 | /896 | 266 | 9966 | 8.66 | 6966 | 8v66 | V66 | OCG6 | ZC66 | 8966 | 6886 |pi-l—m—
1696 | 1696 | 6596 | OLL6 | Lpl6 | €//6 | 1G6 | 816 | 1646 | GS/6 | 066 | 9086 |Eh-gh—a—
gz/L | o€l | 9us | ws | vze | vz | szn | el 7 €L | 626 | 606 | 928

—&— 0086
— ——" | 0066
o . — { 00001
0040}
0020}
00£0}
- ——| 000}
= —— —- - | 000l
. .
- - - — 00901
— - — ———{ 00.0L
~ — - - 00801
— .~ o ; r\\X| 00601

yuol Aq (D@s Buipnjoul) Juswijouz -y

juswijjosuy

135



136

00°000°052 00°000°052 00°000°'05¢ 00°000°€1S
%00°00L GC'815'GLLLS %00°00L 61°GE0'EBZ'CS %00°00L | 95°180'69%'L$ %00°00L | 62°€19'606% |TV.LOL
%00°00L  |%00°0 %00°00} %L L P0'6LELLLS |%00°00L  |%LZLL €0°966'LLL$  |%00°00L |%99°1L 1G°060'GL$ INNC
%0000l |%00°0 %.C'C6 % Ve e 29'29¢'/8/8 |%67'88 %89'6¢ 69°LE0'0EPS  |%PE86  |%00°0 AVIN
%00°00L %000 %€E6°'LS %SE9 28'GlG'svlS |%198S %12°0¢ ¥ 99Z'¥0ES  |%PE86  |%00°0 Hdv
%0000}  |%00°0 %8G°LG %0¢C'.L 1G'961'G9LS  |%06°LE %19/ 609€8'L11$ |%PE'86 %000 YN
%00°004 %000 %8E v %l6°LL 8ZrlLlL'eLes |%6Z0¢ %8LF 90'82'L9% %¥E86  [%SGL0 vL'Gre'L$  jg3d
%00°00L  |%00°0 %.L¥'CE %G6°Gl 8¥'878'G9e$ %L1 9¢ %000 %6186 |[%¥PS'S L0'S0Y'0S$  |NVT
%00°00L  [%000 %169l %¥9°¢ 6.°€05'09% %l1°'92 %B6G°S G8'v.1°28% %5926 |%00°0¢ | 2£8/8'2/c$|03ad
%00°00L  |%¥8'9L Z8'Ev6'L6LS  |%88¢El %¥L'8 21'829'081l$ |%LS'0C %.6°1 68'G6'82% %S9'29 |%ezZl | 2L 2SLLLLS JAON
%91°€8 %198l Ly'GLL'8LTS  |%bl'S %ST'°C L¥'989'15$ %¥S8lL %SE L 11°'G28'6L$ %EY'0S  |%EV'0C | 99464681 |LDO
%9579 %EV'ET 2ev0v'Gies  |%8F'e %10°¢ V. 6LY Lv$ %61°LL %¥S°C 12°02e'/¢$ %lL00E  |%ES'8 €¥'065°2.8 |d3AS
%EL' LY %9LLL G8'96.'802% |%l¥'l %911 81'6¥9'9¢$ %891 %Ll L 80°01£'G0LS  [%8V'LZ |%8S'8 0r'€00'8.8 |ONV
%9E'EC %9E'€C 6.°,69'%7.2% |%SZ0 %S20 0C'LeL'GS %8%'L %8%'L GZ'1¥6'60LS |%l6CL |%l6'2ZL | 8098e/Li$Inr
% o % AlUIuon 81-2102 % % >_:Eo_>_ - LL9L0Z. | eAnelnungy, Ajyjuoin 9L-5102 aAleINwWIY, >===o_..._ Sl-v10C
Alje[nwinn , aAllE|nWINY

$994 JadojanaQ 8102-2102

10L}SI |00YOS PayIUN Soueg SO



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: 2018-19 School Calendars (Second Reading)

REQUESTED ACTION: Approval

Action X Discussion/Information

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board approve the 2018-2019 school calendars.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The 2018-2019 calendar reflects a traditional schedule of 180 instructional days with the first
day of school beginning on August 9, 2018 for secondary grades and August 10, 2018 for
elementary grades; ending June 6, 2019 and June 7, 2019 respectively. This calendar also
reflects three (3) staff development days throughout the school year. These days are August 7,
2018, October 29, 2018 and February 1, 2019.

The calendar for San Luis High School and Crossroads also reflects a traditional schedule of
180 days with the first day of school on July 17, 2018. San Luis High School and Crossroads
operate on a six-week cycle.

The calendars were developed by a committee comprised of LBTA representatives and District
Office Administrators.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This is an operational activity and does not support a specific Board goal.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None identified.

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT:

N/A

ORIGINATOR: Tammie Calzadillas, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources
DATE: December 14, 2017

137



Los BANOS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
2018-2019 School Calendar

All Wednesdays Are Minimum Days for all Elementary Schools
July 2018 August 2018 September 2018

Su M Tu W Th Sal [Su M Ty W Th F Sa| [Su M Tu W Th F Sa

F
T R s e T el | e
8| 9 |w| ]2l 3]1a| 5] 6 NI EEY IERDEAT
1516 |17 s 19 20 [21] [12] 1314 Q58X 17 (18] |9 10 11 N 14 [ 15

13
22| 23| 24| 25|26 | 27 28] [19/20[21|22/23 24 (25| [16]17 |18 |AIP<20Y 21 | 22

29| 30 | 31 26 | 27 | 28 30| 31 23|24 | 25 27 28|

1 ) "
) 16/17 _ 19
Su M Tu W Th F Sa Su M Tu W Th F a SU M T W Th F Sa
1123 [4[5]¢ T 1 1142 N8 it 25
7189 NN 112 8] | 4 (T BEREBUFIERE |2 |3 | 4 NE 6| 7 |8
14/ 15 16 |[Q7DXA8Y 19 [ 20| |11 13 [(14)] 150N B\ 910/ 11]12]13] 1415
212223 RO 26 | 26 [ 27| |18 7//%‘/ , A6 ] 17 | 18 20 2
2. 30 [BY | [ 25| 26 L 2741287 2\ 30N} 23 % 4%
_ A Hi o N 16 |5  88/8Y

» C U eb v March 2019
Su M !Tu VW/TI;, g sa | S‘.; M\CATu h F Sa Su M 'Tu W Th ]F Sq
s i 5 i 2
Yk SENNT FALSE
131415 [16X17) 18 \i 0] 1112 [Q43)<14) 15 | 14
20 (% 22 QBN 24 | 25 | X Ti7] 18 19 DY 2 2
27| 2 i29|,,30’31 24 ,,l?’ﬁ}]f/;?’ 84 30
31

13 16

April 2019 ~ May2019 June 2019
Su M Tu W Th F- 54 S U M Tu W Th F 3@ SU M Tu W "Th ' F S$a
1/2[3]4[5]5 | ) 4 1 =
8 |9 @ 1 [12[3] [s[6]7 9 [10[nn| [2[3]4 == B

7 8
14 715}-16 18%20 12113 [14[G8) 1617 ] 18| [9] 0] 112 13705

21 V57 23242526 |27 |19]20| 21 2324 25| [16] 17|18 |19 ] 20| 21 ['22
28|29 | 30 | 26%28 30 | 31 23| 24 | 25| 26 | 27 | 28 [ 29

— e ] i 3 e |

I A A I A O I I I )

- = = 1 54 92/91
| I I | l Elermentary Teacher Prep Hoiidays Report Card Perlods Kindergarten Registration
September 3 Labor Day Grades TK-6 February 25 thru March 1, 2019
) AlDistrict Teacher Prep November 12 (observed) Veleran's Day 1st Trimester Ends - November 2 (59)
— L
—_— November 19-23 Thanksgiving Break 2nd Trimester Ends - March 1 (58) Sraduations
~———Secondary Teacher Prep Dec. 21- Jan. 11 Winter Break } 3rd Trimester Ends - Juna 7 (5(2) Pacheco High Schoal - Juns 7 - 8:00 PM
D> < Secondary First/Last Day of School January 21 Martin Luther King Day  Grades 7-8 Los Banos High - June 7 - 8:00 PM
e ) Fabruary 11 Lincoln Day 1st Trimester Ends - November 2 (50)
Elementary First/Last Day of School February 18 Wa'shlngton Day 2nd Trimester Ends - March 1 (59)
Elementary Parent Teacher Confersnces ~ March 25-29 Spring Break 3rd Trimester Ends - June 6 (81)
P ) April 19-22 April Recess High Schools
/} Holidays May 3 May Day 1st Quarter Ends - October 12 (46)
. May 27 Memonal Day 2nd Quarter Ends - December 21 (43) Board Adopted:
Elementary Minimum Day - Teacher Prep 3rd Quarter Ends - March 22 (46) vertex42 calendar

/ Elementary Minimum Day 4th Quarter Ends - June 7 (45}
Secondary Minimum Day Oct. 31, Mar. 6, and May 29 - Elementary Report Card Prap Days

All District Minimum Day

5]
O eementary PLC N High Schaal PLC <>Jr. High PLC “S!aff Development Days {:fclassmed Staff Holidays

138



San Luis High School / Crossroads

2018-2019 School Calendar ,
July 2018 August 2018 September 2018
' ‘ ‘W Th F Sa

Su M Ty W Th F Sa. SuM Tu W Th F Sa
["?- _ %%%% 8

1 2‘.:3...4 5 8 T
’12 13 14 15

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 Y
15 ANTP 18 19 20 2 .12 13 14 15 16 17 18,
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 / ‘ |
29 30 31 26 27 28 @@31 i ""~s'?' 28 29

October 2018 November 20187
Su M Tu W Th F Sa Su M Tu W T

1 2 3 4 5 &6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 8
14 15 16 19 20 o
21 ¥ 27 22

: 18
January 2019
Su M W Th F Sa

s 4 5 6 7
0 11 12 13 14 15 16

13 14 15 16 17 18
20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30
) 18 B3| 4
2% Holiday Holidays/Staff Development Days Repott Card Periods
August 6 and 8 School Holiday Term 1 Ends - August 31, 2018
\ Minimum Day August7 Staff Development Term 2 Ends - October 19, 2018
September 3-7 Term 1 Break Term 3 Ends - December 21, 201t
& PLC (Professional Leamning Communities) - SLHS October 22 - 26 Term 2 Break Term 4 Ends - February 22, 2019
(student minimum day) Qctober 28 Staff Development Term 5 Ends - Aprit 12, 2019
November 12 Veteran's Day Term 6 Ends - June 5, 2019
% PLC (Professional Leamning Communities) - Crossroads November 18 - 23 Thanksgiving
(student minimum day) December 24 - January 11 Winter Break Graduation
January 21 Martin Luther King Jr Day San Luis High School
% First and Last Day of Schoal February 1 Staff Development June 6, 2019
February 11 Lincoln's Birthday Crossroads
A Secondary Teacher Prep February 18 Washington Day June 6, 2019
February 25 - March 1 Term 4 Break
Staff Development Day April 16 - 22 Term 5 (Spring) Break
(non-student contact day) May 3 May Day Holiday 180 school days
May 27 Memorial Day 185 teacher days

Calendar template by Vertex42.com

139



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Governance Handbook Update (Second Reading)

REQUESTED ACTION: Declare Intent to Adopt

Action X Discussion/Information
“
RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board adopt the updated Los Banos Unified School District Governance
Handbook.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Governance Handbook was developed in March 2006 by Board members with assistance
from California School Boards Association. At the October 14, 2017 Special Board Meeting the
handbook was reviewed and updated.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This is an operational activity and does not directly support a specific Board goal.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

N/A

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

N/A

ORIGINATOR: Mark Marshall, Ed.D., Superintendent
Date: December 14, 2017

140



Los Banos Unified School District
Governance Handbook

Revised October 14, 2017

LOS BANOS

UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Board of Trustees

Anthony Parreira, President
Dennis Areias, Vice President
Margaret Benton, Clerk
Megan Goin, Member

Ray Martinez, Member

Gary Munoz, Member
Marlene Smith, Member

Superintendent

Mark E. Marshall, Ed.D.

| Unity of Purpose, Roles and Responsibilities, Norms and
Agreements

These workshop notes reflect the governance team’s work on the
creation of a framework for effective governance. This involves
ongoing discussions and agreements about unity of purpose, roles,

| norms and protocols that enable the governance team to continue to
perform its responsibilities in a way that best benefits all children.

141



Los Banos Unified School District

Governance Team Handbook

Table of Contents

Los Banos USD Community Values.........cc.ocoouviiioeieiiciiiiiie e 1
Los Banos USD Mission & Vision Statement.......................o.ooo. T 2
UnNity of PUMPOSE....coiiiiiee e 3
Governance Roles and Responsibilities...........ccocvivirieoiiiine 5
The Role of the Board and Superintendent..................... e 5
Governance Team Responsibilities...........ccccoeeoveiiiiicec 6
What the Board Needs from the Superintendent............................. 7
What the Superintendent Needs from the Board............................ 7
What Board Members Need from Each Other................................ 7
Governance Norms and Protocols............cccooeveeiviieiicieoi e 0 Fr e 8
Positive Governance Team Culture (norms)....................... ereeeeaeneerieneenredd 9
Creating and Sustaining a Positive Culture (meeting guidelines).............. 10
Supportive Structures and Processes (protocols) .........ccoccvivinne, 11
Signature Page ..............ccoeeeeicinnnnne. e 16

142



COMMUNITY VALUES

Los Banos Unified School District

Stewardship —We will behave as stewards of our school district and community,
sharing responsibility for our community assets. We will work together to achieve
the greatest long-term benefit for the community as a whole.

Collaboration — We are willing to partner with others to achieve community
outcomes. We will strive to create an inclusive, cohesive community through
partnership and collaboration.

Commitment to Outcomes - We are willing to take responsibility for developing
tasks, achieving specified outcomes, and staying committed until the tasks are
completed.

Positive Thinking — We believe that anything is possible in the Los Banos
Region. We will envision success and then develop an attainable strategy for
achieving that vision.

Fact-Based Decision Making — VWe will base decisions and action plans on
objective data, thereby avoiding distortion of issues by personal feelings or
agendas.

Truth Telling — We will act and respond truthfully in all matters of the District.

Diversity — We respect all persons and recognize that there are diverse
viewpoints. Viewpoints from diverse constituencies will be welcomed to ensure
the best possible outcomes for the community.

Commitment to Resolving Conflict — Healthy conflict involves valuing every
individual, regardless of his or her stance on a specific issue and a commitment
to working through the conflict in a positive manner.

Conflict of Interest — We agree to disclose any personal or professional conflict
of interest that may affect our objectivity before engaging in work that will impact
the community. We seek to avoid even the appearance of conflict of interest.

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 1 October, 2017

143



Mission of the Los Banos Unified School District

Our Mission as a learning organization is to prepare and deliver
curriculum focused on State and District adopted Common Core
Standards, and provide access to the best teaching and content
available for all students.

Vision Statement

All students of the Los Banos Unified School District are provided a
learning environment in which they will be able to perform at their
highest potential. Upon graduation, all students will be prepared for
entry into the world of work or entry into a college or university.

Fidelity to standards, rigorous curriculum and assessments will be an
expectation of all staff. Regular assessment is a key part of the
delivery of excellent instruction. Assessment practice in the District
will reflect adopted standards and utilize similar test design as the
annual state testing program. The implementation of District created
curriculum units and regular assessment will be the basis for judging
fidelity to standards.

Facilities and infrastructure of the District must support the ongoing
growth of the District. Ongoing student population growth as well as
ongoing technological growth of the District must be addressed in our
long term plans while addressing the central mission of the District,
providing the best teaching and content to our students.

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 2 October, 2017

144



UNITY OF PURPOSE

Unity of Purpose is a common focus, super-ordinate goals, the values and beliefs
governance team members share in common about children, the district and public
education that help them transcend their individual differences to fulfill a greater purpose.

—CSBA

Unity of Purpose
Governance team members identified the following concepts as important principles for the team.

Shared Values:

* Ensuring a safe physical and emotional environment for all children that is
conducive to learning

e Preparing our children for career and college

e Serving all students

e Advocacy for all students and staff

e Collaboration

e Truthfulness - open and honest communication in all matters
e Basing decisions on objective data

e Positive Outlook - we believe that Los Banos Unified is destined to become a
destination for many and that our schools and our students’ performance
should be equal to the best in the state

e Long-term planning

* Accountability to the community

e The board working closely with the superintendent
e Commitment to resolving conflict

e Linking all parents to the schools through parent education programs and
encouraging parents and community members to be involved in school co-
curricular and extra-curricular activities

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 3 October, 2017

145



Unity of Purpose

What We Are Most Proud of about Los Banos USD:

Our passion and focus to do everything we can to give our kids the
opportunity to succeed.

That we provide a quality education for all students; every child deserves a
quality education.

The rate of returning students as employees; students love the district enough
to return as staff.

That we all come together when things get tough and do what is right.
Our connection to the community
Our dedicated, caring and professional staff

Our focus on health and safety; this is a very safe district.

Unity of Purpose

As a Governance Team, we want to come together to accomplish the

following. to:

Improve our district — the academics

Produce well-rounded children who are educated by teaching knowledge and
wisdom.

Present a Board to the public that respects each other and works toward a
common goal — what is best for our students.

Have the facilities that we need to accomplish our goals for students.
Carefully monitor our budget; to show fiscal responsibility

Leave a positive legacy

Build solid leadership for our students, constituents and district.
Continue to recruit and retain highly qualified teachers.

Create a district of excellence to serve as a model for others to follow.

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 4 October, 2017

146



- GOVERNANCE ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Effective teams value and respect their essential roles, reach mutual agreement on the
roles of the board and superintendent, and strive to operate within them.

—CSBA

Governance Roles

There are important distinctions to be made between the board’s role and responsibilities
and those of the superintendent and staff. Boards and superintendents must work
together to ensure a district has effective leadership. Just as board members should
govern and not manage a school district, superintendents should not administer a district
in isolation from the representatives whom the public has entrusted with the schools.
School board trustees are the representatives of the people, elected to ensure the district
schools educate the children in consideration of the interests of local community.

Board members have collective, not individual authority. Authority to make decisions is
only granted to the board as a whole. The full board gives direction to the
superintendent, through decisions reached at board meetings. Individual board members
do not have the authority to direct the superintendent, unless otherwise agreed to by the
board and superintendent.

The responsibility of the school board is not to run the schools, but to see that the schools
are run well. When a board member inadvertently takes over the staff role, he/she is in
essence vacating his/her board seat and effectively undercutting his/her ability to govern.
He/she is forfeiting his/her ability to hold the superintendent responsible for the way the
board’s policy direction is translated into action by the professional staff,

Working as the governance team, the superintendent, the executive cabinet and board
guide the efforts of the professional staff by setting a direction for the district reflective of
the community’s wish for its children.

The Role of the Board and Superintendent:

The role of the School Board is a representative, governance role:
School board trustees are the representatives of the people, elected to ensure
the district schools educate the children in consideration of the interests of
local community.

The role of the Superintendent is:
1. To facilitate the effective governance of the Governance Team.

2. To facilitate an effective administrative structure for the District.
3. Be the chief administrative officer for the school district.

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 5 October, 2017

147



Governance Team Responsibilities:

Set the Direction for the Community’s Schools:
Focus on student achievement
Assess district needs / utilize data
Create and revise direction-setting documents
(Beliefs, vision, priorities, strategic goals, success indicators)
Ensure an appropriate inclusive process is used

Establish an effective and efficient governance structure for the school district
Employ the superintendent and set policy for hiring of other personnel
Oversee the development of and adopt policies
Set a direction for and adopt the curriculum
Establish budget priorities, adopt the budget, and oversee facilities issues
Provide direction for the negotiation of collective bargaining agreements

Provide Support through our behavior and actions
Act with professional demeanor that reflects the district’s beliefs and vision
Make decisions and provide resources that support mutually agreed upon priorities & goals
Enforce board-approved district policies
Establish and maintain a positive professional climate
Be knowledgeable about district efforts and be able to explain them to the
public

Ensure Accountability to the public:
Evaluate the superintendent
Monitor, review, and revise policies
Serve as a judicial and appellate body
Monitor student achievement, program effectiveness, and require program
changes as necessary
Monitor district finances and provide direction for budget development
Provide direction for the collective bargaining process and ratify all
agreements

Act as Community Leaders:
Speak with a common voice about district priorities, goals, and issues
Involve the community in district schools and activities
Communicate clear information about policies, programs, and fiscal conditions
of the district
Educate the community about issues facing the district and public education
Advocate for children, district programs, and public education to the
community, local, state and national leaders.

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 6 October, 2017

148



GAINING CLARITY ON ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

What the Board needs from the Superintendent:

The superintendent will support trustees in fulfilling their responsibilities by:

Ensuring transparency

Having open, honest communication

Ensuring that there are no surprises

Continuing the Friday Memos and other updates
Treating all Board Members equally.
Maintaining confidentiality.

What the Superintendent needs from the Board:

The trustees can support the superintendent in fulfilling his responsibilities by:

Ensuring transparency

Having open, honest communication
Ensuring that there are no surprises
Maintaining confidentiality
Supporting majority decisions

What the Board Members need from each other:

The trustees can support each other in fulfilling their responsibilities by:

Treating each other with respect

Acting with integrity

Ensuring transparency

Having open, honest communication

Ensuring that there are no surprises

Being prepared — reading the agenda and asking the Superintendent
questions in advance

Building relationships — providing Board Mentors/Buddies
Maintaining confidentiality

Supporting majority decisions

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 7 October, 2017

149



GOVERNANCE NORMS AND PROTOCOLS

The Board of Education for the Los Banos Unified School District is entrusted by the

community to uphold the Constitutions of California and the United States, protect the
public interest in schools, and ensure that a high quality education is provided to each

student.

To effectively meet district challenges, the Board and Superintendent must function
together as a governance leadership team. Agreed upon behavior (norms) and operating
procedures, (protocols), support unity among team members. The purpose of the Los
Banos USD governance team protocols is to ensure a positive and productive working
relationship among board members, the superintendent, district staff, students, and the
community. The protocols were developed for and by the members of the governance
team, and may be modified over time as needed

Norms:

e Norms for Building and Sustaining Trust Among Members of Our Team
e Governance Team Meeting Guidelines

Protocols: )
» Making sure that all board members are informed and have the same
information

e Bringing up new information or issues for the board agenda

o Sub-committees of the Board (currently the 2x3 Committee, Facilities
Committee, Finance Committee, and the LBUSD Scholarship Committee)

e Board Officer Elections

o Staff Reports to the Board of Education

e Responding to Constituents’ Concerns or Complaints
e Site Visits

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 8 October, 2017

150



POSITIVE GOVERNANCE TEAM CULTURE

Norms for Building and Sustaining Trust among Team Members:

We Agree to:

e Always demonstrate respect for each other.

e Be honest in our interactions with other members of the team.

e Be willing to give and take respectful, constructive feedback.

e Base decisions on principles and not self-interest.

e Develop and maintain positive professional relationships with each other.
e Make sure our words and actions are the same,

e Be active listeners.

e Make sure that everyone has the opportunity to speak.

o Seek information prior to meetings rather than surprising other members or
staff in public.

e Be open to new ideas.

e Choose our words carefully — making sure the words we use are
helpful and not hurtful.

e Be honest with each other — say what we mean and mean what we say.

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 9 October, 2017

151



CREATING AND SUSTAINING A POSITIVE CULTURE

Meeting Guidelines

We will:
1. Communicate with the superintendent and the board president prior to board
meetings so that there are no surprises and no one is unprepared.

2. State our positions on issues. If we plan to vote no on an agenda item, explain
our reasoning prior to the vote so that other board members have the benefit of
our thinking.

3. Listen actively to each other — without preparing responses.

4. Paraphrase or ask questions to make sure we truly understand what the other
person is saying.

5. Make sure that our words and actions are one and the same.

6. Make sure that everyone has a chance to speak once before anyone speaks a
second time.

7. Disagree courteously

8. Keep our focus on the best interest of our students.
9. Debate the facts and avoid personalities.

10. Each take responsibility for the success of the meeting and the work of the
team by preparing ahead of time, participating in the meeting and addressing
concerns.

11. Wait to speak until others are finished speaking and be to the point in our
comments.

12. Avoid abstaining from voting unless a true conflict exists.

13. Respect differences, show respect and honor each other — never dismiss or
devalue others.

14, Stay focused on our goals and avoid getting sidetracked.

15. Work to make sure that there are no hidden agendas and all issues and
concerns can be dealt with openly by all members.

16. Work toward the future — learning from the past.

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 10 October, 2017

152



SUPPORTIVE STRUCTURES AND PROCESSES

Agreements To Facilitate Governance Leadership - (protocols):

TOPIC & RATIONALE:
Making sure that everyone is involved and has the same information.

We believe:

The group is most effective when everyone has the same information. The time of board
members and staff is important. All of our opinions count, We can’t be effective or make good
decisions if we don’t know what is going on. Individuals have a responsibility to indicate when
they are feeling left out. Individual members have different amounts of time to dedicate to
district issues.

PROTOCOL:
We Agree:
* We will receive updates on district issues in the Friday Memo (as appropriate)
® We can call other board members to obtain additional information
* Regular, scheduled reports on major district issues will be scheduled for board meetings —
either during open or closed session (as appropriate under the law)

TOPIC & RATIONALE:

Bringing up new information or issues for the board agenda.
We believe:

Board members should have the opportunity to present new ideas or bring up topics or
issues that they would like to have addressed by the board. Individual board member interests
should not divert the time or energy of staff away from the accomplishment of board adopted
goals and objectives.

PROTOCOL:
We Agree:
*  New ideas will be brought up during the Future Agenda Items section at the end of the
board meeting
¢  Board members will inform the Superintendent before the meetings about any new
issues that may be raised.
¢ The following questions may be considered before a new item is added to the agenda:
- How does this affect our district priorities/goals?
- How much staff time is involved?
- Does the situation rise to the level of a crisis and require immediate attention?
- Is the timing appropriate? What is the preferred timing?

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 11 October, 2017

153



TOPIC & RATIONALE:

Subcommittees of the Board

(Currently ~ 2x3, Facilities Committee, Finance Committee and the LBUSD Scholarship
Committee)

We believe:

The stability, continuity, and history of board subcommittee work are important to the
effective functioning of the district. There must be a commitment to serving on the committee
by board members and willingness to put in the necessary time and attend the meetings.
Changes on the board are inevitable and might result in the need to have other board
members prepared to take part in subcommittee meetings.

All board members need to have enough information about the subcommittee work to be
comfortable making an informed decision and taking action at board meetings. The timelines
Jor non-committee members to ask questions or gain information to fully understand the
complexity of the information or the recommendation are often short. .

PROTOCOL.:
We Agree:
¢ Ifa board member who is not currently appointed to a subcommittee is interested in
serving, s’he should inform the Superintendent and Board President at least two weeks
prior to the Annual Organizational meeting of the Board.
* Only one board member will rotate off of a subcommittee at a time. The change in
appointment will occur at the Annual Organizational Meeting of the Board.
* In order to serve on a subcommittee, board members must agree to take personal
responsibility to:
~— become informed about subcommittee topics and issues
— commit the necessary time and effort
— attend the meetings

¢ The first alternate to the subcommittee will be a board member who has recently rotated
off of the committee whenever possible.

e In order to provide more general information to the rest of the board about subcommittee
meetings, the superintendent will include bullet points of the topics covered during a
subcommittee meeting in the Friday Memo from the Superintendent.

*  Board members need to assume personal responsibility for seeking additional information
as necessary.

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 12 October, 2017

154



TOPIC & RATIONALE: -
Board Officer Elections

We believe:
The board should vote on board officers based on the qualities of the person seeking each
position.
Board officer elections must be in compliance with the law.

PROTOCOL.:
We Agree:
e The school board officers for Los Banos USD are:
— Board President
— Vice President
— Clerk

e  School board officers are elected every year in December during the School Board
Organizational Meeting
e  During the Organizational Meeting:
— Individual board members have the opportunity to express interest in serving as a
board officer
— More than one board member may be nominated for any office
— Board members may accept or decline the nomination
— The vote for board officer positions will occur in accordance with Brown Act
-and/or other legal requirements, and Robert’s Rules of Order guidelines.

" TOPIC & RATIONALE:
Staff Reports to the Board of Education

We believe:
Board members need sufficient information to make informed decisions on
behalf of the community. The board has a responsibility to understand and be able fo explain
district progress toward the achievement of district goals. The board must feel competent fo
address significant issues or topics that are facing the district to the staff and out in the
community.
PROTOCOL.:
We agree:
Major staff reports to the board of education, (for example reports on progress toward district
goals or on issues of significance to the district and/or community), should include:
»  Background and history of the topic
e  Relevant facts, data and information
o  What was the process that was used and who was involved in the development of the
recommended action
e Important aspects of the staff action plan:
- Necessary resources (people, cost, facilities, materials, etc.)
- Who will be involved in the implementation
- Timelines - with the end point
- Intended results / outcomes
e Recommendation from superintendent or designated staff member
Other options that were considered
Rationale for this recommendation

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 13 October, 2017

155



Topic and Rational
Honoring the Brown Act and Closed Session
We believe:

The Brown Act regulates many aspects of local agency meetings in both open and closed
sessions. Regularly scheduled meeting agendas will be published at least 72 hours prior to the
meeting, and special or emergency meeting agendas will be posted at least 24 hours prior to
the meeting. Closed Session protocols will be strictly observed.

PROTOCOL:
We Agree:
¢  Board members will honor the definition of a meeting as described in the Brown Act.
¢  Board members recognize that information acquired during a closed session is
confidential and may not be disclosed to a third party.
*  Board members recognize that intentional violations of the Brown Act are
misdemeanors,

Topic and Rational

Responding to Constituents’ Concerns or Complaints
We believe:
That we need a standard that we will all follow consistently.

PROTOCOL:

We Agree to:

® Receive —Listen without interruption and without preparing a response to the person’s issues
or concerns, unless it is an issue that may come before us in our judicial role - that
information will be shared with the entire Board at the appropriate place and time - during the
hearing.

® Repeat - If it is appropriate for us to listen to the concern, we will paraphrase or ask a
clarifying question to ensure understanding of what has been said.

* Request — Ask what the person sees as the solution to the problem or concern. Ask what
they would have us do with the information they have given us.

® Review — The conversation (and next steps, if any).

® Redirect - Put the person back into the system at the appropriate place.

® Report - Notify the Superintendent of the conversation so that he has the full picture and can
follow through as appropriate and/or necessary.

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 14 October, 2017

156



Topic and Rational
Site Visits
We believe:

That site visits are important, as they build relationships and enable us to see what is
happening in the schools — become familiar with sites and programs. They build morale and
enable schools to share their accomplishments. Visiting schools enables us to show our support
and better understand issues.

During site visits, we do not want to be a disruption, a distraction or disrespectful. We believe
in the concept of “no surprises.”
PROTOCOL.:
We Agree:

e When possible, to visit schools when we are invited.

e  That when the Superintendent plans a site visit, he will send out a notice to all. The
first three Board Members to respond to his invitation, will accompany him on his
visit.

e  That Board Members wishing to schedule their own visits, will work with the
principals to arrange a time that is convenient for that administrator and school.

e  The Board Member and the Principal will notify the Superintendent about the
scheduled visit.

e Atall visits, Board members will sign-in at the office and wear their badges.

Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 15 QOctober, 2017

157



We have reviewed and agree to follow the aforementioned governance team
norms and protocols in order to support a positive and productive working
relationship among the Los Banos Unified School District Board of
Education, staff, students and the community. We shall renew this
agreement at each annually.

Affirmed on this 14™ day of December, 2017

Anthony Parreira, Board President Dennis Areias, Vice President

Margaret Benton, Clerk Megan Goin, Trustee

Ray Martinez, Trustee Gary Munoz, Trustee

Marlene Smith, Trustee Mark E. Marshall, Ed.D., Superintendent
Los Banos USD Governance Handbook 16 October, 2017

158



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Program Director of Preschool Programs (REVISED)

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action X Discussion/Information

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board approve the revised job description for Program Director of
Preschool Programs. The California State Preschool Program differs from K-12 education in
operations including program curriculum, enrollment, attendance, budget, fiscal reports, facility,
licensing, evaluation and accountability to the State of California. The position has been under
the supervision of the Director of Special Services and will remain in the Special Services
Department with the Director of Special Services having oversight of the program and the
position.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Board previously approved a job description for the Program Director of Preschool
Programs which indicated that the Program Director of Preschool Programs would report to the
Assistant Superintendent of Elementary Education. After a discussion with the Superintendent,
Assistant Superintendent of Elementary Education and Director of Special Services it was
decided that it would be best for supervision of the preschool program and the Program Director
of Preschool Programs to remain with the Special Services Division. The essential functions of
the job description were not altered as a result of the change in supervision.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None at this time.

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

The Child Development State grant provides the funding for the position.

ORIGINATOR: Tammie Calzadillas, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent
Date: December 14, 2017

159



Job Description
Los Banos Unified School District

Program Director of Preschool Program

Purpose Statement

The job of Program Director of Preschooi Program is done for the purposefs of directing preschool
programs and services; providing information and serving as a resource to others: achieving defined
objectives by planning, evaluating, developing, implementing and maintaining services in compliance with
established guidelines; and serving as a member of the leadership team.

This job reports to Director of Special Services

Essential Functions

Collaborates with internal and external personnel (e.g. other administrators, auditors, public agencies,
community members, etc.) for the purpose of implementing and/or maintaining services and programs.

Compiles data from a wide variety of sources (e.g. staff, public agencies, etc.) for the purpose of
implementing policies and procedures and/or monitoring program components.

Directs department cperations; the maintenance of services and the implementation of new programs
and/or processes for the purpose of providing services within established timeframes and in compliance
with related requirements.

Facilitates meetings, workshops, seminars, etc. (e.g. professional development for preschooi staff;
monthly QRIS meeting; regulatory requirements, etc.) for the purpose of identifying issues, developing
recommendations, supporting other staff, and serving as a District representative.

Oversees funding for preschool program from the state (e.g. budget allocations, expenditures, fund
balances and related financial activities, etc.) for the purpose of ensuring that allocations are accurate,
revenues are recorded, expenses are within budget limits and/or fiscal practices are followed.

Participates in a variety of meetings (e.g. workshops, inter and intra district committees, community and
public agencies, seminars, conferences, as well as Board meetings to seek approval for how budget is
appropriated, etc.) for the purpose of conveying and gathering information regarding a wide variety of
subjects required to carry out their administrative responsibilities.

Performs personnel administrative functions (e.g. hiring, counseling, training, supervising, evaluating,
providing professional development opportunities, etc.) for the purpose of maintaining necessary
staffing, enhancing productivity of staff, and ensuring necessary department/program outcomes are
achieved.

Prepares a wide variety of often complex materials (e.g. state action plans developed as result of
ECERS, Early Childhood Environmental Rating Scale, budgets, funding requests, reports, analyses,
recommendations, procedures, etc.) for the purpose of documenting activities and issues, meeting
compliance requirements, providing audit references, making presentations, and/or providing supporting
materials for requested actions.

Presents information on a variety of topics related to administrative responsibilities (e.g. financial
information, overviews of programs/services, policies and procedures, etc.) for the purpose of providing
general information, training others, implementing actions, etc.

Researches a variety of topics (e.g. grants, community service organizations, etc.) for the purpose of
being knowledgeable on trends and changes and/or making recommendations.

Responds to inquiries of staff, district personnel, other professional organizations, etc. for the purpose of
providing information and/or direction as may be required.

Program Director of Preschool Program Page 1 of 3

160



® Serves as a resource to district personnel and as a liaison to community agencies (e.g. district
committees, interagency boards, state superintendent, etc.) for the purpose of explaining procedures
conveying and/or receiving information as needed for the planning, developing and evaluating of
services related to child care.

Other Functions
¢ Performs other related duties as assigned for the purpose of ensuring the efficient and effective
functioning of the work unit.

Job Requirements: Minimum Qualifications
Skills, Knowledge and Abilities

SKILLS are required to perform multiple, highly complex, technical tasks with a need to occasionally upgrade skills in
order to meet changing job conditions. Specific skill based competencies required to satisfactorily perform the
functions of the job include: operating standard office equipment including utilizing pertinent software applications;
planning and managing projects and programs; overseeing program financial activities; developing effective working
refationships; preparing and maintaining accurate records; and administering personnel policies and procedures: and
coordinating with other agencies.

KNOWLEDGE is required to perform algebra and/or geometry; review and interpret highly technical information,
write technical materials, and/or speak persuasively to implement desired actions; and analyze situations to define
issues and draw conclusions. Specific knowledge based competencies required to satisfactorily perform the
functions of the job include: pertinent laws, codes, policies, and/or regulations; personnel processes; standard
business practices; teaching strategies; working with families; and stages of child development.

ABILITY is required to schedule a number of activities, meetings, and/or events; often gather, collate, and/or classify
data; and use job-related equipment. Flexibility is required to independently work with others in a wide variety of
circumstances; work with data utilizing defined but different processes; and operate equipment using a variety of
standardized methods. Ability is also required to work with a significant diversity of individuals and/or groups; work
with data of varied types and/or purposes; and utilize a variety of types of job-related equipment. Independent
problem solving is required to analyze issues and create action plans. Problem solving with data frequently requires
independent interpretation of guidelines; and problem solving with equipment is limited to moderate. Specific ability
based competencies required to satisfactorily perform the functions of the job include: establishing and maintaining
effective working relationships; meeting deadlines and schedules; setting priorities; working with multiple projects,
frequent interruptions, and changing work priorities: working with detailed information/data and maintaining accurate
records; maintaining confidentiality; and facilitating communication between persons with frequently divergent
positions.

Responsibility

Responsibilities include: working under limited supervision using standardized practices and/or methods; directing
other persons within a department, large work unit, and/or across several smail work units; supervising the use of
funds. Utilization of resources from other work units is often required to perform the job's functions. There is a
continual opportunity to impact the organization's services.

Work Environment

The usual and customary methods of performing the job's functions require the following physical demands: some
lifting. carrying, pushing, and/or pulling, and significant fine finger dexterity. Generally the job requires 0% sitting,
0% walking, and 0% standing. This job is performed in a generally clean and healthy environment.

Experience: Job related experience within a specialized field is required,
Education: Masters degree in job-related area.

Equivalency:

Required Testing: Certificates and Licenses
TB Clearance Early Childhood Education Certificate
Continuing Educ. / Training: Clearances
Criminal Justice Fingerprint/Background Clearance
TB Screen
FLSA Status Approval Date Salary Grade
Program Director of Preschool Program Page 2 of 3

161



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Policy Changes/Updates (Second Reading)

REQUESTED ACTION:  Adopt

Action X Discussion/information

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board adopt the following Board Policies as submitted.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

This is a part of routine policy update and Manual Maintenance program. This is the first reading
of the October 2017 updated policies. These policies address mandated legal changes. The
updates are primarily legal requirements and/or changes in the law. Below are the specific
reasons for the policy updates. BP 3513.4 Drugs and Alcohol Free Schools, AR 5113.11
Attendance Supervision, BP/AR 5113.12 District School Attendance Review Board-SARB and
BP/AR 1113(a) District and School Web Sites are NEW policies to the district.

BP 0400 Comprehensive Plan

BP/AR 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan-LCAP

BP 3513.4 Drugs and Alcohol Free Schools- New Policy

BP/AR 5113.1 Chronic Absence and Truancy

BP/AR 1113 (a) District and School Web Sites

AR 5113.11 Attendance Supervision- New Policy

BP/AR 5113.12 District School Attendance Review Board-SARB- New Policy
BP 5131.6 Alcohol and Other Drugs

AR 6173.1 Educations for Foster Youth

BB 9150 Student Board Members

BP 0400 - Comprehensive Plans

(BP revised)
Policy updated to include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) as a comprehensive plan of the
district and to emphasize the need for consistency among the documents that set direction for the district.

BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan

(BP/AR revised)
Policy and regulation updated to delete references to 5 CCR 15497.5 (repealed) which formerly contained
the LCAP template. The LCAP template continues to be approved by the State Board of Education and is
available on the California Department of Education (CDE) web site. Policy also adds a definition of
"numerically significant student subgroups” whose needs must be addressed in the LCAP. Regulation also
deletes requirement to use the state's Academic Performance Index (API) as a measure of student
achievement, as the APl has been replaced by a new state accountability system.

162




BP 3513.4 - Drug and Alcohol Free Schools

(BP added)
New policy prohibits the possession, use, or sale of drugs or alcohol by any person on district property and
addresses enforcement and discipline for violations of this policy. Policy also reflects NEW LAW
(Proposition 64, 2016) which prohibits any person from possessing, smoking, or ingesting cannabis on
school grounds while children are present,

BP/AR 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy

(BP/AR revised)
Policy updated to reflect the inclusion of a chronic absence indicator in the California School Dashboard
effective in the fall of 2018, add examples of interventions for attendance problems, and delete section on
"School Attendance Review Board" since that material is now covered in BP/AR 5113,12 - District School
Attendance Review Board. Regulation updated to delete references to 5 CCR 15497.5 (repealed), which
formerly contained the LCAP template that is now available on the CDE web site, and to delete section on
the appointment and general duties of attendance supervisors, now covered in AR 5113.11 - Attendance
Supervision.

BP/AR 1113(a) - District and School Web Sites

(BP/AR revised)
Policy updated to (1) clarify the district's responsibility to make district and school web sites accessible to
individuals with disabilities; (2) reflect laws prohibiting web site operators from using web site information
to amass a profile about a student, engage in targeted advertising to students, or sell or disclose a student's
information, including NEW LAW (AB 2799, 2016) which prohibits such activities for web sites used
primarily for preschool and prekindergarten purposes; and (3) clarify options related to posting student
photographs on district and school web sites together with their names. Regulation updated to (1) add
section on "Design Standards,” including standards for web site accessibility to individuals with
disabilities; (2) reflect NEW LAW (AB 2257, 2016) whicli requires posting a prominent, direct link to the
current board meeting agenda or to an integrated agenda management platform, effective January 1, 2019;
and (3) clarify requirements related to posting copyrighted material.

AR 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision

(AR added)
New regulation addresses the appointment of a district attendance supervisor and reflects NEW LAW (AB
2815, 2016) which expresses the Legislature's intent that the attendance supervisor fulfills specified duties.

BP/AR 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board

(BP/AR added)
New policy and regulation are for use by districts that have established their own local school attendance

review board (SARB), and reflect the basic purposes, functions, and operations of the SARB.

BP 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs

(BP revised)
Policy updated to reflect the goals and purposes of the federal Student Support and Academic Enrichment
Grants program, as established by the Every Student Succeeds Act. Policy also deletes material on drug and
alcohol master plans and county primary prevention programs, since the related laws repealed on their own
terms.

AR 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth

(AR revised)
Regulation updated to reflect the Every Student Succeeds Act, which amends the definition of a foster
youth's "best interest" and requires districts and child welfare agencies to come to an agreement as to how
transportation will be provided to enable foster youth to attend their school of origin.

163



BB 9150 Student Board Members

(BB revised)
Assembly Bill (AB) 261 amends Education Code section 35012, subdivision (d) to provide all student

board members preferential voting rights, along with Senate Bill (SB) 468 amends Education Code section 35012 to
require that school districts provide open meeting materials to student board members at the same time as other
school board members.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This activity is operational in nature.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None
ORIGINATOR: Dr. Mark Marshall, Superintendent
DATE: December 14, 2017

164



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0400(a)
COMPREHENSIVE PLANS

The Governing Board believes that careful planning is essential to effective implementation of
district programs and policies. Comprehensive plans shall identify cohesive strategies for school

improvement, ard provide stability in district operations, and be aligned to ensure consistency
among district approaches for student academic growth and achievement.

aﬂ%epi-}aiee—eemﬁfehenswe Comnrehenswe plans adopted bv the dlstrlct shall lnclude the

local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and other plans required by law or
determined by the Board to be in the best interest of the district. Such plans may describe;
but-net-belimited-to; anticipated short- and long-term needs, measurable outcomes, priorities,
activities, available resources, timelines, staff responsibilities, and strategies for internal and
external communications regarding the plan.

(cf. 0000 - Vision)

(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

(cf- 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education)
(cf- 0440 - District Technology Plan)

(cf 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)

(cf- 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

(cf: 0500 - Accountability)

(cf 1112 - Media Relations)

(cf- 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)
(cf- 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies)

(cf 4141.6/4241.6 - Concerted Action/Work Stoppage)
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)

The process for developing comprehensive plans shall imvite include broad participation of
school and community representatives. Committees may, and when required by law shall, be
appointed to assist in the development of such plans District comprehenswe nlans are sub ject
to review and approval by the Board. , :

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups)

165



(cf 6020 - Parent Involvement)
(cf. 9130 - Board Committees)

BP 0400(b)

COMPREHENSIVE PLANS (continued)

Note: In certain situations. school-level plans are required. For example. each school that participates in

specified state and/or federal categorical programs must establish a school site council for the purpose of

developing and approving a single plan for student achievement pursuant to Education Code 64001: see

BP/AR 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils. In districts with over 2.500 averase daily attendance. each school
[ must develop a school safety plan pursuant to Education Code 32281 and 32286: see BP/AR 0450 -
Comprehensive Safety Plan. Other school-level plans may be required by law or Board policy or developed
at the discretion of the school site.

In—addition;—sSchool-level plans may be developed to meet the unique circumstances of
individual school sites provided that they are consistent with law, distriet-vision; Board policies,
district administrative regulations, the district vision, the LCAP, and other districtwide plans.
School plans may shall be subject to review and approval of the Superintendent or designee
and/er-the-Beard, except when law or Board policy requires Board approval of the plan.

(¢f- 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)

Comprehensive plans shall be available to the public. and shall be reviewed and updated at
regular intervals as specified within the plan or required by law.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

32280-32289 School safery plans

35035 Powers and duties of the superintendent

35291 Rules (power of governing board)

39831.3 Transportation safety plan

52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan
56195-56195.10 Comprehensive local plans for special education
56205-56208 Requirements for special education plan

64001 Single school plan for student achievement, consolidated application programs
CODE QF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

560 Civil defense and disaster preparedness plans

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6312 Local educational agency plan

Management Resources:

ESBAPUBLICATIONS

WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org

166



(6/85 2/98) 10/17

167



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0460(a)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN

Note: The following policy is optional. Education Code 52060-52077 require the Governing Board to adopt and
annually update, on or before July I, a local control and accountability plan (LCAP). Pursuant to Education
Code 52060, the LCAP must include goals and actions aligned with eight state priorities related to (1) the degree
to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed, students have sufficient access to standards-
based instructional materials, and facilities are maintained in good repair; (2) implementation of and student
access to state academic content and performance standards; (3) parent/guardian involvement; (4) student
achievement; (5) student engagement; (6) school climate; (7) student access to and enrollment in a broad course
of study, including programs and services provided to benefit low-income students, English learners, and/or
foster youth (i.e., "unduplicated students" for purposes of supplemental and concentration orants under the

local control funding formula); and (8) student outcomes in the specified course of study. Education Code 52060
provides that, in addition to addressing the state priorities in the LCAP, the district may establish and address
local priorities. Examples include priorities for student wellness and other conditions of children, professional
development, community involvement, and effective governance and leadership. See the accompanying
administrative regulation for further information about the required content of the LCAP.

The Governing Board desires to ensure the most effective use of available funding to improve

outcomes for all students. A community-based; comprehensive, data-driven planning process
shall be used to identify annual goals and specific actions and to facilitate continuous

improvement of district practices.

{cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

et may—use—an—electron ermpiate;—accessible—on—the CDE'sweb-site,—to—create—thei :
Pursuant to Education Code 52064, the State Board of Education (SBE) has adopted a template that
districts must use to complete the LCAP. An electronic version of the template is available on the
California Department of Education's (CDE) web site.

The Board shall adopt a districtwide local control and accountability plan (LCAP), fellowing
based on the template provided-in5-CCR15497-5 adopted by the State Board of Education,

168



that addresses the state priorities in Education Code 52060 and any local

BP 0460(b)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

priorities adopted by the Board. The LCAP shall be updated on or before July 1 of each year and,
like the district budget, shall cover the next fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.
(Education Code 52060, 52064; 5 CCR 15497-5-15494-15497)

(cf. 3100 - Budget)

Note: Education Code 52060 requires that the LCAP include annual goals to be achieved for all students
and for each numerically significant student subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052. For schools
with 11-99 students, numerically significant student subgroups are defined by the Superintendent of
Public Instruction (SPI) with approval by the SBE. In addition, several state priorities address programs

__ald_s_ervices for "undupligated students." as defined in_Edl_lcation Code 42238.01-42238.02.

The LCAP shall focus on improving outcomes for all students, particularly those who are
"unduplicated students" and-other or are part of any numerically significant student
subgroup that is at risk of or is underperforming students.

Unduplicated students include students who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals, English
learners, and foster youth, and-are-counted-only-once as defined in Education Code 42238.01
for purposes of the local control funding formula. (Education Code 42238.02)

(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)
(cf. 6173.1 ~ Education for Foster Youth)
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners)

Numerically significant student subgroups include ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically
disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster vouth, and
homeless students, when there are at least 30 students in the subgroup or at least 15 foster
vouth or homeless students, or as otherwise defined bv the Superintendent of Public
Instruction (SPI). (Education Code 52052)

(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
fcf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

169



The Superintendent or designee shall review the single plan for student achievement (SPSA)
submitted by each district school pursuant to Education Code 64001 to ensure that the specific
actions included in the LCAP are consistent with strategies included in the SPSA. (Education
Code 52062)

BP 0460(c)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)

The LCAP shall also be aligned with other district and school plans to the extent possible in
order to minimize duplication of effort and provide clear direction for program implementation.

(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans)

(¢f. 0440 - District Technology Plan)
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf- 5030 - Student Wellness)

(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)

(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)

Any complaint that the district has not complied with legal requirements pertaining to the LCAP
may be filed pursuant to AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. (Education Code 52075)

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)
Plan Development

The Superintendent or designee shall gather data and information needed for effective and
meaningful plan development and present it to the Board and community. Such data and
information shall include, but not be limited to, data regarding the number of students in student
subgroups, disaggregated data on student achievement levels, and information about current
programs and expenditures.

Note: Education Code 52060 requires consultation on plan development with all of the groups listed below. The
Board may delegate responsibility for arranging meetings and other input opportunities to the Superintendent or
designee.

5 CCR 15495 defines what it means to consult with students, including unduplicated students and other
numerically significant student subgroups, and gives examples of methods that may be used for this consultation.
D . 1 d 0 namer: s ciond . boroun-ineludes-ethpiesuboroun ude azith

54 i d = d H oHP

Sup dent-of Pub RSty SPD with-4 oo ~State regulations do not provide examples
of consultation with groups other than students, but consultations might include surveys, the establishment of an
advisory committee consisting of representatives of all the specified groups, solicitation of feedback from the

170



groups after a draft plan is available, discussion of the LCAP at staff meetings, and communication with parent
organizations, student councils, school site councils, or other established committees or organizations.

The district may expand the following paragraph to reflect district practice.

BP 0460(d)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

The Board shall consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel,
employee bargaining units, parents/guardians, and students in developing the LCAP.
Consultation with students shall enable unduplicated students and other numerically significant
student subgroups to review and comment on LCAP development and may include surveys of
students, student forums, student advisory committees, and/or meetings with student government
bodies or other groups representing students. (Education Code 52060; 5 CCR 15495)

{cf 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf- 4140/4240/4340 - Bargaining Units)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

Public Review and Input

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 52063 and 5 CCR 15495, the Board is required to establish a parent advisory
committee that is composed of a majority of parents/guardians and includes at least one parent/guardian of an
unduplicated student. In addition, if district enrollment includes at least 15 percent English learners, with at least
50 students who are English learners, the Board is required to establish an English leammer parent advisory
committee which, pursuant to 5 CCR 15495 as-amsended, must include a majority of parents/guardians of English
learners. The district may use existing parent advisory committees for these purposes if the committee
composition complies with Education Code 52063 and 5 CCR 15945. However, the district should consider
whether such opportunities need to be expanded to achieve significant levels of stakeholder involvement in the
planning process as intended by the law.

The Board shall establish a parent advisory committee to review and comment on the LCAP. The
committee shall be composed of a majority of parents/guardians and shall include at least one
parent/guardian of an unduplicated student as defined above. (Education Code 52063; 5 CCR
15495)

Whenever district enrollment includes at least 15 percent English learners, with at least 50
students who are English learners, the Board shall establish an English learner parent advisory
committee composed of a majority of parents/guardians of English learners. (Education Code
52063; 5 CCR 15495)

The Superintendent or designee shall present the LCAP to the committee(s) before it is submitted

to the Board for adoption, and shall respond in writing to comments received from the
committee(s). (Education Code 52062)

171



| Note: Education Code 52062 requires notification to the public of the opportunity to submit written comments
on the proposed LCAP, including notification in the primary language of parents/guardians when required by
Education Code 48985. Pursuant to Education Code 48985, whenever 15 percent or more of the students in a
school speak a single primary language other than English, notifications sent to parents/guardians of such
| students must be written in the primary language as well as in English; see BP 5145.6 - Parental Notifications.

BP 0460(e)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify members of the public of the opportunity to submit
written comments regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in the
LCAP. The notification shall be provided using the most efficient method of notification
possible, which may not necessarily include producing printed notices or sending notices by
mail. All written notifications related to the LCAP shall be provided in the primary language of
parents/guardians when required by Education Code 48985. (Education Code 52062)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

oposition—SL M

o

‘ Note: Pursuant to Education Code 305, as-amended-by Prop on—38 mber-20 el 1o
2017 the LCAP parent and community engagement process must include solicitation of input as described in the
following paragraph. Also see BP/AR 6174 - Education for English Language Learners for further information

regarding the types of language acquisition programs that may be offered to students. '

As part of the parent and community engagement process, the district shall solicit input on
effective and appropriate instructional methods, including, but not limited to, establishing
language acquisition programs to enable all students, including English learners and native
English speakers, to have access to the core academic content standards and to become proficient
in English. (Education Code 305-306)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 42127, the Board eannet must not adopt a district budget unti] the LCAP is
in place for the budget year; see BP 3100 - Budget. The budget must include the expenditures necessary to
implement the plan that will be effective during the subsequent fiscal year. If it does not, the County
Superintendent of Schools will disapprove the district's budget.

The Board shall hold at least one public hearing to solicit the recommendations and comments of
members of the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in
the LCAP. The public hearing shall be held at the same meeting as the budget hearing required
pursuant to Education Code 42127 and AR 3100 - Budget. (Education Code 42127, 52062)

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

Adoption of the Plan

172



The Board shall adopt the LCAP prior to adopting the district budget, but at the same public
meeting. This meeting shall be held after the public hearing described above, but not on the same
day as the hearing.

The Board may adopt revisions to the LCAP at any time during the period in which the plan is in
effect, provided the Board follows the process to adopt the LCAP pursuant to Education Code
52062 and the revisions are adopted in a public meeting. (Education Code 52062)

BP 0460(f)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

Submission of Plan to County Superintendent of Schools

| Note: Education Code 52070 requires the district to submit the LCAP to the County Superintendent. The
County Superintendent may seek written clarification of the contents of the plan and may submit
recommendations for amendments as provided below. He/she is required to approve the LCAP on or before
October 8 if he/she determines that (1) the LCAP adheres to the template in-5-CCR-15497.5 adopted by the
SBE; (2) the district budget includes expenditures sufficient to implement the specific actions in the LCAP; and
(3) the LCAP adheres to supplemental and concentration grant expenditure requirements specified in Education
Code 42238.07 for unduplicated students. In determining whether the district has fully demonstrated that it will
use supplemental and concentration funds to increase or improve services for unduplicated students, 5 CCR
15497 requires the County Superintendent to review any descriptions of districtwide or schoolwide services
provided.

Not later than five days after adoption of the LCAP, the Board shall file the LCAP with the
County Superintendent of Schools. (Education Code 52070)

If the County Superintendent sends, by August 15, a written request for clarification of the
contents of the LCAP, the Board shall respond in writing within 15 days of the request. If the
County Superintendent then submits recommendations for amendments to the LCAP within 15
days of receiving the Board's response, the Board shall consider those recommendations in a
public meeting within 15 days of receiving the recommendations. (Education Code 52070)

Monitoring Progress

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect the district's timeline for reviewing ]
evaluations—of the progress and effectiveness of strategies included in the LCAP. Sueh—+Reports should be
provided to the Board in sufficient time to allow for any necessary changes in the annual update to the LCAP by
July 1 of each year, as required by Education Code 52060-52061. The California School Dashboard provides a
tool to assist in evaluation of district and school performance and includes all of the state priorities for the LCAP
described in Education Code 52060. !

The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually in accordance with the
timeline and indicators established by him/her and the Board, regarding the district's progress
toward attaining each goal identified in the LCAP. Evaluation shall include, but not be limited

to, an assessment of district and school performance based-on-evaluation-rubries-adopted-by-the

173



State -reported on the California
School Dashboard. Evaluation data shall be used to recommend any necessary revisions to the
LCAP.

(cf- 0500 - Accountability)

BP 0460(g)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

Technical Assistance/Intervention

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 52071, the Board may, at its discretion and at the district's expense, request
technical assistance as described in items #1-3 below. In addition, the County Superintendent is required to
provide such technical assistance whenever he/she does not approve the district's LCAP and/or the district fails to
improve student achievement across more than one state priority described in Education Code 52060, as
determined using the SBE-evaluation-rubrie Dashboard.

When it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may submit a request to the County
Superintendent for technical assistance, including, but not limited to: (Education Code 52071)

1. Assistance in the identification of district strengths and weaknesses in regard to state
priorities, and review of effective, evidence-based programs that apply to the district's
goals

2. Assistance from an academic expert, team of academic experts, or another district in the

county in identifying and implementing effective programs to improve the outcomes for
student subgroups

3. Advice and assistance from the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence
established pursuant to Education Code 52074

In the event that the County Superintendent requires the district to receive technical assistance
pursuant to Education Code 52071, the Board shall review all recommendations received from
the County Superintendent or other advisor and shall consider revisions to the LCAP as
appropriate in accordance with the process specified in Education Code 52062.

| Note: Education Code 52072 provides that the SPI, with approval of the SBE, may intervene when a district
meets both of the following criteria: (1) the district did not improve the outcomes for three or more student
subgroups identified pursuant to Education Code 52052, or all of the student subgroups if the district has fewer
than three subgroups, in regard to more than one state or local priority in three out of four consecutive school
years; and (2) the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE) has provided advice and
assistance to the district and submits a finding that the district failed or is unable to implement the CCEE's

174



recommendations or that the district's inadequate performance is so persistent or acute as to require intervention.
For any district identified as needing intervention, the SPI or an academic trustee appointed by the SPI may, with
approval of the SBE, take one or more of the actions listed in items #1-3 below.

If the Superintendent-of PublicInstruction{SPI)}-identifies the district as needing intervention

pursuant to Education Code 52072, the district shall cooperate with any action taken by the SPI
or any academic advisor appointed by the SPI, which may include one or more of the following:

1. Revision of the district's LCAP

BP 0460(h)
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)
2. Revision of the district's budget in accordance with changes in the LCAP
3. A determination to stay or rescind any district action that would prevent the district from

improving outcomes for all student subgroups, provided that action is not required by a
collective bargaining agreement

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
305-306 English language education
17002 State School Building Lease-Purchase Law, including definition of good repair
33430-33436 Learning Communities for School Success Program, grants for LCAP implementation
41020 Audits
42127 Public hearing on budget adoption
42238.01-42238.07 Local control funding formula
44238.9 County superintendent review of teacher assignment
48985 Parental notices in languages other than English
51210 Course of study for grades 1-6
51220 Course of study for grades 7-12
52052 AecademicPerformancelndex;nNumerically significant student subgroups
52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan
52302 Regional occupational centers and programs
52372.5 Linked learning pilot program
54692 Partnership academies
60119 Sufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials; hearing and resolution
60605.8 California Assessment of Academic Achievement; Academic Content Standards Commission
60811.3 Assessment of language development
64001 Single plan for student achievement
99300-99301 Early Assessment Program
CODE OF REGULATIONS. TITLE 5
15494-15497.5 15497 Local control and accountability plan and spending requirements
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
6312 Local educational agency plan
6826 Title I funds, local plans

Management Resources:

175



CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Promising Practices for Developing and Implementing LCAPs, Governance Brief, November 2016
LCFF Rubrics, Issue 1. What Boards Need to Know About the New Rubrics, Governance Brief, rev.
October 2016

CALIFORNI4A DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

California School Accounting Manual

California School Dashboard '

LCFF Frequently Asked Questions

Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template

Family Engagement Framework: A Tool for California School Districts, 2014

California Career Technical Education Model Curriculum Standards, 2013

Management Resources continued: (see next page)

BP 0460(})

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

Management Resources: (continued)
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS (continued)
California Common Core State Standards: English Language Arts and Literacy in History/Social
Studies, Science, and Technical Subjects, rev. 2013
California Common Core State Standards: Mathematics, rev. 2013
California English Language Development Standards, 2012
WEB SITES
CSBA: http./fwww.csba.org
California Department of Education: http.//www.cde.ca.gov
California Scheol Dashboard: http://www.caschooldashboard.org

176



(4/15 3/17) 10/17

177



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans AR 0460(a)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN

Note: Education Code 52060-52077 require the Governing Board to adopt and annually update, on or before
July 1, a three-year local control and accountability plan (LCAP). See the accompanying Board policy for
information about plan development and monitoring.

Goals and Actions Addressing State and Local Priorities

Note: Education Code 52060 requires that the LCAP include annual goals, aligned with specified state
priorities, to be achieved for all students and for each numerically significant subgroup as defined in Education
Code 52052. Pursuant to Education Code 52052, as-amended—by-AB—104—(Ch—13Statutes—of-2015); a
numerically significant subgroup includes ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English
learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students, when there are at least 30 students in the
subgroup (or at least 15 foster youth or homeless students) in the school or district. For schools or districts with
11-99 students, numerically significant student subgroups are defined by the Superintendent of Public Instruction
(SPI) with approval by the State Board of Education (SBE).

In addition, several state priorities address programs and services for "unduplicated students." For purposes of
supplemental and concentration grants allocated through the local control funding formula (LCFF),
"unduplicated students" are defined by Education Code 42238.02 as students eligible for free or reduced-price
meals, English learners, and foster youth; see the accompanying Board policy.

The district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) shall include, for the district and each
district school: (Education Code 52060)

1. A description of the annual goals established for all students and for each numerically
significant subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052, including ethnic subgroups,
socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities,
foster youth, and homeless students. The LCAP shall identify goals for each of the
following state priorities:

a. The degree to which district teachers are appropriately assigned in accordance
with Education Code 44258.9 and fully credentialed in the subject areas and for
the students they are teaching; every district student has sufficient access to
standards-aligned instructional materials as determined pursuant to Education
Code 60119; and school facilities are maintained in good repair as specified in
Education Code 17002

(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf 3517 - Facilities Inspection)

(cf 41122 - Certification)

(cf- 4113 - Assignment)

178



(¢f. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)

AR 0460(b)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

b. Implementation of the academic content and performance standards adopted by
the State Board of Education (SBE), including how the programs and services
will enable English learners to access the Common Core State Standards and the
English language development standards for purposes of gaining academic
content knowledge and English language proficiency

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)
(cf- 6174 - Education for English Learners)

c. Parent/guardian involvement, including efforts the district makes to seek
parent/guardian input in district and school site decision making and how the
district will promote parent/guardian participation in programs for unduplicated
students, as defined in Education Code 42238.02 and Board policy, and students
with disabilities

(cf: 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)
(¢f. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 52060, the LCAP must address student achievement as measured by
specified indicators, including the Academic Performance Index (API), as applicable. However, the API
has been replaced by the California School Dashboard, which examines the performance of schools.
districts, and defined student groups on measures of academic performance. high school sraduation rate.
English learner progress, college/career preparation, suspension rate. and chronic absenteeism. Thus.
item #1d below does not include the APL Districts may use data from the Dashboard. along with the other
specified indicators. to develop goals related to student achievement,

d. Student achievement, as measured by all of the following as applicable:

(1) Statewide assessments of student achievement

&—AcademicRerformance Index

£33 (2) The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that
satisfy the requirements for entrance to the University of California and
the California State University, or career technical education sequences or
programs of study that satisfy specified requirements and align with SBE-
approved career technical education standards and frameworks, including,

but not limited to, those described in Education Code 52302, 52372.5, or
54692

179



()33 The percentage of English learners who make progress toward English
proficiency as measured by the SBE-certified assessment of English
proficiency

AR 0460(c)
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

) (4) The English learner reclassification rate

(6) (5) The percentage of students who have passed an Advanced Placement
examination with a score of 3 or higher

€5 (6) The percentage of students who participate in and demonstrate college
preparedness in the Early Assessment Program pursuant to Education
Code 99300-99301

(cf 0500 - Accountability)

(ef. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement)

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment)

(cf 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests)
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)

€. Student engagement, as measured by school attendance rates, chronic absenteeism
rates, middle school dropout rates, high school dropout rates, and high school
graduation rates, as applicable

(cf. 5113.1 ~ Chronic Absence and Truancy)
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention)
(cf. 6146.1 - Hivh School Graduation Requirements)

f. School climate, as measured by student suspension and expulsion rates and other
local measures, including surveys of students, parents/guardians, and teachers on
the sense of safety and school connectedness, as applicable

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

g. The extent to which students have access to and are enrolled in a broad course of
study that includes all of the subject areas described in Education Code 51210 and
51220, as applicable, including the programs and services developed and provided
to unduplicated students and students with disabilities, and the programs and
services that are provided to benefit these students as a result of supplemental and

180



concentration grant funding pursuant to Education Code 42238.02 and 42238.03

(cf 6143 - Courses of Study)
(cf 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

AR 0460(d)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

h. Student outcomes, if available, in the subject areas described in Education Code
51210 and 51220, as applicable

Note: In addition to goals aligned with the state priorities described in item #1 above, Education Code 52060
provides that the LCAP may include goals for local priorities established by the Board; see the accompanying
Board policy. Optional item #2 below may be revised to reflect local priorities.

2. Any goals identified for any local priorities established by the Board.
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

3. A description of the specific actions the district will take during each year of the LCAP to
achieve the identified goals, including the enumeration of any specific actions necessary
for that year to correct any deficiencies in regard to the state and local priorities specified
in items #1-2 above. Such actions shall not supersede provisions of existing collective
bargaining agreements within the district.

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 52060, in developing goals and actions for the LCAP, the Board may
consider qualitative information, including, but not limited to, the results of school quality reviews conducted
pursuant to Education Code 52052. Education Code 52052 authorizes the SPI, with approval of the SBE and
conditional upon an appropriation in the state budget, to develop and implement a program of school quality
reviews that features locally convened panels to visit schools, observe teachers, interview students, and examine
student work.

For purposes of the descriptions required by items #1-3 above, the Board may consider
qualitative information, including, but not limited to, findings that result from any school quality
reviews conducted pursuant to Education Code 52052 or any other reviews. (Education Code
52060)

For any local priorities addressed in the LCAP, the Board and Superintendent or designee shall
identify and include in the LCAP the method for measuring the district's progress toward
achieving those goals. (Education Code 52060)

To the extent practicable, data reported in the LCAP shall be reported in a manner consistent
with how information is reported on a school accountability report card. (Education Code

181



52060)

(cf- 0510 - School Accountability Report Card)

Increase or Improvement in Services for Unduplicated Students

Note: The following section is for use by districts that receive LCFF supplemental and/or concentration grant
funds. Such districts are required to increase or improve services for unduplicated students in proportion to the
increase in funds apportioned on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated

AR 0460(e)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

students; see BP 3100 - Budget. 5 CCR 15494-15496;-as-amended-by Register-2015-No—2; specify the method

for determining the percentage by which services for unduplicated students must be increased or improved above
services provided to all students in the fiscal year.

The LCAP shall demonstrate how the district will increase or improve services for unduplicated
students at least in proportion to the increase in funds apportioned on the basis of the number and
concentration of unduplicated students. (5 CCR 15494-15496)

When the district expends supplemental and/or concentration grant funds on a districtwide or
schoolwide basis during the year for which the LCAP is adopted, the district's LCAP shall: (5

CCR 15496)

1. Identify those services that are being funded and provided on a districtwide or
schoolwide basis

2. Describe how services are principally directed towards, and are effective in, meeting the
district's goals for unduplicated students in the state priority areas and any local priority
areas

3. If the enrollment of unduplicated students is less than 55 percent of district enrollment or

less than 40 percent of school enrollment, describe how these services are the most
effective use of the funds to meet the district's goals for its unduplicated students in the
state priority areas and any local priority areas. The description shall provide the basis for
this determination, including, but not limited to, any alternatives considered and any
supporting research, experiences, or educational theory. (5-CER15496}

Annual Updates

182



On or before July 1 of each year, the LCAP shall be updated using the template in5-CCR
154975 adopted by the SBE and shall include all of the following: (Education Code 52061)

1. A review of any changes in the applicability of the goals described in the existing LCAP
pursuant to the section "Goals and Actions Addressing State and Local Priorities” above

2. A review of the progress toward the goals included in the existing LCAP, an assessment
of the effectiveness of the specific actions described in the existing LCAP

AR 0460(f)

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN (continued)

toward achieving the goals, and a description of changes to the specific actions the
district will make as a result of the review and assessment

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 52061, the annual update to the LCAP must include expenditures for specific
actions included in the LCAP and expenditures serving unduplicated students. Education Code 52061 requires
that the expenditures specified in items #3-4 below be classified in accordance with the California School
Accounting Manual.

3. A listing and description of the expenditures for the fiscal year implementing the specific
actions included in the LCAP and the changes to the specific actions made as a result of
the reviews and assessment required by items #1-2 above

4, A listing and description of expenditures for the fiscal year that will serve unduplicated
students and students redesignated as fluent English proficient

Availability of the Plan

Note: Education Code 52065 requires the district to post its LCAP and annual update or revisions to the LCAP
on the district web site. In addition, the County Superintendent of Schools is required to post all district LCAPs,
or links to those plans, on the county office of education web site and to transmit all such plans to the SPI, who
will then post links to all plans on the California Department of Education web site.

The Superintendent or designee shall post the LCAP and any updates or revisions to the LCAP
on the district's web site. (Education Code 52065)

(cf- 1113 - District and School Web Sites)

183



(4/15 10/15) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

184



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3513.4(a)

DRUG AND ALCOHOL FREE SCHOOLS

Note: The following policy prohibits the possession. use. or sale of drugs or aleohol by any person on |
district property. For policy addressing the prevention and intervention of alcohol and drug use among
students. see BP 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs. For policy prohibitine emplovees from possessino,
using. or being under the influence of a controlled substance in the workplace. see BP 4020 - Drug and
Alcohol Free Workplace.

The Governing Board recognizes the need to keep district schools free of drugs and alcohol
in_order to create a safe and healthy environment conducive to learning and promote
student health and well-being. The Board prohibits the possession. use, or sale of drugs and
alcohol at any time in district-owned or leased buildings, on district property, and in
district vehicles, unless otherwise permitted by law.

(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

{¢f- 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools)

(cf. 4020 - Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace)

(cf. 4159/4259/4359 - Employee Assistance Programs)
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)

(cf 5131.62 - Tobacco)

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)

The following substances are prohibited on all district property:

1. Any substance which mav not lawfully be possessed. used. or sold in California

Note: Although Health and Safety Code 11362.1. as amended by Proposition 64 (2016). authorizes persons
age 21 vears and older to possess and use specified amounts of cannabis. Health and Safety Code 11362.3
prohibits possession or use of cannabis by persons under age 21 and prohibits all persons from possessing,
smoking, or ingesting cannabis or cannabis products on the grounds of a school. dav care center. or vouth
center while children are present. i

2. Cannabis or cannabis products (Health and Safety Code 11362.3: 21 USC 812, 844)

‘ Note: Pursuant to Business and Professions Code 25608, it is a misdemeanor to possess. consume. sell. sive.
or deliver any alcoholic beverage to anv person in a school building or on school grounds unless a specified
exception applies. Such exceptions include, but are not limited to. alcohol served during a special event.
pursuant to a license or permit obtained under the Alcohol Beverace Control Act. at district-owned
facilities at a time when students are not present. Districts that do not allow any of the specified exceptions
should revise item #3 accordingly. See AR 1330 - Use of School Facilities.

185



3. Alcoholic beverages, unless approved bv the Superintendent or designee for limited
purposes specified in Business and Professions Code 25608

BP 3513.4(b)

DRUG AND ALCOHOL FREE SCHOOLS (continued)

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Fuacilities)
(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements)

Note: Pursuant to various state laws, prescribed medication may be administered at school with written

statements from the student's parent/cuardian and authorized health care provider: see BP/AR 5141.21 -
Administerine Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions. However, Health and Safety Code 11362.79
prohibits a person who has been authorized for medical use of cannabis from smoking cannabis on the
orounds of or within 1.000 feet of a school. recreation center, or vouth center or on a school bus. and Health |
and Safety Code 11362.3 prohibits cannabis on district property while children are present as noted in item
#2 above. In addition. federal law (21 USC 812, 844) continues to prohibit the possession of cannabis, even
by medical users.

Prescription medication, except for prescribed cannabis, mayv be administered at school in
accordance with law, district policy and reculations, and written statements by the
parent/cuardian and the student's authorized health care provider as applicable.

(cf- 5141.21 - Administering Medications and Monitoring Health Conditions)

Information about the district's drug- and alcohol-free schools policy and the consequences
for violations shall be communicated clearly to emplovees, parents/guardians, students. and
the community.

Enforcement/Discipline

The Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate action to eliminate the possession,
use, or sale of alcohol and other drugs and related paraphernalia in district facilities, on
district property, in distriet vehicles, or at school-sponsored activities. As appropriate,
he/she mav direct anvone violating this policv to leave school property and/or refer the
matter to law enforcement,

(cf- 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders)

(cf. 3515.2 - Disruptions)

(cf. 5145.11 - Questioning and Apprehension by Law Enforcement)
(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure)

Students and emplovees who violate the terms of this policy mav be subject to discipline
and/or referred to assistance programs in accordance with law and Board policy.

(cf 4112.41/4212.41/4312.41 - Employee Drug Testing)
(cf. 4112.42/4212.42/4312,42 - Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus Drivers)
(cf. 4117.7/4217.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Reports)

186



(cf- 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf- 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
BP 3513.4(c)

DRUG AND ALCOHOL FREE SCHOOLS (continued)

(¢f. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE

44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

44940.5 Procedures when employvees are placed on compulsory leave of absence
45123 Emplovment after conviction of controlled substance offense
45304 Compulsory leave of absence for classified persons

48900 Suspension or expulsion (grounds)

48900.5 Suspension, limitation on imposition; exception

48901 Smoking or use of tobacco prohibited

48901.5 Prohibition of electronic signaling devices

48902 Notification of law enforcement authorities; civil or criminal immunity
48909 Narcotics or other hallucinogenic drugs

48915 Expulsion; particular circumstances

BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE

25608 Alcohol on school property; use in connection with instruction
GOVERNMENT CODE

8350-8357 Drug-free workplace

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE

11053-11058 Standards and schedules

11353.6 Juvenile Drug Trafficking and Schoolvard Act

11362.1 Possession and use of cannabis, persons age 21 and over
11362.3 Limitations on possession and use of cannabis

11362.79 Limitations on medical use of cannabis

104559 Tobacco use prohibition

PENAL CODE

13860-13864 Suppression of drug abuse in schools

VEHICLE CODE

13202.5 Drug and alcohol related offenses by person under age of 21, but aged 13 or over;
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

7101-7122 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 21

812 Schedules of controlled substances

844 Penalties for possession of controlled substance

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 41

8101-8106 Drug~Free Workplace Act

COURT DECISIONS

Ross v. Raging Wire Telecommunications, Inc., 42 Cal. 4th 920 (2008)

187



10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

188



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Students BP 5113.1(a)

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY

Note: The following optional policy addresses both chronic absence, which refers to students missing an ‘

excessive number of school days for any reason, whether excused or unexcused, and truancy, which refers to

students missing school and/or being tardy without a valid excuse. Education Code 48260 defines a "valid

excuse" for purposes of classifying students as truants; see the accompanying administrative regulation. Also see
| BP/AR 5113 - Absences and Excuses for information about methods of verification of student absences.

The Governing Board believes that exeessive—absenteeism, whether—eaused—by—exeused—or
unexcused—absenees—whatever the cause, may be an early waming sign of poor academic
achievement and may put students at risk of dropping out of school. The Board desires to ensure
that all students attend school in accordance with the state's compulsory education law and take

full advantage of educational opportunities provided by the district.

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)
(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision)

Note: The following paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Districts must monitor unexcused
absences for the purpose of identifying students who are classified as truants pursuant to Education Code 48260-
| 48273. In addition, Education Code 52060 requires districts to include the rates of school attendance, chronic |
absence, dropout, and graduation, as applicable, in their local control and accountability plan (LCAP); (see BP/AR
0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan), and chronic absence will be one of the state accountability
mdlcators in the Cahforma School Dashboard begmnmfJ in the fall of 2018 {see BP 0500 - Accountabllltw

Pursuant to the LCAP temnlate adgpted b\ the State Board of Educatlon "chromc absence" is the number

of students who are absent on 10 percent or more of the school days in the academic year (July 1 through June 30)
divided by the total enrollment during the academic year.

Other tools to calculate chronic absence are available, such as the District Attendance Trackine Tool and School
Attendance Tracking Tool from Attendance Works.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a system to accurately track student attendance in
order to identify individual students who are chronic absentees and truants, as defined in law and
administrative regulation, and to identify patterns of absence throughout the district. He/she shall
provide the Board with data on school attendance, chronic absence, and truancy rates for—all
distriet—students districtwide, for each school, and disaggregated for each numerically
significant student subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052. Such data shall be
disaggregated—and used in the development of annual goals and specific actions for student
attendance and engagement and—fer-inclusion to be included in the district's local control and
accountability plan and other applicable school and district plans.

(cf: 0400 - Comprehensive Plans)

189




(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)
BP 5113.1(b)

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY (continued)

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies that focus on prevention of attendance
problems, which may include, but are not limited to, efforts to provide a safe and positive school
environment, relevant and engaging learning experiences, school activities that help develop
students' feelings of connectedness with the school, school-based health services, and incentives
and rewards to recognize students who achieve excellent attendance or demonstrate significant
improvement in attendance. The Superintendent or designee also shall develop strategies that
enable early outreach to students as soon as they show signs of poor attendance.

(cf- 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf 5126 - Awards for Achievement)

(cf- 5131 - Conduct)

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

(cf- 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(¢cf 5141.6 - School Health Services)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

Note: In dev-el-opiﬁg- strategies for addressing chronic absence and truancy, districts may consider reasons for .
absences given by individual students as well as survey data using tools such as the California Healthv Kids
| Survey and/or the California School Climate. Health. and Learnine Survey System available from WestEd.

The Superintendent or designee shall werk-consult with students, parents/guardians, school staff,
and community agencies, as appropriate, to identify factors contributing to chronic absence and
truancy.

Interventions for students with serious attendance problems shall be desicned to meet the
specific needs of the student and mav include, but are not limited to, health care referrals,
transportation assistance, counseling for mental or emotional difficulties, academic
supports, efforts to address school or community safety concerns. discussions with the
student and parent/cuardian about their attitudes regarding schooling, or other strategies
to remove identified barriers to school attendance. He/she—also The Superintendent or
designee may collaborate with child welfare services, law enforcement, courts, public health
care agencies, other government agencies, and/or medical, mental health, and oral health care
providers to ensure-that make alternative educational programs and nutrition-health-eare;,and

other support services are-available for students and families-and-to-intervene-as-necessary-when
Fhodess losre semenie sftencdoses mecl e

(cf- 1020 - Youth Services)
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

190



(¢f. 5147 - Dropout Prevention)
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)
(cf 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
BP 5113.1(c)

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY (continued)

(cf 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)
(cf- 6175 - Migrant Education Program)

(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

(cf 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice)

(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction)

(¢f. 6184 - Continuation Education)

(cf 6185 - Community Day School)

Note: State law establishes a series of interventions that the district is required or authorized to impose depending
on the number of truancies committed by a student; see the accompanying administrative regulation. Habitually
truant students, as defined in Education Code 48262, may be referred to a school attendance review board (SARB)
if established by the county office of education or to a SARB established by the district Governing Board
pursuant to Education Code 48321; see BP/AR 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board. Instead of
the SARB process, students may be referred to a truancy mediation program operated by the county's district
attorney or probation officer pursuant to Education Code 48260.6. Education Code 48264.5 authorizes, but does
not require, students who continue to be truant after receiving these interventions to be referred to a juvenile court.
Parents/guardians of students who are identified as truants may be subject to penalties pursuant to Education
Code 48293, Penal Code 270.1, and/or Penal Code 272.

Students who are identified as truants shall be subject to the interventions specified in law and
administrative regulation.

(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board)

Note: Education Code 48900 expresses legislative intent that alternatives to suspension or expulsion be used with
students who are truant, tardy, or otherwise absent from assigned school activities; see BP 5144 - Discipline and
| BP 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process.

A student's truancy, tardiness, or other absence from school shall not be the basis for his/her eut-
ef-sehoel suspension or expulsion. Alternative diseiplinary strategies and positive reinforcement
for attendance shall be used whenever possible.

(cf- 5144 - Discipline)
(¢f. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

The Superintendent or designee shall periodically report to the Board regarding the district's
progress in improving student attendance rates for all students and for each numerically
significant student population. Such information shall be used to evaluate the effectiveness of
strategies implemented to reduce chronic absence and truancy and to make changes as needed.

191



As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall engage school staff in program evaluation
and improvement and in identifieation the determination of how to best allocate available
community resources.

[SECTION ON "SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD'" DELETED]|

BP 5113.1(d)

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
1740-1742 Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent)
37223 Weekend classes

46000 Records (attendance)

46010-46014 Absences

46110-46119 Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools
46140-46147 Attendance in junior high and high schools

48200-48208 Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance)
48225.5 Work permits, entertainment and allied industries

48240-48246 Supervisors of attendance

48260-48273 Truants

48290-48297 Failure to comply; complaints against parents
48320-48325 School attendance review boards

48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance

48400-48403 Compulsory continuation education

48900 Suspension and expulsion

49067 Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade

52052 Academic Performance Index; numerically significant student subgroups
60901 Chronic absence

GOVERNMENT CODE

54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

PENAL CODE

270.1 Chronic truancy; parent/guardian misdemeanor

272 Parent/guardian duty to supervise and control minor child; criminal liability for truancy
830.1 Peace officers

VEHICLE CODE

13202.7 Driving privileges; minors; suspension or delay for habitual truancy
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

256-258 Juvenile hearing officer

601-601.4 Habitually truant minors

11253.5 Compulsory school attendance

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

306 Explanation of absence

420-421 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes

COURT DECISIONS
L.A. v. Superior Court o San Diego County, (2012) 209 Cal. App.4th 976

192



Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Attendance Awareness Month, Fact Sheet, September 2014
ATTENDANCE WORKS PUBLICATIONS
Count Us In! Working Together to Show that Every School Day Matters, 2014
The Power of Positive Connections: Reducing Chronic Absence Through PEOPLE: Priority Early
Qutreach for Positive Linkages and Engagement, 2014

Management Resources continued: (see next page)

BP 5113.1(e)

CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY (continued)

Management Resources: (continued)
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
School Attendance Review Board Handbook: A Road Map for Improved School Attendance and
Behavior 2015
School Attendance Improvement Handbook, 2000
WEB SITES
CSBA: hitp:/rwww.csba.org
Attendance Works: http://www.attendanceworks.org
California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance: http://www.cascwa.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov
California Healthy Kids Survey: htip://chks.wested.org
California School Climate, Health, and Learning Survey System: http://www.cal-schis.wested org

193



(11/12 4/15) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

194



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation

Students AR 5113.11(a)

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION

| Note: The following optional administrative regulation is for use by districts that appoint their own
attendance supervisor and may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to Education Code 48242
and 48243, the district mayv appoint an attendance supervisor or may jointly employ an attendance
supervisor with one or more other districts. Alternatively. pursuant to Education Code 48244, the district
may contract with the County Superintendent of Schools for the supervision of attendance of district
| students, AB 2815 (Ch. 829, Statutes of 2016) amended Education Code 48244 to delete the requirement
Lthat the County Board of Education approve the district's contract with the County Superintendent.

The Superintendent or designee shall appoint an attendance supervisor and any assistant
attendance supervisor(s) as mav be necessarv to supervise the attendance of district
students. (Education Code 48240)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48245, the following paragraph is applicable to anv district with an
average daily attendance of 1.000 of more. according to the annual school report of the last preceding
| school vear.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any person appointed as an attendance
supervisor has been certificated for the work by the County Board of Education.
(Education Code 48241, 48245)

Such supervisors shall perform duties related to compulsory full-time education, truancy,
compulsory continuation education, work permits, and any additional duties prescribed by
the Superintendent or desienee. (Education Code 48240)

(cf. 5112.1 - Exemptions from Attendance)
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)

(¢f. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)
(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits)

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)

Note: Items #1-5 below mayv be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 48240. as amended by AB
2815 (Ch. 829, Statutes of 2016), states the Legislature's intent that attendance supervisors fulfill the
following duties.

The attendance supervisor shall promote a culture of attendance and establish a system to
accurately track student attendance in order to achieve all of the following: (Education

Code 48240)

195



1. Raise the awareness of school personnel, parents/cuardians, caregivers, community
partners, and local businesses of the effects of chronic absenteeism and truancy and
other challenges associated with poor attendance

AR 5113.11(b)

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION (continued)

2. Identify _and respond to grade level or student suberoup patterns of chronic
absenteeism or truancy

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

(cf. 6173 - Education _for Homeless Children)

(¢f. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)

3. Identify and address factors contributing to chronic absenteeism and habitual
truancy, including suspension and expulsion

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

4. Ensure that students with attendance problems are identified as early as possible to
provide applicable support services and interventions

5. Evaluate the effectiveness of strategies implemented to reduce chronic absenteeism
rates and truancy rates

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)

The attendance supervisor mav provide support services and interventions, including, but
not limited to, the following: (Education Code 48240)

1. A conference between school personnel. the student's parent/suardian, and the
student

2. Promotion of cocurricular and extracurricular activities that increase student
connectedness to school, such as tutoring, mentoring, the arts, service learning. or
athletics

(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)
(cf- 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts)

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

196



3. Recognition of students who achieve excellent attendance or demonstrate significant
improvement in attendance

(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement)

4. Referral of the student to a school nurse, school counselor, school psvchologist,

AR 5113.11(c)

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION (continued)

school social worker. and other student support personnel for case management and
counseling

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services}
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

5. Collaboration with child welfare services, law enforcement, courts, public health
care agencies, covernment agencies, or medical, mental health, and oral health care
providers to receive necessary services

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)

6. Collaboration with school studv teams, cuidance teams, school attendance review
teams, or other intervention-related teams to assess the attendance or behavior
problem in partnership with the student and his/her parents/suardians or
caregivers

(cf- 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

7. In schools with sienificantlv hicher rates of chronic absenteeism, identification of
barriers to attendance that mayv require schoolwide stratecies rather than case
manacement

8. Referral of the student for a comprehensive psvchosocial or psvchoeducational

assessment, including for purposes of creating an individualized education procram
for a student with disabilities or creating a plan pursuant to Section 504 of the
federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973

(cf- 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

9, Referral of the student to a school attendance review board established pursuant to
Education Code 48321 or to the probation department pursuant to Education Code
48263

197



(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board)

10. Referral of the student to a truancy mediation program operated bv the county's
district attorney or probation officer pursuant to Education Code 48260.6

] Note: The following optional paragraph mayv be revised to reflect district practice. Among the primary
roles of the attendance supervisor are the accurate tracking of student attendance and monitoring of
chronic absence in order to identify students at risk. Pursuant to Education Code 52060, districts are
required to include rates of school attendance. chronic absence. dropout, and graduation, as applicable,

AR 5113.11(d)

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION (continued)

| in_their local control and accountability plan (see BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan),
and chronic absence is one of the state accountability indicators in the California School Dashboard (see BP
0500 - Accountability).

The attendance supervisor shall annuallv report student attendance data to the
Superintendent or designee and the Governing Board. Such data shall include, by school,
orade level, and each numerically significant student suberoup as defined in Education
Code 52052, rates of school attendance, chronic absence in which students are absent on 10
percent of more of the school davs in the school vear, and dropout.’

(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE

1740 Emplovment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent)
37223 Weekend classes

46000 Records (attendance)

46010-46014 Absences

46110-46119 Attendance in kindercarten and elementary schools
46140-46147 Attendance in junior hich and hich schools
48200-48208 Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance)
48240-48246 Supervisors of attendance

48260-48273 Truants

48290-48297 Failure to comply: complaints against parents
48320-48325 School attendance review boards

48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance

48400-48403 Compulsory continuation education

52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

60901 Chronic absence

PENAL CODE

270.1 Chronic truancy; parent/vuardian misdemeanor

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

601-601.4 Habitually truant minors

11253.5 Compulsory school attendance

198



CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
306 Explanation of absence
420-421 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes

Management Resources: (see next page)

AR 5113.11(e)

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION (continued)

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
School Attendance Review Board Handbook, 2015
School Attendance Improvement Handbook, 2000
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
Attendance Works: hitp://www.attendanceworks.org
California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance: http://www.cascwa.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

199



10/17

200



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Community Relations BP 1113(a)

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES

Note: The falowing optional policy is for use by districts that maintain their own web site(s) and may be revised
to reflect district practice. District strategies for effective use of web sites may be incorporated into the district's
| comprehensive communications plan; see BP 1100 - Communication with the Public.

To enhance communication with students, parents/guardians, staff, and community members, the
Governing Board encourages the Superintendent or designee to develop and maintain district and
school web sites. The use of district and school web sites shall support the district's vision and
goals and shall be coordinated with other district communications strategies.

(cf- 0000 - Vision)

(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan)

(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public)
(cf 1112 - Media Relations)

(¢f 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

Design Standards

The Superintendent or designee shall establish design standards for district and school web sites
in order to maintain a consistent identity, professional appearance, and ease of use.

speﬂsefeé—web—sﬁes—Pursuant to Title II of the Amerlcans with Dlsabllltles Act (42 USC 12131 12134) and

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 705, 794: 34 CFR 104.1-104.39). districts have an
obligation to provide an equal opportunity to individuals with disabilities to participate in and receive the
benefits of the educational program. and must provide accommodations or modifications when necessaryv to
ensure equal treatment. Such obligations have been interpreted by the U.S. Department of Education's
Office for Civil Rights (OCR) to include the requirement that district web sites be accessible to individuals
with disabilities. See the OCR's June 2010 and May 2011 Dear Colleacue Letters. Thus. the districts sheuld
must consider the needs of individuals with disabilities and identify features that would enable such persons

| to access all the information on dlstrlct and school web 51tes &Re—s%feﬂﬂat—}eﬂ—FeFe*amp%e—heaﬁﬂg—lmpa&ed

201



BP 1113(b)

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES (continued)

The-USDOJs A U.S. Department of Justice technical assistance publication, Accessibility of
State and Local Government Websites to People with Disabilities, states that an agency with
an—inaceessible—web—site a_web site that is otherwise inaccessible to individuals with
disabilities may alse meet its legal obligations by providing an alternative accessible way for
individuals—with—disabilities them to use the programs or services (e.g., a staffed telephone
information line), but points out that these alternatives are unlikely to provide an equal degree of
access in terms of hours of operation or range of options and programs available. See the
accompanying administrative regulation for accessibility cuidelines.

The district's design standards shall address the accessibility of district-spensered and school
web sites to individuals with disabilities, including compatibility with commonly used assistive
technologies.

(cf 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

Guidelinesfor-Web Site Content

The Superintendent or designee shall develop content guidelines for district and school web sites
and shall-assign staff to review and approve content prior to posting.

Feﬂeet—é}smt—pﬁe&ee- The followmU ontlonal paragraph ensures consmtencs of dlstrlct ;)ollc1es regarding

advertising and may be revised to reflect district _practlce |

Board policy pertaining to advertising in district and school publications, as specified in BP 1325
- Advertising and Promotion, shall also apply to advertising on district and school web sites,

(cf 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

Privacy Rights

| Note: Business and Professions Code 22580-22582 prohibit an operator of a web site from knowingly using,
disclosing. compiling. or allowing a third party to use, disclose. or compile the personal information of a
minor for the purpose of marketing or advertising specified tvpes of products or services. Business and
Professions Code 22584-22585 prohibit the operator of a web site that provides services to K-12 students
from selling or disclosing specified student information or knowingly using that student information to
engage in targeted advertising to students or parents/suardians or to amass a profile about a student.
Business and Professions Code 22586, as added by AB 2799 (Ch. 620. Statutes of 2016). provides a similar
prohibition for the operator of a web site used. designed. and marketed primarilv for preschool or
prekindergarten purposes from knowingly engaging in specified activities. including targeted advertising,
selling or disclosing a student's information. and using specified information to amass a profile about a

202



| student except in furtherance of preschool or prekindergarten purposes. See BP 5125 - Student Records for
| further information regarding protection of student information,

BP 1113(c)
DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the privacy rights of students,
parents/guardians, staff, Board members, and other individuals are protected on district and
school web sites.

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)

(cf 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf: 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights)

(cf- 5125 - Student Records)

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. The district
should carefully consider whether to place personally identifiable information on district or
school web sites since release of such information may put individuals, including students, at risk
and also may violate Education Code 49073 which prohibits disclosure of student directory
information to any private profit-making entity; see BP/AR/E 5125.1 - Release of Directory
[nformation.

Telephone numbers and home and email addresses of students and/or their parents/guardians
shall not be published on district or school web sites.

(cf- 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information)

Note: The following options address the use of students' photographs on district or school web sites. Option 1 is
for use by districts that, pursuant to Education Code 49061 and 34 CFR 99.3, have-included photographs in the
deﬁnltlon of dlrectory 1nformat10n, as spe01ﬁed in AR 5125 1 - Release of Dlrectory Informatlon and thus-alew

bRty ? e h e eased—publish student
photocranhs alono with their names unless a parent/nuardlan requested in writing that no photographs of
their child be released without their prior written consent. Option 2 is for use by districts that do not wish-te
allow students' photographs to be published along with their names witheut unless specific consent for such
publication is received from the parent/gsuardian.

OPTION 1: d
cxeepl-when-their The dlstrlct reoards nhotocranhs as a cateuor\ of dlrecton’ 1nf0rmat10n
that would not generally be considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if disclosed.
Therefore, a student's photograph, together with his/her name, mav be published on
district or school web sites unless the student's parent/guardian has notified the district in
writing to not release the student's photograph without prior written consent, in accordance with
BP/AR 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information.

OPTION 2: Be - '
pPhotographs of 1nd1v1dual students shall not be pubhshed on dlstrlct or school web sntes w&h

203



their names accompanied by the student's name or other personally identifiable information
without the prior written consent of the student's parent/guardian.

l__Notg : The remainder of this policy is for use by all districts. _ ‘

BP 1113(d)

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES (continued)

If students' names are not included, pPhotographs of individual students or groups of
students, such as at a school event, may be published on school or district web sites-provided
” t-st 5{5 :{Sl names-are-not iHelHded.

| Note: The following optional paragraph mav be revised to reflect district practice. It is recommended that :

‘ districts not post emplovees' home addresses, personal telephone numbers. or personal email addresses on
district or school web sites, in order to maintain emplovee privacy and safety. If such information is posted,

| emplovees should be informed that using a personal account or device to receive communications regarding
district business does not categorically exclude these records from disclosure upon request under the
California Public Records Act (Government Code 6250-6270), pursuant to the California Supreme Court's
decision in City of San Jose v. Superior Court. See BP 1340 - Access to District Records. AR 3580 - District
Records. and BB 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications.

Staff-members' Emplovees' home addresses, er personal telephone numbers, and personal
email addresses shall not be posted on district or school web sites.

The home address or telephone number of any elected or appointed official including, but not
limited to, a Board member or public safety official, shall not be posted on district or school web
sites without the prior written permission of that individual. (Government Code 3307.5, 6254.21,

6254.24)

No public safety official shall be required to consent to the posting on the Internet of his/her
photograph or identity as a public safety officer for any purpose if that officer reasonably
believes that the disclosure may result in a threat, harassment, intimidation, or harm to the officer

or his/her family. (Government Code 3307.5)

(¢f 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35182.5 Contracts for advertising
35258 Internet access to school accountability report cards
48907 Exercise of free expression, rules and regulations
48950 Speech and other communication
49061 Definitions, directory information
49073 Release of directory information

204



60048 Commercial brand names, contracts or logos

BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE

22580-22582 Digital privacy

22584-22585 Student Online Personal Information Protection Act
22586 Preschool and prekinderzarten privacy

Legal Reference continued: (see next page)

BP 1113(e)

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES (continued)

Legal Reference: (continued)
GOVERNMENT CODE
3307.5 Publishing identity of public safety officers
6254.21 Publishing addresses and telephone numbers of officials
6254.24 Definition of public safety official
11133 Nondiscrimination; accessibility to state web sites
PENAL CODE
14029.5 Prohibition against publishing personal information of person in witness protection program
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 17
101 1191 Eedercl wiclot |
101-122 Subject matter and scope of copyright
504 Penalties for copyright infringement
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1232g Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29
705 Definitions: Vocational Rehabilitation Act
794 Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; accessibility to federal web sites
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS. TITLE 16
312.1-312.12 Children's Online Privacy
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy
104.1-104.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability
COURT DECISIONS
City of San Jose v. Superior Court, (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608
Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District, (1998) 64 Cal App.4th 1112

Management Resources:
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter, May 26, 2011
Joint Dear Colleazue Letter: Electronic Book Readers, June 2010
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS
Accessibilitv of State and Local Government Websites to People with Disabilities. June 2003
WORLD WIDE WEB CONSORTIUM PUBLICATIONS
Web Content Accessibilitv Guidelines, December 2008
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org

205



California Department of Education, Web Accessibility Standards:
http:/fwww.cde.ca.govire/di/ws/webaccessstds. asp

California School Public Relations Association: hitp./f'www.calspra.org

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Richts: https://www2.ed.cov/about/offices/list/ocr
U.S. Department of Justice, Americans with Disabilities Act: http://www.ada.gov

World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative: http://'www.w3.org/wai

(7/07 7/11) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

206



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation
Community Relations AR 1113(a)

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES

Note: The following optional administrative regulation is for use by districts that maintain their own web site(s) |
and may-should be revised to reflect district practice. |

Design Standards

The Superintendent or designee shall develop design standards for district and school web
sites that include, but are not limited to, guidelines to ensure the clear organization of the
material, readability of the font type and size, and simplicity of the navigation structure
linking the content on the web site. Such standards shall take into consideration the ease of
use on a wide range of devices.

Note: Pursuant to Title IT of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 USC 12131-12134) and Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 705, 794; 34 CFR 104.1-104.39), districts have an obligation to
provide an equal opportunity to individuals with disabilities to participate in and receive the benefits of the
educational program. Such obligations have been interpreted by the U.S. Department of Education's Office |
for Civil Rights (OCR) to include the requirement that district web sites be accessible to individuals with |
disabilities. See the OCR's June 2010 and May 2011 Dear Colleague Letters. |

While there are no explicit standards detailed in law or regulations addressing accessible features, the
World Wide Web Consortium's Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.0 and Web Accessibility Initiative |
Accessible Rich Internet Applications Suite are widely used tools that may serve as guidelines for district
and school web sites. Additionally, examples of technical standards for accessibility are available on the
| California Department of Education's web site.

In accordance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section
504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, district and school web sites shall contain
features that ensure accessibility for individuals with disabilities, which may include, but
are not limited to, captions for videos and multimedia presentations, text alternatives to
images, provision of sufficient time to use the content, avoidance of flashing images,
adequate contrast in visual presentations, and/or other features that meet applicable
standards for web site accessibility. The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review
district and school web sites and modify them as needed to ensure legal compliance with
accessibility standards.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

Guidelinesfor-Web Site Content

i Note: The following section may be revised to reflect district practice,

207



AR 1113(b)

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES (continued)

For all Governing Board meetings occurring on and after January 1, 2019, Government Code 54954.2, as
amended by AB 2257 (Ch. 265, Statutes of 2016), requires the district to post a ""prominent, direct link" to
the current Board meeting agenda on the primary homepage of the district's web site. However, districts that
use an integrated agenda management platform (i.e., a web site dedicated to providing the entirety of the
agenda information for the Board) are exempt from this requirement if a direct link to the platform is posted
on the homepage and the current agenda is the first agenda available at the top of the platform. Government
Code 54954.2 specifies that agendas posted either through a direct link or through use of an integrated
agenda management platform must be (1) retrievable, downloadable, indexable, and electronically searchable
by commonly used Internet search applications; (2) platform independent and machine readable; and (3)
available to the public free of charge and without any restriction that would impede the reuse or
redistribution of the agenda.

As applicable, dDistrict and school web sites shall provide current information regarding

be%h——mteﬂofal—aﬂd—ex{emal—&aéeﬂees—aﬁd—m&}_melaée the d1strrct's mission and goals

district/school programs and operations, district/~er—school news, agendas and minutes of
Governing Board meetings, School Accountability Report Cards, school calendars, and links to
educational resources.

(¢f. 0440 - District Technology Plan)
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card)
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public)

(cf- 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

With approval of the principal, individual teachers may create web pages linked to the district or
school web site to provide information pertaining to class assignments, expectations, and
activities.

Note: In determining whe-will-be-allewed-whether to limit or allow the ability of certain
groups or individuals to provide content for district or school web sites, districts should consult
w1th legal counsel on matters pertammg to p1 otected speech and equal access; —In—%he—eveﬂt—e£

p;e{ee&eﬂs—tha{—earfeﬁﬂy—eaﬁs{—fei—the—pfme—medm—{see BP/AR 51452 - Freedom of
Speech/Expression and }-and-regulations—regarding-equal-aceess-{see-BP/AR 6145.5 - Student

Organizations and Equal Access).

Student work may be published on district or school web sites provided that both the student and
his/her parent/guardian provide written permission or the work is part of an existing publication
such as a school newspaper.

208




Note: Federal copyright law (17 USC 167 106) gr;nTsﬂa copyright owner the exclusiver—ights to repr_ocilce, |
distribute, make derivative works of, publicly perform, or publicly display the copyrighted work or to
authorize others to do so. However, pursuant to 17 USC 107, "fair use" (i.e, the

AR 1113(c)

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES (continued)

reproduction of limited portions of copyrighted materials without the copyright owner's permission) is
allowed for such pur poses as crlthISm, comment, news reportmg, teachmg, scholar shlp, or research; aﬂd—the

income; see BP/AR 6162 6 - Use of Copyrlghted Materlals Even if use of certam copyrlghted matel 1als in the
district meets the criteria for a fair use exception, Unless-there-is-a-clearstatement-that text, art, or photos that
are not clearly stated to be in the "public domain" and available for free use such—material should not be

| replicated on a district or school web site without prior permission of the copyright owner-of-the-copyright.

rep&&t—t—he—ma%eaal—was—gmﬁed——Am copy l‘l“hted materlal to be posted on a dlstrlct or

school web site shall be submitted to the Superintendent or Designee to gether with the
permission of the copyright owner to reprint the material. Anv copvrighted material
submitted with the copyright owner’s permission shall only be posted on a district or
school web sit if the superintendent or designee determines that the material is in the public
domain or the intended use meets the criteria for fair use or another exception pursuant to
17 USC 107-122. When any copvright owner and. as necessary, shall note that permission
to reprint the material was granted.

(cf 4132/4232/4332 - Publication or Creation of Materials)
(cf 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials)

Whenever a district or school web site includes links to external web sites, it shall include a
disclaimer that the district is not responsible for the content of external web sites.

Roles and Responsibilities

Any employee assigned as a district or school webmaster shall be responsible for the uploading
of material to the web site(s) upon approval of the Superintendent or designee. He/she shall
review district and school web sites to ensure consistency ef-the—material with district
standards, regularly check links for accuracy and appropriateness, keep the web server free of
outdated or unused files, and provide technical assistance as needed.

The Superintendent or designee may assign additional staff members to conduct ar-editorial

reviews of all materials submitted for publication on district or school web sites and to make
corrections as needed in spelling, grammar, or accuracy of content.

209



The Superintendent or designee shall provide staff development opportunities related to district
content guidelines, design standards, and accessibility laws and standards to district
communications and technology staff, district and school webmasters, and/or other appropriate
staff.

AR 1113(d)

DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES (continued)

(cf- 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

Security
The Superintendent or designee shall establish security procedures for the district's computer

network to prevent unauthorized access and changes to district and school web sites. To the
extent possible, the host computer(s) shall be in a lockable room with restricted access.

210



(3/00 7/11) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

211



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation

Students AR 5113.11(a)

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION

Note: The following optional administrative regulation is for use by districts that appoint their own
attendance supervisor and may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to Education Code 48242
and 48243. the district mav appoint an atftendance supervisor or mav jointlv employ an attendance
supervisor with one or more other districts. Alternatively. pursuant to Education Code 48244, the district
may_contract with the County Superintendent of Schools for the supervision of attendance of district
students. AB 2815 (Ch. 829. Statutes of 2016) amended Education Code 48244 to delete the requirement
that the County Board of Education approve the district's contract with the Count\-' Superintendent.

The Superintendent or designee shall appoint an attendance supervisor and anv assistant
attendance supervisor(s) as may be necessarv to supervise the attendance of district
students. (Education Code 48240)

Note: I_’urs:mnt to Education Code 48245, the following paragraph is applicéble to any district thh an |
average dailv attendance of 1.000 of more. according to the annual school report of the last preceding
school vear.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any person appointed as an attendance
supervisor has been certificated for the work bv the Countv Board of Education.
(Education Code 48241, 48245)

Such supervisors shall perform duties related to compulsory full-time education, truancy,
compulsory continuation education, work permits, and anv additional duties prescribed by
the Superintendent or designee. (Education Code 48240)

(¢f. 5112.1 - Exemptions from Attendance)
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)
(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits)

(¢f. 6184 - Continuation Education)

Note: Items #1-5 below may be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 48240, as amended by AB
2815 (Ch. 829, Statutes of 2016), states the Legislature's intent that attendance supervisors fulfill the
following duties.

The attendance supervisor shall promote a culture of attendance and establish a system to
accurately track student attendance in order to achieve all of the followine: (Education
Code 48240)

212



1. Raise the awareness of school personnel, parents/cuardians, caregivers, community
partners, and local businesses of the effects of chronic absenteeism and truancy and
other challenges associated with poor attendance

AR 5113.11(b)

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION (continued)

2. Identify and respond to grade level or student subgroup patterns of chronic
absenteeism or truancy

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)

3. Identify and address factors contributing to chronic absenteeism and habitual
truancy, including suspension and expulsion

(cf- 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

4. Ensure that students with attendance problems are identified as earlv as possible to
provide applicable support services and interventions

5. Evaluate the effectiveness of strategies implemented to reduce chronic absenteeism
rates and truancyv rates

(cf- 0500 - Accountability)

The attendance supervisor may provide support services and interventions, including, but
not limited to, the following: (Education Code 48240)

1. A conference between school personnel, the student's parent/guardian, and the
student

2. Promotion of cocurricular and extracurricular activities that increase student
connectedness to school, such as tutoring, mentoring, the arts, service learning, or
athletics

(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)
(¢f. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts)

(¢f. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

213



3. Recognition of students who achieve excellent attendance or demonstrate significant
improvement in attendance

(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement)

4. Referral of the student to a school nurse, school counselor, school psvchologist,

AR 5113.11(c)

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION (continued)

school social worker, and other student support personnel for case management and
counseling

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)
(cf- 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

5. Collaboration with child welfare services, law enforcement, courts, public health
care agencies, government agencies, or medical, mental health, and oral health care
providers to receive necessary services

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)

6. Collaboration with school studv teams, guidance teams. school attendance review
teams, or other intervention-related teams to assess the attendance or behavior
problem in partnership with the student and his/her parents/cuardians or

caregivers

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

7. In schools with significantly higher rates of chronic absenteeism, identification of
barriers to attendance that may require schoolwide strategies rather than case
management

8. Referral of the student for a comprehensive psychosocial or psvehoeducational

assessment, including for purposes of creating an individualized education program
for a student with disabilities or creating a plan pursuant to Section 504 of the
federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

9. Referral of the student to a school attendance review board established pursuant to
Education Code 48321 or to the probation department pursuant to Education Code
48263

214



(¢f. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board)

10. Referral of the student to a truancy mediation program operated by the county's
district attorney or probation officer pursuant to Education Code 48260.6

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Among the primary
roles of the attendance supervisor are the accurate tracking of student attendance and monitoring of
chronic absence in order to identify students at risk. Pursuant to Education Code 52060, districts are
required to include rates of school attendance, chronic absence. dropout, and graduation, as applicable.

AR 5113.11(d)

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION (continued)

| in_their local control and accountability plan (see BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan),
and chronic absence is one of the state accountability indicators in the California School Dashboard (see BP
0500 - Accountability).

The attendance supervisor shall annually report student attendance data to the
Superintendent or designee and the Governing Board. Such data shall include, by school,
grade level, and each numerically significant student subgroup as defined in Education
Code 52052, rates of school attendance, chronic absence in which students are absent on 10
percent of more of the school days in the school vear, and dropout.

(cf- 5147 - Dropout Prevention)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE

1740 Emplovmment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent)
37223 Weekend classes

46000 Records (attendance)

46010-46014 Absences

46110-46119 Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools
46140-46147 Attendance in junior hich and hivh schools
48200-48208 Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance)
48240-48246 Supervisors of attendance

48260-48273 Truants

48290-48297 Failure to comply; complaints against parents
48320-48325 School attendance review boards

48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance

48400-48403 Compulsory continuation education

52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

60901 Chronic absence

PENAL CODE

270.1 Chronic truancy; parent/cuqrdian misdemeanor

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

601-601.4 Habitually truant minors

11253.5 Compulsory school attendance

215



CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
306 Explanation of absence
420-421 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes

Manavement Resources: (see next page)

AR 5113.11(e)

ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION (continued)

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
School Attendance Review Board Handbook, 2015
School Attendance Improvement Handbook, 2000
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
Attendance Works: hitp://www.attendanceworks.org
California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance: http://www.cascwa.org
California Department of Education: hitp://www.cde.ca.gov

216



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Students BP 5113.12(a)

DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD

Note: The following Board policy is for use by districts that have established their own school attendance
review board (SARB). in addition to or instead of a county office of education SARB, as authorized
pursuant to Education Code 48321. If a district desires to establish a local SARB but a county SARB exists,
| the district must contact the county SARB chairperson to request permission to form a local SARB. If no
county SARB exists. the Governing Board may establish a local SARB which operates in the same manner
and under the same authority as a county SARB. For further information about procedures for addressing
truancy, including, but not limited to, circumstances that require referral to a SARB, see BP/AR 5113.1 -
Chronic Absence and Truancy.

Pursuant to Education Code 48240-48244. the district may appoint a district employee to serve as an
attendance supervisor, jointly employ an attendance supervisor with one or more other districts, or
contract with the County Superintendent of Schools for the supervision of attendance of district students.
| The duties of the attendance supervisor. as specified in Education Code 48240, include duties related to
compulsory full-time education and truancy. See AR 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision. |

The Governing Board recognizes that poor school attendance and behavior problems
negatively impact student achievement and put students at greater risk of dropping out of
school. The Superintendent or desicnee shall establish a comprehensive and integrated
system for the early identification of attendance problems and shall implement strategies to
encourace students' attendance. After other interventions have been exhausted, students
with a pattern of unexcused absences mav be referred to a school attendance review board
(SARB). in accordance with applicable law, in order to receive intensive guidance and
assistance.

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)
(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision)

(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention)

|.. &0; The following Optionél paragraph is based on a gpal stated in Education Code 48322.

edg3zz. |

The SARB shall maintain a continuing inventory of communify resources. including
alternative educational programs.

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with the SARB and appropriate
community agencies, including, but not limited to, law enforcement agencies, child welfare
agencies, and health services, to provide school-based and/or communitv-based
interventions tailored to the specific needs of the student.

(cf- 1020 - Youth Services)

217



(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)
(cf- 5126 - Awards for Achievement)
(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
BP 5113.12(b)

DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD (continued)

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)

(cf- 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)
(cf- 6158 - Independent Study)

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

(cf- 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

(¢f. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(¢f. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)

(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

(cf. 6181 -~ Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice)
(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction)

(cf- 6184 - Continuation Education)

(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)

The Board shall appoint members to the district's SARB, who mav include a
parent/cuardian as well as representatives of various agencies including, but not limited to,
school districts; the county probation department: the couniv welfare department; the
County Superintendent of Schools; law enforcement agencies; community-based youth
service centers: school guidance personnel: child welfare and attendance personnel; school
or county health care personnel: school, county, or community mental health personnel:
the county district attorney's office: and the countv public defender's office. (Education

Code 48321)

The district's SARB shall provide support to improve student attendance and behavior
through proactive efforts focused on building positive school environments and improved
school connectedness, early identification and immediate intervention to re-engage students
with poor attendance or behavior, and intensive intervention with students and families to
address severe or persistent attendance or behavior issues.

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48324, if a county SARB exists. the district's SARB must be governed by
rules and regulations consistent with the rules and regulations established by the county SARB or by other
lepal requirements. In the absence of a county SARB. the local SARB has the authority to set rules and
reculations consistent with law. The following paragsraph mav be revised to reflect district practice.

SARBs are also subject to the open meeting requirements of the Brown Act (Government Code 54950- |

54963). including notice requirements. except that meetings mav be held in closed session when considering
matters Lelated to individual students: see the accompanying administrative regulation. J

218



The district's SARB shall operate in accordance with Education Code 48320-48325, the
Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), and the bylaws of the SARB.

BP 5113.12(c)

DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD (continued)

Note: The California Department of Education's School Attendance Review Board Handbook includes a
sample report form for meeting the following requirements of Education Code 48273. The report includes
the composition of the SARB: the numbers and tvpes of referrals (i.e.. attendance and/or behavior): total
number of students referred to the SARB and number of students by grade level. gender. and
race/ethnicitv: and the disposition of the referrals. including the number of cases referred to courts or other
agencies. According to the handbook. the annual report should also be provided to member organizations

of the SARB.

The SARB shall collect data and annually report outcomes on SARB referrals to the
Governing Board, Superintendent or designee. and County Superintendent of Schools.
(Education Code 48273)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE

1740 Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent)
1980-1986 County community school

46010-46014 Absences

48200-48208 Children aces 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance)
48240-48246 Supervisors of attendance

48260-48273 Truants

48290-48297 Failure to comply; complaints against parents

48320-48325 School attendance review boards

48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance

48400-48403 Compulsory continuation education

48660-48666 Community day school

49067 Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

1985-1997 Production of evidence; means of production

GOVERNMENT CODE

54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act

PENAL CODE

270.1 Chronic truancy; parent/cuardian misdemeanor

272 Parent/ouardian duty to supervise and control minor child; criminal liability for truancy
830.1 Peace officers

VEHICLE CODE

13202.7 Driving privileges: minors; suspension or delay for habitual truancy
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

256-258 Juvenile hearing officer

601-601.4 Habitually truant minors

11253.5 Compulsory school attendance

219



CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

306 Explanation of absence

420-421 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes
COURT DECISIONS

L.A. v. Superior Court of San Diego County, (2012) 209 Cal.App.4th 976

Management Resources: (see next page)

BP 5113.12(d)

DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD (continued)

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
School Attendance Review Board Handbook: A Road Map for Improved School Attendance and
Behavior, 2015
School Attendance Improvement Handbook, 2000
WEB SITES
CSBA: hitp://www.csba.org
Attendance Works: http://www.attendanceworks.org
California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance: htip://www.cascwa.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

220



10/17

221



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation
Students _ AR 5113.12(a)

DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD

| Note: The following administrative regulation is for use by districts that have established their own school
attendance review board (SARB). in addition to or instead of a countv SARB. as authorized pursuant to
Education Code 48321. Requirements for the composition and basic duties of the SARB are contained in
Education Code 48320-48325. In addition. the following administrative regulation reflects information and
best practices in the California Department of Education's (CDE) School Attendance Review Board
Handbook. available on CDE's web site. The district should revise the following reculation to reflect district |
practice and. if applicable. procedures established bv the county SARB.

Upon receiving a referral of a student with attendance and/or behavior problems. a
designated member of the school attendance review board (SARB) shall review the case
and may meet with school personnel to determine whether the school has provided
sufficient information about the student's attendance record or behavior. If the referral is
complete and is an appropriate matter for the SARB to consider, the SARB chairperson
shall provide written notification to the student's parents/guardians stating the reasons a
referral has been made, explainine the SARB process, advising whether additional
information is needed. and describing school-level interventions that have previously been

attempted.

The SARB shall meet with the student and his/her parents/cuardians, give them an
opportunity to present their understanding of the problem. and discuss the school and/or
community resources appropriate for the student's circumstances.

Note: The CDE's School Attendance Review Board Handbook clarifies that SARBs are subject to the open
meeting requirements of the Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), including notice requirements, but
that meetings may be held in closed session when considering matters related to individual students.

Any SARB meeting to consider matters related to an individual student shall be held in
closed session unless the parent/cuardian requests, in writine, that the meeting be held in

open session.

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

The SARB shall have access to relevant student records, but shall not provide access to
others without written consent of the student's parent/guardian. (Education Code 49076)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

222



AR 5113.12(b)

DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD (continued)

For the limited purpose of making a proper disposition of the referral of a student, the
SARB may issue subpoenas pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 1985-1997 or mayv request
the juvenile court to issue subpoenas to require the attendance of the student,
parents/cuardians or other person having control of the student, the school authority
referring the student, or anv other person who has pertinent or material information
concerning the matter. The SARB shall not issue anv subpoena that includes a request for
production of written materials, but mav request a juvenile court to issue such subpoena
for the production of written materials. (Education Code 48263, 48321.5)

!Fote: Th; CDE_'s School Attend;fce_ Review Board Handbook provides a sample Schooi Site. SEdent and ‘
Parent Agreement that mav be used to formalize the direct_i\ies of the SARB.

The SARB shall issue written directives stating the responsibilities of all persons involved,
detailed resource referrals, and follow-up dates for the school's reports on the student's
progress. The written directives shall include an agreement that the student will attend
school or improve classroom behavior as applicable, and shall be sigcned by the student,
his/her parents/guardians., the SARB chairperson, and the Superintendent or designee.

When referred bv the SARB. a student may be assigned to a community dav school or a
county community school. (Education Code 1981, 48662)

(cf. 6185 - Conmumunity Day School)

At anv time it deems proper, the SARB mav require the student or his/her
parents/cuardians to furnish satisfactorv evidence of participation in any available
community services that the student or parents/cuardians have been directed to use.
(Education Code 48263)

Based on progress reports submitted by the school, the SARB may terminate the
agreement upon the successful completion of the terms of the agreement, extend the time
for completion of the agreement, or schedule another meeting with the student and his/her
parents/cuardians.

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48263. if the SARB determines that available community services cannot
resolve the student's problem or if the student and/or the student's parents/cuardians have failed to
respond to the SARB's directives, the SARB may notifyv the district attornev and/or the probation officer. if
the district attorney or the probation office has elected to participate in the truancy mediation program. If |
the district attorneyv or the probation office has not elected to participate in the truancy mediation program,
the SARB mayv direct the County Superintendent of Schools to request a petition to the juvenile court, upon |
which the juvenile court will hear all evidence related to the petition and will bring about a proper
disposition of the case. The following paracsraph mav be revised to reflect the appropriate authority to be
notified.

223



AR 5113.12(b)

DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD (continued)

If the student's attendance or behavior problems cannot be resolved by the SARB, or if the
student and/or the student's parents/guardians continually and willfully fail to respond to
SARB directives or the services provided. the student or parents/suardians shall be
referred to the appropriate agency, including law enforcement agencies when necessary.
(Education Code 48263, 48290-48291)

224



10/17

225



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation

Students AR 5113.12(a)

DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD

Note: The following administrative reculation is for use by districts that have established their own school
attendance review board (SARB). in addition to or instead of a countv SARB. as authorized pursuant to
Education Code 48321. Requirements for the composition and basic duties of the SARB are contained in
Education Code 48320-48325. In addition. the following administrative regulation reflects information and
best practices in the California Department of Education's (CDE) School Attendance Review Board
Handbook. available on CDE's web site. The district should revise the following regulation to reflect district
practice and. if applicable, proced_ure; established bv the countv SARB,

Upon receiving a referral of a student with attendance and/or behavior problems. a
designated member of the school attendance review board (SARB) shall review the case
and mav meet with school personnel to determine whether the school has provided
sufficient information about the student's attendance record or behavior. If the referral is
complete and is an appropriate matter for the SARB to consider, the SARB chairperson
shall provide written notification to the student's parents/cuardians statine the reasons a
referral has been made, explaining the SARB process, advising whether additional
information is needed. and describing school-level interventions that have previously been

attempted.

The SARB shall meet with the student and his/her parents/cuardians, give them an
opportunity to present their understanding of the problem, and discuss the school and/or
community resources appropriate for the student's circumstances.

Note: The CDE's School Attendance Review Board Handbook clarifies that SARBs are subject to the open
meeting requirements of the Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), including notice requirements. but
that meetines mav be held in closed session when considering matters related to individual students.

Anv SARB meetine to consider matters related to an individual student shall be held in
closed session unless the parent/cuardian requests, in writing, that the meeting be held in

open session.

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

The SARB shall have access to relevant student records, but shall not provide access to
others without written consent of the student's parent/cuardian. (Education Code 49076)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

226



AR 5113.12(b)

DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD (continued)

For the limited purpose of making a proper disposition of the referral of a student, the
SARB may issue subpoenas pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 1985-1997 or mayv request
the juvenile court to issue subpoenas to require the attendance of the student,
parents/ouardians or other person having control of the student, the school authority
referring the student, or anv other person who has pertinent or material information
concerning the matter. The SARB shall not issue anv subpoena that includes a request for
production of written materials, but may request a juvenile court to issue such subpoena
for the production of written materials. (Education Code 48263, 48321.5)

Note: The CDE's School Attendance Review Board Handbo_ok provides a sample School Site, Student and
P_arent Agreement that may be used to formali;e_ EIE' directives of the SARB.

The SARB shall issue written directives stating the responsibilities of all persons involved,
detailed resource referrals, and follow-up dates for the school's reports on the student's
proeress. The written directives shall include an agreement that the student will attend
school or improve classroom behavior as applicable, and shall be sicned by the student,
his/her parents/suardians, the SARB chairperson, and the Superintendent or designee.

When referred by the SARB, a student mayv be assigned to a communitv day school or a
county community school. (Education Code 1981, 48662)

(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)

At anv time it deems proper, the SARB may require the student or his/her
parents/guardians to furnish satisfactory evidence of participation in anv available
community services that the student or parents/cuardians have been directed to use.
(Education Code 48263)

Based on progress reports submitted by the school, the SARB may terminate the
acsreement upon the successful completion of the terms of the acreement, extend the time
for completion of the agreement, or schedule another meeting with the student and his/her
parents/cuardians.

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48263. if the SARB determines that available community services cannot
resolve the student's problem or if the student and/or the student's parents/cuardians have failed to
respond to the SARB's directives. the SARB mav notify the district attorney and/or the probation officer, if
the district attorney or the probation office has elected to participate in the truancy mediation program. If
the district attorney or the probation office has not elected to participate in the truancy mediation program,
the SARB may direct the County Superintendent of Schools to request a petition to the juvenile court. upon
| which the juvenile court will hear all evidence related to the petition and will bring about a proper
| disposition of the case. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect the appropriate authority to be
notified.

227



AR 5113.12(b)
DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD (continued)

If the student's attendance or behavior problems cannot be resolved by the SARB. or if the
student and/or the student's parents/ecuardians continually and willfully fail to respond to
SARB directives or the services provided, the student or parents/cuardians shall be
referred to the appropriate agency, including law enforcement agencies when necessary.
(Education Code 48263, 48290-48291)

228



10/17

229



CSBA Sample
Board Policy

Students BP 5131.6(a)

ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUGS

The Governing Board believes that the use of alcohol or other drugs adversely affects a student's
ability to achieve academic success, is physically and emotionally harmful, and has serious

social and legal consequences %&B&%d—des&eﬂa%eeep—dﬂ%ﬁet—seheels—fre%ef—a}eehelﬁmé

ew&enmeﬂ{—eeﬂé&ewe—te—leam&g— The Sunermtendent or desvrnee shall develop

comprehensive programs and activities to foster safe, healthy, and drug-free environments
that support academic achievement.

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Sajety Plan)
(cf. 4020 - Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace)
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)

Note: The Every Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95) amended 20 USC 7101-7122 to establish the Student
Support and Academic Enrichment Grants program. which mayv be used for several specified purposes
including activities to improve school conditions for student learning. For participating districts, 20 USC
7118 requires parent/cuardian involvement in program activities and encourages partnerships with an
institution of higher education. business. nonprofit organization, community-based organization. or other
public or private entity. 20 USC 7116 specifies stakeholder croups that must be consulted in the
development of the grant application. including parents/suardians, teachers. principals. other school
leaders. specialized instructional support personnel, students. communitv-based organizations. local
government representatives (e.g.. law enforcement, juvenile court, child welfare agency. public housing
agency). Indian tribes or tribal organization. charter school leaders and staff. and others with relevant
and demonstrated expertise in alcohol and drug prevention and intervention.

In addition. Education Code 51268 encourages districts to collaborate with countv offices of education in
| the provision of education programs for alcohol and drug prevention and to coordinate program plannine
and implementation with health. social services. eriminal justice. education. and other entities.

The following paragraph mayv be revised to reflect district practice.

The district's alcohol and drug prevention and intervention programs shall be coordinated
with other school and community-based services and programs and shall promote the
involvement of parents/guardians. The Superintendent or desicnee may collaborate with
the county office of education, community-based organizations, health providers, law

230



enforcement agencies, local child welfare agencies, postsecondary

BP 5131.6(b)

ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUGS (continued)

institutions, businesses, and other public and private entities in program planning,
implementation, and evaluation.

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)
fef. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Comimittees)

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement|

| Note: Items #1-4 below reflect some of the tvpes of programs that may be funded through the Student
| Support and Academic Enrichment Grants program pursuant to 20 USC 7118, as amended by P.L. 114-
| 95. and may be revised to reflect district practice.

Prevention and intervention programs and activities mav include, but are not limited to:
(20 USC 7118)

1. Evidence-based drug and violence prevention activities and programs that educate
students against the use of alcohol, tobacco, cannabis, smokeless tobacco products,
and electronic cigarettes

fcf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)

2. Professional development and training for school staff, specialized instructional
support personnel, and interested community members on drug prevention,
education, early identification, intervention mentoring, recovery support services,
and, where appropriate, rehabilitation referral

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

231



3. School-based mental health services, including early identification of drug use and
referrals to counseling services, and/or partnerships with public or private health
care entities that have qualified mental and behavioral health professionals

(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)

BP 5131.6(c)

ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUGS (continued)

4. Programs and activities that provide mentoring and school counseling to all
students, including students who are at risk of drug use and abuse

232



BP 5131.6(d)

Instruction

The district shall provide science-based preventative instruction which has been proven effective
in helping students avoid the use of alcohol and other drugs.

(cf 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction)
(¢f. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)
(¢f. 6143 - Courses of Study)

All instruction and related materials shall consistently state that unlawful use of alcohol or other
drugs is wrong—and-harmful-prohibited. Instruction shall not include the—econcept—of-any
message on responsible use of drugs or alcohol when such use is illegal. (20-US&-F114-7162;
Health and Safety Code 11999.2)

The district shall offer staff development activities for staff who implement the comprehensive
drug and alcohol prevention and intervention program.

233



fof 31— Staff-Development)

Intervention, Referral, and Student Assistance Programs

_Note_: PurEa;lt toEO USC 7115 7118, as amended by P.L. 114-95, programs which may be funded under the
Safe—and Drugs-Free-Scheols—and - Communities—Act— Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

program include programs of counseling. mentoring. referral services. and other student assistance programs.
The following section may be revised to reflect district practice.

In addition. Education Code 215 mandates that any district serving grades 7-12 adopt a suicide prevention
policy which contains measures and stratecies for addressing the needs of high-risk groups. including, but
not limited to, vouth with substance use disorders. See BP/AR 5141. 52 Suncnde Preventlon

BP 5131.6(¢)

ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUGS (continued)

The Superintendent or designee shall inform sSchool staff, students, and parents/guardians
shall-be-informed about early warning signs which may indicate alcohol and other drug use and
about appropriate agencies offering intervention programs, counseling, referral, and other student
assistance programs.

The Board strongly encourages any student who is using alcohol or drugs to discuss the matter
with his/her parent/guardian or with any staff member. Students who disclose their use of
alcohol or other drugs when seeking help from an intervention or recovery program shall not be
disciplined for such use.

(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention)

Enforcement/Discipline

e—Students shall not
possessies, use, or sale—e£ sell alcohol aﬂd or other drugs and related paraphernalia on school
grounds or at school-sponsored activities.

(cf. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools)

(ef. 3513.4 - Drug and Alcohol Free Schools)

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)

(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing)

fcf. 5131.63 - Steroids)

(cl. 5145.11 - Ouestioning and Apprehension by Law Enforcement)
(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure)

The Superintendent or designee shall clearly communicate to all students. staff. and
parents/cuardians the district's policies. reculations, and school rules related to the use of alcohol
and other drugs.

234



Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48900, a student's unlawful possession, use, sale, or furnishing of
alcohol or a controlled substance is a ground for suspension or expulsion: see AR 5144.1 - Suspension and
Expulsion/Due Process. Education Code 48915 requires immediate suspension and mandates expulsion for any
student who sells exprevides-aleshel-or-other drugs at school or while under school jurisdiction. In addition,
Education Code 48902 requires districts to notify law enforcement of any acts which may mvolve the possessmn
or sale of narcotics or a controlled substance. See-AR e atlae EETe
reflecting—these-requirements. However, when suspension and expulsmn are not mandated dlstrlcts should
consider whether it is appropriate to use an alternative discipline that maintains safety and order on
campus and corrects student misbehavior without unnecessarily excluding students from school or
discouraging them fro_n3 seeking assistance for substance abuse.

BP 5131.6(9)

Any student found selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safetyv Code 11053-

11058 shall be expelled in accordance with BP/AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due
Process. A student found to have committed another drug or alcohol offense, including
possession or intoxication, shall be referred to appropriate behavioral interventions or
student assistance programs, and mav be subject to discipline on a case-bv-case basis.

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
{cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(¢f. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)

Proeram Evaluation

Note: Pursuant to 20 USC 7116, as amended bv P.L. 114-95. an application for Student Support and

Academic Enrichment Grants must include a description of how the district will periodically evaluate

program effectiveness based on identified program objectives and outcomes. The following parasraph
| may be revised to reflect district practice. |

The Board and Superintendent shall agree upon performance measures that will be used to
monitor and determine the effectiveness of the districtls programs in reducing dI'UL and alcohol
use. The Suneuntendent or designee shall deve

factors: perlodlcallw report to the Board on the effectlveness of dlstrlct activities in

achieving identified objectives and outcomes. (20 USC 7116)

235



(cf. 0500 - Accountabiliiy)

Legal Reference: (see next page)

BP 5131.6(z)

ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUGS (continued)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
44049 Known or suspected alcohol or drug abuse by student
44645 In-service training anabolic steroids
48900 Suspension or expulsion (grounds)
48900.5 Suspension, limitation on imposition; exception
48901 Smoking or use of tobacco prohibited
48901.5 Prohibition of electronic signaling devices
48902 Notification of law enforcement authorities; civil or criminal immunity
48909 Narcotics or other hallucinogenic drugs
48915 Expulsion; particular circumstances
49602 Confidentiality of pupil information
51202 Instruction in personal and public health and safety
51203 Instruction on alcohol, narcotics and restricted dangerous drugs
51210 Areas of study
51220 Areas of study, grades 7 to 12
51260-51269 Drug education
60041 Instructional materials
60110-60115 Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE
25608 Alcohol on school property, use in connection with instruction
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
11032 Narcotics, restricted dangerous drugs and marijuana
11053-11058 Standards and schedules
11353.6 Juvenile Drug Trafficking and Schoolyard Act
11357 Unauthorized possession of marijuana; possession in school or on school grounds
11361.5 Destruction of arrest or conviction records
11372.7 Drug program fund, uses
11802 Joint school-community alcohol abuse primary education and prevention program

236



11999-11999.3 Alcohol and drug program funding, no unlawful use
124175-124200 Adolescent family life program

PENAL CODE

13860-13864 Suppression of drug abuse in schools

VEHICLE CODE

13202.5 Drug and alcohol related offenses by person under age of 21, but aged 13 or over;
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

828 Disclosure of information re minors

828.1 Disclosure of criminal records; protection of vulnerable staff & students
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

5812 National education goals

7101-7122 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants

Management Resources. (see next page)

BP 5131.6(h)

ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUGS (continued)

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
California  Department of Education, Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drug  Prevention:
http./fwww.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at
California Healthy Kids: http://www.californiahealthykids.org
Don o a1 e 21790 (1 o o

Office of Safe and Healthy Students: https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oshs

237



(2/96 7/04) 10/17

238



CSBA Sample

Administrative Regulation
Instruction AR 6173.1(a)

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH

Definitions

Foster youth means a child who has been removed from his/her home pursuant to Welfare and
Institutions Code 309, is the subject of a petition filed under Welfare and Institutions Code 300
or 602, or has been removed from his/her home and is the subject of a petition filed under
Welfare and Institutions Code 300 or 602 or is a nonminor who is under the transition
jurisdiction of a juvenile court, as described in Welfare and Institutions Code 450, and satisfies
the criteria specified in Education Code 42238.01. (Education Code 42238.01, 48853.5)

Note: In instances where the rights of the parent/guardian have been limited, the court may appoint an
educational representative on a temporary or long-term basis to make educational decisions for the student.

Person holding the right to make educational decisions means a responsible adult appointed by a
court pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 361 or 726.

School of origin means the school that the foster youth attended when permanently housed or the
school in which he/she was last enrolled. If the school the foster youth attended when
permanently housed is different from the school in which he/she was last enrolled, or if there is
seme-other another school that the foster youth attended within the preceding 15 months and
with which the youth is connected, the district liaison for foster youth shall determine which
school is the school of origin-. This determination shall be made in consultation with and with
the agreement of the foster youth and the person holding the right to make educational decisions
for the youth, and in shall be based on the best interests of the foster youth;+whichsehoelis-the

scheolof origin. (Education Code 48853.5)

Note: Education Code 48850 expresses the legislative intent that the "best interests" of a foster youth include
educational stability as well as placement in the least restrictive educational program, as provided below.

In_addition, pursuant to 20 USC 6311. determination of a student's "best interest" requires consideration
of all factors relating to the student's best interest, including the appropriateness of the current
educational setting and the proximity to the school in which the student is enrolled at the time of

| placement. |

Best inferest means that, in making educational and school placement decisions for a foster
youth, consideration is given to, among other factors, the proximity to the school at the time
of placement, appropriateness of the educational setting, educational stability, the
opportunity to be educated in the least restrictive educational setting necessary to achieve
academic progress, and the foster youth's access to academic resources, services, and
extracurricular and enrichment activities that are available to all district students. (Education

239



Code 48850, 48853; 20 USC 6311)

AR 6173.1(b)

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued)

District Liaison

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48853.5, districts are required to designate a staff person as the educational
liaison for foster youth. This person may be the same individual designated as the liaison for homeless students
as required by 42 USC 11432; see AR 6173 - Education for Homeless Children. In addition, Education Code
48853.5 requires that, for districts operating a foster youth services program, the liaison be affiliated with that
program. The duties of the liaison are as specified below.

The Superintendent designates the following position as the district's liaison for foster youth:
(Education Code 48853.5)

Assistant Superintendent Secondary
(position or title)
1717 S. Eleventh Street
(address)
208-826-3801
(phone number)
Penos@losbanosusd.k12.ca.us
email

(cf 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
The liaison for foster youth shall:

1. Ensure and facilitate the proper educational placement, enrollment in school, and
checkout from school of students in foster care (Education Code 48853.5)

Note: Education Code 48645.5 requires districts to accept for credit full or partiai coursework completed in a
public school or nonpublic nonsectarian school or agency in addition to a juvenile court school; see the section
below entitled "Transfer of Coursework and Credits."

2. Ensure proper transfer of credits, records, and grades when students in foster care transfer
from one school to another or from one district to another (Education Code 48645.5,
48853.5)

When a student in foster care is enrolling in a district school, the liaison shall contact the
school last attended by the student to obtain, within two business days, all academic and
other records. When a foster youth is transferring to a new school, the liaison shall
provide the student's records to the new school within two business days of receiving the
new school's request. (Education Code 48853.5)

240



(cf 5125 - Student Records)
(cf 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit)

AR 6173.1(c)

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48853.5, 48911, 48915.5, and 48918.1, the district liaison is required to invite
or notify a foster youth's attorney and the appropriate official of the county child welfare agency in certain
circumstances when expulsion-related proceedings are pending against the foster youth. For specific situations
| requiring such invitation or notice, see AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process.

3. When required by law, notify the foster youth's attorney and the representative of the
appropriate county child welfare agency when the foster youth is undergoing any
expulsion or other disciplinary proceeding, including a manifestation determination prior
to a change in the foster youth's placement; when he/she is a student with a disability.
(Education Code 48853.5, 48911, 48915.5, 48918.1)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)

‘ Note: Items #4-8 below are optional and should be modified to reflect district practice. ‘

4. As needed, make appropriate referrals to ensure that students in foster care receive
necessary special education services and services under Section 504 of the federal
Rehabilitation Act of 1973

(¢f. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf- 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

5. As needed, ensure that students in foster care receive appropriate school-based services,
such as counseling and health services, supplemental instruction, and after-school
services

(cf 5141.6 - School Health Services)

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

(¢cf 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program)
(cf- 6174 - Education for English Learners)

(cf- 6177 - Summer Learning Programs)

(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction)

6. Develop protocols and procedures for creating awareness for district staff, including
principals, school registrars, and attendance clerks, of the requirements for the proper
enrollment, placement, and transfer of foster youth

241



(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

‘Note: Optional item #7 establishes the responsibility of the district liaison to collaborate with other local
agencies to coordinate services for foster youth.

AR 6173.1(d)

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued)

Education Code 42920.5-4292 1 ;-as-amended by-AB-854 (Ch-781; Statutes-6£ 2045); establish the Foster Youth

Services Coordinating Program and provide funding for a county office of education or consortium of county
offices of education to coordinate educational support for foster youth among the districts within their
jurisdiction. As part of the program, such county offices must develop and implement a coordinating plan for
purposes of establishing guiding principles and protocols to provide supports for foster care students. To the
extent possible, such a plan must include, but shalt is not be-limited to, a description of how the program will
establish ongoing collaboration among local educational agencies, county child welfare agencies, and county
probation departments to determine the proper educational placement of foster youth. In addition, pursuant to
Education Code 42921, if a district annually certifies in writing that it is unable, using any other state, federal,
local, or private funds, to provide tutoring, mentoring, and counseling for foster youth, it may enter into a
temporary agreement with the foster youth services coordinating program to provide those services, if the
program has established such services.

7. Collaborate with the county office of education, county placing agency, county child
welfare agency, county probation department, juvenile court, and other appropriate
agencies to help coordinate services for the district's foster youth

(cf- 1020 -~ Youth Services)
(cf 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)

Note: The following optional item facilitates the annual update of the local control and accountability plan
required pursuant to Education Code 52060; see BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan.

8. Monitor the educational progress of foster youth and provide reports to the
Superintendent or designee and the Governing Board based on indicators identified in the
district's local control and accountability plan

(¢f 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly monitor the caseload of the liaison, as well as
his/her additional duties outside of the foster youth program, to determine whether adequate time
and resources are available to meet the needs of foster youth in the district.

242



Enrollment

A student placed in a licensed children's institution or foster family home within the district shall
attend programs operated by the district unless one of the following circumstances applies:
(Education Code 48853, 48853.5)

1. The student has an individualized education program requiring placement in a nonpublic,

nonsectarian school or agency or in another local educational agency.
AR 6173.1(e)

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued)

(¢f. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(¢f 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Spécial Education)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48853, a district is required to educate foster youth in the least restrictive
environment necessary for their educational achievement, However, a district may be discharged from this
obligation when the parent/guardian or other person with holding the right to make educational decisions for the
foster youth unilaterally decides to place the foster youth in another educational program and provides the
district a written statement as specified in item #2 below.

2. The parent/guardian or other person holding the right to make educational decisions for
the student determines that it is in the best interest of the student to be placed in another
educational program and submits a written statement to the district indicating that
determination and that he/she is aware of the following:

a. The student has a right to attend a regular public school in the least restrictive
environment.

b. The alternate educationat program is a special education program, if applicable.

c. The decision to unilaterally remove the student from the district school and to
place him/her in an alternate education program may not be financed by the
district.

d. Any attempt to seek reimbursement for the alternate education program may be at

the expense of the parent/guardian or other person holding the right to make
educational decisions for the student.

(cf 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment)
(cf- 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)
(cf. 6159.3 - Appointment of Surrogate Parent for Special Education Students)

243



Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48853.5, a foster youth may continue his/her education in the school of origin
under the circumstances stated below. Elementary and high school districts should delete any item (#3b or ¢)
| that is not applicable to the grade levels served by the district.

3. At the initial placement or any subsequent change in placement, the student exercises
his/her right to continue in his/her school of origin, as defined above.

a. The student may continue in the school of origin for the duration of the court's
jurisdiction.,
b. [f the court's jurisdiction over a grade K-8 student is terminated prior to the end of

a school year, the student may continue in his/her school of origin for the

remainder of the school year.
AR 6173.1(f)

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued)

c. If the court's jurisdiction is terminated while the student is in high school, the
student may continue in his/her school of origin until he/she graduates.

d. If the student is transitioning between school grade levels, he/she shall be allowed
to continue in the district of origin in the same attendance area to provide him/her
the benefit of matriculating with his/her peers in accordance with the established
feeder patterns of school districts. A student who is transitioning to a middle
school or high school shall be allowed to enroll in the school designated for
matriculation in another school district.

The district liaison may, in consultation with and with the agreement of the foster youth and the
person holding the right to make educational decisions for the youth, recommend that the youth's
right to attend the school of origin be waived and he/she be enrolled in any school that students
living in the attendance area in which the foster youth resides are eligible to attend. All decisions
shall be made in accordance with the foster youth's best interests. (Education Code 48853.5)

Prior to making any recommendation to move a foster youth from his/her school of origin, the
liaison shall provide the youth and the person holding the right to make educational decisions for
the youth with a written explanation of the basis for the recommendation and how the
recommendation serves the youth's best interests. (Education Code 48853.5)

The role of the liaison shall be advisory with respect to placement decisions and determination of
the school of origin. (Education Code 48853.5)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48853.5, a district is required to immediately enroll any foster youth

transferring into the district even when the foster youth has outstanding fees or fines due to the last school |
attended or the district has not received the foster youth's academic and medical records, as listed in items #1-3 |
below. However, pursuant to Health and Safety Code 120341, if a district does not receive a foster youth's |

244



immunization records prior to enrolling him/her, the district must take steps, after the foster youth is enrolled, to
obtain his/her immunization records or ensure that he/she is properly immunized. See BP/AR 5141.31 -
Immunizations,

If the liaison, in consultation with the foster youth and the person holding the right to make
educational decisions for the foster youth, agrees that the best interests of the youth would be
served by his/her transfer to a schoo!l other than the school of origin, the principal or designee of
the new school shall immediately enroll the foster youth. The foster youth shall be immediately
enrolled even if he/she: (Education Code 48853.5)

1. Has outstanding fees, fines, textbooks, or other items or monies due to the school last
attended

(cf 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts)

AR 6173.1(g)

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued)

2. Does not have clothing normally required by the school, such as school uniforms
(cf 5132 - Dress and Grooming)

3. [s unable to produce records normally required for enrollment, such as previous academic
records, proof of residency, and medical records, including, but not limited to,
immunization records or other documentation

{cf. 5111.1 - District Residency)

(cf 5141.26 - Tuberculosis Testing)

(¢f. 5141.31 - Immunizations)

(cf 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry)

Note: Education Code 48853 and 48853.5 specify that, if a dispute arises regarding school placement, the
district shall use an existing dispute resolution process available to any district student, The following paragraph

| should be modified to reflect district practice.

If the foster youth or a person with holding the right to make educational decisions for the foster
youth disagrees with the liaison's enrollment recommendation, he/she may appeal to the
Superintendent. The Superintendent shall make a determination within 30 calendar days of
receipt of the appeal. Within 30 calendar days of receipt of the Superintendent's decision, the
parent/guardian or foster youth may appeal that decision to the Board. The Board shall consider
the issue at its next regularly scheduled meeting. The Board's decision shall be final.

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

[f any dispute arises regarding the request of a foster youth to remain in the school of origin, the

245



youth has the right to remain in the school of origin pending resolution of the dispute,
(Education Code 48853.5)

Transportation

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48853.5, a district may, but is not required to, provide transportation to
enable a foster youth to attend a school or school district of origin, except when it is otherwise required by
federal law or pursuant to the individualized education program of a student with a disability. In accordance
with 20 USC 6312, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act (P.L. 114-95), districts are mandated to
collaborate with the local child welfare asency to develop clear written procedures governing how
transportation will be provided, arranged, and funded to enable foster youth to attend their school of
origin, when it is in their best interest to do so. The local child welfare agency may reimburse the district
for any additional costs of such transportation, or the district may agree to pay for or share the costs with

the child welfare agency. The following section mav be revised to reflect the procedures established in
collaboration w1th the child welfare agency, or such nrocedures mav be mcorporated mto a memorandum

AR 6173.1(h)

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued)

The Superintendent or desionee shall collaborate with the local child welfare agency to

determine how transportation will be provided, arranged, and funded in a cost-effective
manner to enable foster youth to remain in their school of origin, for the duration of their
time in foster care, when it is in their best interest to do so. Such transportation costs may
be paid by either the child welfare agency or the district, or shared by both. (20 USC 6312)

(cf 3540 - Transportation)
(cf. 3541 - Transportation Routes and Services)

Effect of Absences on Grades

The grades of a student in foster care shall not be lowered for any absence from school that is
due to either of the following circumstances: (Education Code 49069.5)

246



1. A decision by a court or placement agency to change the student's placement, in which
case the student's grades shall be calculated as of the date he/she left school

2. A verified court appearance or related court-ordered activity
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)

Transfer of Coursework and Credits

Note: The following section is for use by districts maintaining high schools. Education Code 51225.2 addresses ]
the transferability of coursework and credits completed by foster youth, as provided below. |

When a foster youth transfers into a district school, the district shall accept and issue full credit
for any coursework that the foster youth has satisfactorily completed while attending another
public school, a juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency and shall
not require the foster youth to retake the course. (Education Code 51225.2)

AR 6173.1(1)

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued)

If the foster youth did not complete the entire course, he/she shall be issued partial credit for the
coursework completed and shall be required to take the portion of the course that he/she did not
complete at his/her previous school. However, the district may require the foster youth to retake
the portion of the course completed if, in consultation with the holder of educational rights for
the foster youth, the district finds that the foster youth is reasonably able to complete the
requirements in time to graduate from high school. Whenever partial credit is issued to a foster
youth in any particular course, he/she shall be enrolled in the same or equivalent course, if
applicable, so that he/she may continue and complete the entire course. (Education Code
51225.2)

from school to school, there is no uniform system for calculating and awarding partial credits. To ensure
consistency in the treatment of foster youth, the California Child Welfare Council (CCWC), in its Partial Credit |
Model Policv and Practice Recommendations available on its web site, recommends the approach specified in
the following optional paragraph, which may be revised to reflect district practice. !

Partial credits shall be awarded on the basis of 0.5 credits for every seven class periods attended
per subject. If the school is on a block schedule, each block schedule class period attended shall
be equal to two regular class periods per subject. Partial credits and grades earned by a student
shall be included on the student's official transcript within two business days of the district's
notification of the student's transfer, as required under Education Code 49069.5.

247



In no event shall the district prevent a foster youth from taking or retaking a course to meet the
eligibility requirements for admission to the California State University or the University of
California. (Education Code 51225.2)

Applicability of Graduation Requirements

Note: The following section is for use by districts maintaining high schools. Also see BP 6146.1 - High School
Graduation Requirements,

To obtain a high school diploma, a foster youth shall complete all courses required by Education
Code 51225.3 and fulfill any additional graduation requirements prescribed by the Board.

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)

fef-6162-52—High School-Exit-Examination)

AR 6173.1()

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued)

However, when a foster youth who has completed his/her second year of high school transfers
into the district from another school district or transfers between high schools within the district,
he/she shall be exempted from all district-adopted coursework and other district-established
graduation requirements, unless the district makes a finding that the student is reasonably able to
complete the additional requirements in time to graduate from high school by the end of his/her
fourth year of high school. Within 30 calendar days of the foster youth's transfer, the
Superintendent or designee shall notify the foster youth, the person holding the right to make
educational decisions for him/her, and the foster youth's social worker of the availability of the
exemption and whether the foster youth qualifies for it. If the Superintendent or designee fails to
provide this notification, the student shall be eligible for the exemption once notified, even if the
notification occurs after the student is no longer a foster youth. (Education Code 51225.1, 60851)

To determine whether a foster youth is in his/her third or fourth year of high school, the district

248



shall use either the number of credits the foster youth has earned as of the date of the transfer or
the length of his/her school enrollment, whichever qualifies him/her for the exemption.
(Education Code 51225.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify any foster youth who is granted an exemption and
the person holding the right to make educational decisions for him/her how any requirements that
are waived will affect the foster youth's ability to gain admission to a postsecondary educational
institution and shall provide information about transfer opportunities available through the
California Community Colleges. (Education Code 51225.1)

The district shall not require or request a foster youth to transfer schools in order to qualify for an
exemption and no request for a transfer solely to qualify for an exemption shall be made by a
foster youth or any person acting on behalf of a foster youth. (Education Code 51225.1)

If a foster youth is exempted from local graduation requirements, the exemption shall continue to
apply after the termination of the court's jurisdiction over the student while he/she is still enrolled
in school or if he/she transfers to another school or school district. (Education Code 51225.1)

AR 6173.1(K)

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued)

Upon making a finding that a foster youth is reasonably able to complete district graduation
requirements within his/her fifth year of high school, the Superintendent or designee shall:
(Education Code 51225.1)

1. Inform the foster youth and the person holding the right to make educational decisions for
him/her of the foster youth's option to remain in school for a fifth year to complete the
district's graduation requirements and how that will affect his/her ability to gain
admission to a postsecondary educational institution

2. Provide information to the foster youth about transfer opportunities available through the
California Community Colleges

3. Upon agreement with the foster youth or, if he/she is under 18 years of age, the person

holding the right to make educational decisions for him/her, permit the foster youth to
stay in school for a fifth year to complete the district's graduation requirements

Eligibility for Extracurricular Activities

Note: Education Code 48850 provides that, when a foster youth's residence changes pursuant to a court order or
decision of a child welfare worker, the student shall be immediately deemed to meet all residency requirements
for participation in extracurricular activities and interscholastic sports. For additional information about
eligibility requirements, see BP 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities.

249



A foster youth whose residence changes pursuant to a court order or decision of a child welfare
worker shall be immediately deemed to meet all residency requirements for participation in
interscholastic sports or other extracurricular activities. (Education Code 48850)

(cf 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

Notification and Complaints

Note: As—amended-by-AB-379(Ch-772,-Statutes—of 2015); Education Code 48853, 49069.5, 51225.1, and

51225.2 require that the district's annual uniform complaint procedures notification mclude spemﬁed information
regarding the educational rights of foster youth. See AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures for further
information regarding this notification. Education Code 48853.5;-as-amended-by-AB-379; requires the California
Department of Education (CDE), in consultation with the California Foster Youth Education Task Force, to
develop a standardized notice of the educational rights of foster youth and to post that notice on its web site.

Information regarding the educational rights of foster youth shall be included in the annual
uniform complaint procedures notification distributed to students, parents/guardians, employees,
and other interested parties pursuant to 5 CCR 4622. (Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5,

51225.1, 51225.2)
AR 6173.1()

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Note: AB-379-(Ch—772,-Statutes-o£2015)-amended-Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, and .

51225.2 te-provide that complaints of noncompliance with specified requirements related to the educatlon of
foster youth may be filed in accordance with the uniform complaint procedures specified in 5 CCR 4600-4687.
As with other complaints covered under the uniform complaint procedures, a complainant may appeal the
district's decision to the CDE and, if the district or CDE finds any merit in the complaint, the district must
provide a remedy to the affected student. See BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.

Any complaint alleging that the district has not complied with requirements regarding the
education of foster youth may be filed in accordance with the district's procedures in AR 1312.3
- Uniform Complaint Procedures. If the district finds merit in a complaint, the district shall
provide a remedy to the affected student. A complainant not satisfied with the district's decision
may appeal the decision to the California Department of Education (CDE) and shall receive a
written decision regarding the appeal within 60 days of CDE's receipt of the appeal. If the CDE
finds merit in an appeal, the district shall provide a remedy to the affected student. (Education
Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2)

(cf- 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

250



(12/13 12/15) 10/17

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2017 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

251



CSBA Sample
Board Bylaw

Student Board Members

BB 9150
Board Bylaws

***Note: The following optional board bylaw is for use by any district maintaining one or more
high schools. When petitioned by the district's high school students pursuant to Education Code
35012, the Governing Board is required to order the inclusion of at least one student on the
Board and, at its discretion, may include more than one student Board member. In the absence
of any such petition, the Board may, on its own authority, order the inclusion of a student
member on the Board. ***

The Governing Board believes that engaging the student body and seeking its input and feedback
regarding the district's educational programs and activities are vital to achieving the district's
mission of educating district students. In order to enhance communication between the
Governing Board and the student body and to engage students in the district's educational
programs and operations, the Board encourages the involvement of high school students in
district sovernance. The inclusion of one or more student representatives on the Board
shall be ordered upon receipt of a student petition in accordance with Education Code
35012 or may be ordered at anv time at the discretion of the Board.

The term of a student Board member shall be one year, commencing on July 1 of each year. A
student Board member shall have the right to attend all Board meetings except closed (executive)
sessions. (Education Code 35012)

Petition

High school students mav submit a petition to the Board requesting the appointment of at
least one student Board member. This petition. or a separate petition submitted after
students have been appointed to the Board, also mav include a request to allow preferential
voting for student Board members. (Education Code 35012)

Preferential voting means a formal expression of opinion that is recorded in the minutes
and cast before the official vote of the Board. (Education Code 35012)

To be eligible for consideration by the Board, the petition for student representation or the
petition for preferential voting shall contain the signatures of no less than 500 regularly
enrolled high school students, or no less than 10 percent of the number of regularly
enrolled high school students. whichever is less. (Education Code 35012)

252



Within 60 days of receiving a student petition, or at the next regularly scheduled Board
meeting if no meeting is held within those 60 days, the Board shall order the inclusion of a
student member on the Board or shall act to allow preferential voting for the student
Board member, as applicable. (Education Code 35012)

*#*Note: Education Code 35012, as amended by SB 532 (Ch. 317, Statutes of 2015), requires a
majority vote of all voting members of the Board in order to eliminate a student Board member
position. The motion must be listed as a public agenda item for a Board meeting prior to the
motion being voted upon. ***

Once established, the student Board member position shall remain in effect un?il the
Board, by majority vote of all voting Board members, approves a motion to eliminate the
position. (Education Code 35012)

Selection of Student Board Member

Student Board members shall be elected by the students enrolled in the high school or high
schools in accordance with procedures prescribed by the Board. (Education Code 35012)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Co curricular Activities)

Role and Responsibilities of Student Board Members

The term of a student Board member shall be one year, commencing on July 1. (Education
Code 35012)

A student Board member shall have the right to attend all Board meetings except closed
(executive) sessions. (Education Code 35012)

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

A student Board member shall be recognized at Board meetings as a full member and shall be
seated with other members of the Board. In addition, a student Board member shall receive all
materials presented to other Board members except those related to closed sessions, and he/she
may participate in questioning witnesses and discussing issues. (Education Code 35012)

(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

When a student petition has requested preferential voting rights for student Board
members or when the Board has granted preferential voting rights, a student Board member
may cast preferential votes on all matters except those subject to closed session discussion.
Preferential votes shall not affect the final numerical outcome of a vote. (Education Code
35012)

253



(cf. 9324 - Minutes and Recordings)

A student Board member may make motions that may be acted upon by the Board, except on
matters dealing with employer-employee relations pursuant to Government Code 3540-3549.3.
(Education Code 35012)

A student Board member shall not be liable for anv acts of the Board. (Education Code

35012)

(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

A student Board member shall be entitled to be reimbursed for mileage to the same extent as
other members of the Board but shall not receive compensation for attendance at Board
meetings. (Education Code 35012)

(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses)
(cf. 9250 - Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits)

Student Board Member Development

As necessary, the Superintendent or designee shall, at district expense, provide learning
opportunities to student Board members, through trainings, workshops, and conferences, to
enhance their knowledge, understanding, and performance of their Board responsibilities.

The Superintendent or designee may periodically provide an orientation for student Board
member candidates to give them an understanding of the responsibilities and expectations of
Board service.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

33000.5 Appointment of student members to State Board of Education
35012 Board members; number, election and terms; student members
GOVERNMENT CODE

3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Association of Student Councils: http://www.casc.net
California Association of Student Leaders: http://www.caslboard.com
National School Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org

254



(3/93 7/11) 12/15

255



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Contract with Blackboard

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action __X Discussion/Information

——————————

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board approve the updated Blackboard contract.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Keeping parents informed and increasing parent involvement is an ongoing goal for the Los
Banos Unified School District. Blackboard Connect is an autodialing system that can send
parents information on a wide variety of topics and happenings at the school and within the
district. The system can send parents emails as well. One of the major benefits of the system is
that it will automatically translate the message into the language spoken at home. Teachers can
also send individual messages to parents from their classroom.

Blackboard is an industry leading suite of integrated products that make communication

streamlined and efficient and this upgrade is needed in keeping up with that efficiency to better
serve our parents and staff.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

Goal #1: Promote the educational success of all students by closing the achievement gap between
groups of students by using the best practices to attain proficiency or better by all students in
reading and mathematics.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT:

$32,500.00 Annually

e s e e e ————————— ———— — — —
ORIGINATORS: Paul J. Enos Assistant Superintendent - Secondary Education
Paula Mastrangelo Assistant Superintendent - Elementary Education

DATE: December 14, 2017

256



B I a Ck boa rd' Quote #: 00021205 SW
Order Form

1111 19" Strest NW, Washington, DC 20036

Phone: 1-800-424-9299 Fax: 866-891-8612
District/Entity ("CLIENT") Name:
Los Banos Unified School District

Client Accounts Payable Information
Is a PO Number Required> (Y/N)

1717 S11THST PO Number:
LOS BANOS, CA 93635-4800 Contact Name:
Student Enroliment: B (2,001 - 20,000) Contact Telephone Number:

Bb Customer Account No: 326306 -

* Blackboard will provide Client with the licensed software, support and/or services ("Licenses and Services") to the extent identified in Exhibit A
of this Master Agreement Order Form (“Crder Form” or “Agreement”) for the fees set forth in Exhibit A. The Licenses and Services are subject to
the specifications and limitations set forth in Exhibit B, if applicable as well as the Incorporated Contract Documents (listed below and

incorporated by reference). If any term of this Order Form conflicts with any Incorporated Contract Document, then this Order Form shall control.

Term

1. Initial Term: Unless otherwise specified in the Licenses and Services set forth in Exhibit A, the Initial Term shall be 17
months following the Effective Date.

2. Unless otherwise spegcified in the Licenses and Services set forth in Exhibit A, this Order Form shall be renewed
automatically for successive periods of one (1) year (each a "Renewal Term") after the expiration of the Initial Term and any
subsequent Renewal Term, unless Client provides Blackboard, or Blackboard provides Client, with a written notice to the
contrary thirty (30) days prior to the end of the Initial Term or Renewal Term, as applicable.

3. Effective Date: 02/01/2017

Fees and Payment Terms

1. Allinitial and subsequent payments shall be due Net 30. Unless otherwise specified, ali dollars ($) are United States

currency.
2. Sales Tax: If applicable, a copy of your Sales Tax Direct Pay Certificate or your Sales Tax Exemption Certificate must be

returned with this Order Form.
Incorporated Contract Documents

http://agreements.blackboard.com/bbinc/blackboard-new-master-agreement-all-products.aspx
Client acknowledges that it has reviewed and accepts each of the above contract documents.

The following Exhibits are attached to this Agreement:
Exhibit A — Fees

Blackboard Confidential. All rights reserved. Page 1 of 3

257



EXHIBIT A

Fees
Product Code Product Name QTy Pro%l:;tcr;-il;)ﬁz;vice O.ZP;; 15?:? 7- 07/Yoe13;l;1 7-
06/30/2017 06/30/2018
PL-NOTIF Blackboard Mass Notifications 10000 Students Annual Fees $7.291.67 | $17,500.00
BC-MN-TAPP Blackboard Teacher Communicatian 10000 Students Annual Fees $6,250.00 | $ 15,000.00
Allowance for Connect already contracted (5 months) 1 One-Time Fees $-10,552.08
PL-NOTIF-IMP Implementation: Mass Notifications 1 One-Time Fees $ 1,500.00
BC-MN-IMPL-TAPP Implementation: Teacher Communication 1 One-Time Fees $ 500.00
PL-TRAINING-OL Mass Notifications: Online Tralning (Basic/Intermediate) 1 Session One-Time Fees $ 400.00
PL-TRAINING-OL Mass Notifications: Online Training (Advanced/Custom) 1 Session One-Time Fees $ 500.00
Total $5,889.59 | $32,500.00

* While the Subscription Fees for each of the annual or other periods reflected in the table above are stated as fixed Subscription Fees, the fees
due for each annual period following the initial period (which is either Year 1 or a partial year period) may be increased by a percentage amount
no greater than the applicable increase in the U.S. Depariment of Labor's Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers, U.S. City Average
("CPI-U"). In each instance, the CPI-U will be measured over a twelve (12) month period which ends on the month which is six (6) months
immediately prior to the first month of the contract year for which the increase would apply. Blackboard would notify Client of any such increase
in the invoice submitted prior to the contract year at issue. For increases that may apply to renewal or other periods following the term of years
reflected in the table above, please refer to the applicable provisions of the Agreement.

Blackboard Confidential. All rights reserved.

258

Page 2 of 3



By signing below, each of Blackboard and Client represent that a) this Agreement has received all necessary approvals and that
each party is authorized to enter into this contract and b) Client has reviewed and accepted all of the contract documents

incorporated into or attached to this Agreement.

THE PARTIES have executed this Agreement through the signatures of their respective authorized representatives.

Blackboard

Bill Jones
Name of Authorized Blackboard Officer

Associate General Counsel
Title

Signature

Date

Blackboard Internal Use Only:

Los Banos Unified School District

Foau | . Ehcs
Name of Authorized Los Banos Unified School District
Representative

A?S«hsﬁh‘%’ Seaserinfesdent
I

Title /) .

Signature

! 5}':?/’2 '8 ‘,#y 7

Date

Service Agency: Merced COE

Chris Prince

Account Manager:

Blackboard Confidential. All rights reserved.

Page 3 of 3

259




Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Agreement, Alpha Vista Services

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action_ X Discussion/Information

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board approve the contract between Alpha Vista and LBUSD for
provision of bilingual psychologist to students for the remaining 2017-2018 school year and
authorize designated personnel to sign contract documents.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

One of our current school psychologists is on paid administrative leave. It leaves the entire
Pacheco High School and preschool program without a school psychologist. That is population of
1800 students.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

GOAL 1: Promote the educational success of all students by closing the achievement gap
between groups of students by using best practices to attain proficiency or better by all students in
reading and mathematics.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None at this time.

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT: (Include Impact on School District Facilities)

Maximum contract amount is $ 100.00 hour. Special Education funds will pay the cost of the
service.

e e e e e =1
ORIGINATOR: Min Yuan, Director of Special Services
Date: December 14, 2017

260



e Stepping Stones

GROUP Corporate Oifice
. 1290 hirer Rd, Suite 3071 -
Cumberland « MyThevapyCompany Sunnyvale, CA 94086
% AlphaVista » Staffing Options & Solutions : Phone: 405-331-2181 Fax: 408-519-3357
wiww.alphavistausa.com
SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Services Agreement (“Agreement”) made as of December 5, 2017, by and between
AlphaVista Services, Inc., a subsidiary of Pediatric Therapy Services, LLC, d/b/a The Stepping
Stones Group (“Contractor”) and Los Banes Unified School District, 1777 S. 11t St., Los Banos,
CA 93635 (“Client”). Itis hereby agreed as follows:

FEES: Unless more particularly described in Exhibit B to this Agreement, Contractor agrees to
provide the following services to Client and Client agrees to pay the following hourly rates below for
those Services:

(Bilingual) School Psychologist $100.00 per hour

Client agrees to be billed (except during holidays) by Contractor for an aggregate weekly minimum of
40 hours per week; provided, however, that if any employee of Contractor is absent during any week
due to illness or other personal time off and Contractor does not replace such employee during such
week, the foregoing minimum amount will be reduced by the number of hours of such absence. No
employee of Contractor will work above 40 hours per week, or above eight hours per day, without
advanced authorization from both Contractor and the designated supervisor assigned by Client. Any
hours worked that are subject to state or federal statutory overtime requirements will be billed at 150%
of bill rate. Client will not be billed during school closures and school holidays.

When Statutory Costs and other employee costs of living increase, Contractor will pass those
increases along to Client with no mark-up. Client agrees to pay such increases at the same time as any
billed fees pursuant to this Agreement. Statutory Costs include any costs and expenses of Contractor
that are associated with Workers Comp, FICA, FUTA, SUTA, and incremental costs associated with
the Affordable Care Act (ACA), among others.

MILEAGE: To the extent applicable, travel between schools will be considered billable time and will
be billed at the current IRS mileage rate. No travel will be billed when work is completed at one site.

PAYMENT TERMS: Client will be billed monthly, as more particularly described in Exhibit A to
this Agreement, and agrees to pay all outstanding invoices within 30 days of receipt. Client agrees
and understands that Client is billed on actual hours of service provided by the Contractor’s employee,
based on the total hours listed on a biweekly timesheet.

A finance charge of 1.5% per month on the unpaid amount of an invoice, or the maximum amount
allowed by law, will be charged on past due accounts. Payments by Client will thereafter be applied
first to accrued interest and then to the principal unpaid balance. Any attorneys’ fees, court costs, or
other costs incurred in collection of delinquent accounts shall be paid by Client. If payment of
invoices is not current, Contractor may suspend performing further work.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND INSURANCE: Contractor will be responsible for providing all
employee benefits and insurance including Workers’ Compensation coverage.

NO SOLICITATION: During the term of this Agreement and for a period of two years after the
termination of this Agreement, Client agrees not to directly or indirectly contract with, offer
employment to or hire any employee of the Contractor assigned to Client or any candidate submitted
by Contractor to Client. Client agrees that if they directly hire any contracted employee provided by
the Contractor or candidate submitted by the Contractor there is a one-time fee equal to 20% of the
employee’s salary.

CONFIDENTIALITY: Client agrees not to provide the content information of this Agreement to

any individual or an entity that may be considered a competitor of the Contractor. Client further
agrees not to discuss or disclose any information pertaining to the contents of this Agreement

Services Agreement v.2017.07.05

261



e Steppmg Stones

C ROUP : Corporate ifice
1290 Kifer Rd, Suite 381
Cumberland « My'I'herupyLompan_\' ) Sunnyvale, C\ ¥4066
AlphaVista » Staffing Options & Solutions Phone: 208-331-2161 Fan: 108-519-3157

www.alphavistauge.com

including but not limited to fees/costs, duration and terms, etc. to the Contractor’s employee assigned
to provide services to the Client. Disclosure of such information to the Contractor’s employee will be
censidered a breach of this Agreement.

Both parties may receive information that is proprietary to or confidential to the other party or its
affiliated companies and their clients. Both parties agree to hold such information in strict confidence
and not to disclose such information to third parties or to use such information for any purpose
whatsoever other than performing under this Agreement or as required by law. No knowledge,
possession, or use of Client’s confidential information will be imputed to Contractor as a result of any
of Contractor’s employees having access to such information. The provisions set forth in the
foregoing paragraph and this paragraph shall survive expiration or other termination of this
Agreement, regardless of the cause of such termination.

COOPERATION: Client agrees to cooperate fully, and to provide assistance to, Contractor in the
investigation and resolution of any complaints, claims, actions, or proceedings that may be brought by
or that may involve any emplayees of Contractor.

TERMINATION: The Term of this Agreement will be for a period of twelve months and may
continue beyond this period by mutual consent. Client agrees not to terminate the Agreement until the
end of the term unless (a) Contractor’s employee assigned to Client as a whole is deficient in its
performance of the services hereunder or (b) any member of Contractor’s employee assigned to Client
commits an act of professional or ethical misconduct. Client agrees to notify Contractor of any
deficiencies in services or possible ethical or professional conduct as soon as Client becomes aware of
such deficiencies or misconduct and further agrees to permit Contractor the opportunity to cure any
deficiency or misconduct within thirty (30) days of such notice in lieu of termination of this
Agreement. Contractor may terminate this Agreement (i) if Client discontinues operations or (i) if
Client fails to make any payments as required by this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: To the extent permitted by law,
Contractor will defend, indemnify, and hold Client and its parents, subsidiaries, directors, officers,
agents, representatives, and employees harmless from all claims, losses, and liabilities (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees) to the extent caused by or arising from Contractor’s breach of this
Agreement; its failure to discharge its duties and responsibilities; or the gross negligence or willful
misconduct of Contractor or Contractor’s officers, employees, ar authorized agents in the discharge of
those duties and responsibilities.

To the extent permitted by law, Client will defend, indemnify, and hold Contractor and its parents,
subsidiaries, directors, officers, agents, representatives, and employees harmless from all claims,
losses, and liabilities (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) to the extent caused by or arising from
Client’s breach of this Agreement; its failure to discharge its duties and responsibilities; or the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of Client or Client’s officers, employees, or authorized agents in the
discharge of those duties and responsibilities.

Neither party shall be liable for or be required to indemnify the other party for any incidental,
consequential, exemplary, special, punitive, or lost profit damages that arise in connection with this
Agreement, regardless of the form of action (whether in contract, tort, negligence, strict liability, or
otherwise) and regardless of how characterized, even if such party has been advised of the possibility
of such damages.

As a condition precedent to indemnification, the party seeking indemnification will inform the other
party within ten (10) business days after it receives notice of any claim, loss, liability, or demand for
which it seeks indemnification from the other party; and the party seeking indemnification will
cooperate in the investigation and defense of any such matter.

Services Agreement v.2017.07.05

262



AlphaVista « Staffing Options & Solutions

T Stepping Stones
G_ _R our Corporai Office
; ) 1290 Kifer Rd, Suite 301
Sunnyvale, CA 93056
Plrone: 408-331-2181 Fax: 408-519-3357
wiww.aiphavistausa.com

Cumberland » MyTherapyCompany

The provisions in this section of the Agreement constitute the complete agreement between the parties
with respect to indemnification, and each party waives its right to assert any common-law
indemnification or contribution claim against the other party.

JURISDICTION: This agreement shall be governed by, construed, and is enforceable in accordance
with the laws of the State of California. Any action or proceeding relating to or arising out of this
Agreement shall be commenced and heard in the State or Federal Court sitting in California. Both
parties hereby consent to the jurisdiction and venue of such courts.

GENERAL: No provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived unless agreed to in a
writing signed by the parties.

The provisions of this Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding on the parties and their
respective representatives, successors, and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and

date first above written.

Vice President School Services

CONTRACTOR: CLIENT:
Qmu?zl/{. Qr T
gnatu e Signature
‘ ﬁ)s_efph “Jay” Totter Min Yuan
Name Name

Director, Special Education

Title

Title

12/5/17
Date Date
Notices: Notices:

AlphaVista Services, Inc
1290 Kifer Rd, Ste 301
Sunnyvale, CA 94086
Phone: 408-331-2181

Los Banos Unified School District
1777 S. 11™ Street

Los Banos, CA 93635

Phone: 209-826-3801

Services Agreement v.2017.07.05

263



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Traffic Studv Proposal

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action X Discussion/Information

e ——— e e e

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board approve the proposal from K.D. Anderson & Associates, Inc. to
provide a traffic engineering study on the new elementary school location.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

In 2014 K.D. Anderson & Associates, Inc. completed an updated traffic study in this area for the
school. The work will now involve updating the 2014 study to address potential off-site impacts
associated with this project, and the work will again include assessment of site access and
identification of recommendations for project design. Background traffic information will be
updated to account for the effects of recent residential development, the opening of new LBUSD
schools, and cumulative traffic impacts will be evaluated based on forecasts from the City of Los
Banos’ new city-wide traffic model.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This is an operational activity and does not directly support a specific Board goal.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

N/A

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

The contract amount not to exceed $9,000 and will be paid from developers fees.

e e ——————— e e—————

ORIGINATOR: Mark Marshall, Ed.D., Superintendent
Date: December 14, 2017

264



KD Anderson & Aisociales, Inc.

Transportation Engineers

November 28, 2017

Dr. Mark Marshall Superintendent.
Los Banos Unified School District
1717 S. 11" Street

Los Banos, CA 93635

RE: PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE TRAFFIC ENGINEERING CONSULTANT SERVICES RELATING TO
LBUSD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL (MISSION VILLAGE SITE) IN LOS BANOS

Dear Dr. Marshall:

Thank you for considering our firm for services relating to the new elementary school in Los Banos. As
we are aware the school site is located north of B Street and west of Place Road in the area south of
Willmott Road.

In 2014 we completed an updated traffic study in this area for the school. Our work will now involve
updating the 2014 study to address potential off-site impacts associated with this project, and our work
will again include assessment of site access and identification of recommendations for project design.
Background traffic information will be updated to account for the effects of recent residential
development and the opening of LBUSD’s new schools, and cumulative traffic impacts will be evaluated
based on forecasts from the City of Los Banos’ new city-wide traffic model.

Our Scope of Work is attached. We understand that time is critical, and we expect to provide you with
our report within three (3) weeks of receiving authorization to proceed. Our fee will be based on our

current fee schedule and would not exceed $9,000.

Thank you again for considering our firm for this work. Please feel free to contact us at (916) 660-1555
if you have any questions or need more information.

Sincerely yours,

KD Anderson & Associates, Inc.

Kenneth D. Anderson, P.E.
President

El’lC . S COpe Of Work Los Banos Elementary School on Place Road pro

3852 Taylor Road, Suite G » Loomis, CA 95650 « (916) 660-1555 « FAX (916)660-1535

265



UDPATED TRAFFIC STUDY FOR
NEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL (MISSION VILLAGE)
Los Banos, CA

SCOPE OF WORK
11/28/17

A traffic study will be prepared addressing the project specific and cumulative impacts of the
New Elementary School (Mission Village). The study will address "Existing", "Short Term
Future with other Development Plus Project" and "Twenty Year Future with Project" conditions.
Mitigation measures that should be implemented concurrent with the project will be identified,
and the extent to which this project should contribute to improvements required for future
conditions will be suggested. The text that follows outlines our Scope of Work.

PHASE 1 — EXISTING SETTING / DATA COLLECTION

Under this study phase, current roadway and intersection traffic volumes, capacities and
operating Levels of Service (LOS) will be described. New traffic counts will be made when area
schools are in session, and any existing traffic safety deficiencies will be noted. The following
tasks will be completed:

Task 1.1 Collect Traffic Count Data, We will conduct a field review to acquaint ourselves
with the site and to collect the physical data required to complete this analysis. An a.m. peak
hour (7:00 to 9:00 a.m.) and daily traffic volume base will be established for the study area
intersections and roadways. Any available information will be reused, but new counts will be
made where required.

The intersections to be considered are dependent on the probable school boundary. For budget
purposes, the following existing intersections will be evaluated:

Place Road / B Street

Place Road / Palermo Drive

Las Palmas Street / B Street

Mercey Springs Road (SR 165) / B Street

Mercey Springs Road (SR 165) / Willmott Avenue
Overland Avenue / Summerset Drive

Overland Avenue / Place Road

NV LN

The following future intersections will be addressed under “plus Project” conditions:

1. Willmott Avenue / Las Palmas Street
2. Mission Avenue / Las Palmas Street
3. Mission Avenue / Place Road

Proposal Relating to the Los Banos Elementary School (Mission Village) Page 1

Updated Traffic Study  (November 28, 2017) K 3 fq

266



Task 1.2 Describe Existing Traffic Operations and Safety Deficiencies. A field review will
be conducted to identify any capacity or safety deficiencies that may already exist. Current
parking restrictions will be noted. Operating Levels of Service will be calculated using
methodologies that are acceptable to the City and Caltrans, and the extent to which new traffic
controls are already needed (i.e., signalization, turn lanes, signing, striping, etc.) will be
determined. Available sight distance at study area intersections and at the proposed project
access will be investigated. Current transit operations and planned roadway improvements will
also be described.

PHASE 2 — PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS

The extent to which the development of the project may, by itself, impact the area street system
will be determined, as indicated in the tasks that follow.

Task 2.1 Identify Project Trip Characteristics and Site Trip Generation. The number of
automobile trips that may be generated by the project will be estimated through application of
approved ITE trip generation rates and using rates calculated from our observation of other
Central Valley elementary schools.

The distribution of project trips will then be identified based on the relative distribution of
residences within the school's service area (inbound trips) and the location of Los Banos
employment centers (outbound trips). Information regarding the limits of the area to be served by
this school will need to be provided by the District.

Project trips will then be assigned to the area street system based on the least travel time path
between origin and destination. The trip assignment will reflect implementation of any traffic
controls proposed at site access (i.e., stops signs, left turn prohibition thru medians, etc.). The
relative schedules of operation for the new school and existing Jr. High and High Schools will be
noted in the analysis.

PHASE 3 — SHORT TERM FUTURE IMPACTS

Task 3.1 Identify Opening Day conditions. Current background traffic volumes will be
adjusted to reflect completion of development proposals that can be expected within the near
term future. A list of approved / pending projects will be obtained from the City of Los Banos.

Task 3.2 Quantify Project Specific Impacts. Traffic operations and Levels of Service will be
recalculated under "Opening Day" conditions with and without the proposed Elementary School
project. The extent to which development of this project may contribute to the need for new
traffic controls (i.e., traffic signals, medianization) will be evaluated. The effects of the project
on Bicycle and Pedestrian activity and safety will be described.

Task 3.3 Evaluate Loading / Access Requirements. We will update our evaluation of the
adequacy of access and internal circulation, including adequacy of loading areas and queuing

Proposal Relating to the Los Banos Elementary School (Mission Village) Page 2
Updated Traffic Study  (November 28, 2017) /{ p
EZ) #~ ﬁ

267



requirements at driveways under cumulative conditions. Of specific concern to the City is the
adequacy of the design to insure that no back-ups occur on City streets during peak periods.

We will also consider the amount of space used by parents in the afternoon when waiting to pick
up students. We will apply parking demand rates based on observation of afterschool loading
conditions at other eiementary schools to suggest demands at the new school. The extent to
which demands can be accommodated on-site will be determined and the extent of on-street
loading will be used at the new site will be discussed.

PHASE 4 — CUMULATIVE IMPACTS

The impacts of the project will also be evaluated within the context of future traffic conditions
occurring over the foreseeable future. This evaluation will include addressing area circulation
needs assuming that future traffic conditions under the City of Los Banos General Plan.

Task 4.1 Identify Cumulative Traffic Base. The updated cumulative analysis will utilize
available traffic volume forecasts from the City’s city-wide traffic model for major study area
streets. Available p.m. peak hour forecasts will be used to suggest long term traffic volume
growth rates that can be applied to a.m. peak hour volumes.

Task 4.2 Quantify Cumulative Impacts. Traffic operations, Levels of Service and safety
issues that result from future traffic growth will be identified. Improvement projects that are
already funded by city fees or are required of other development will be noted. Levels of Service
and system deficiencies will be identified for the scenarios described above for "Without Project"
and "With Project” Conditions. The need to control access to Place Road to maintain traffic flow
and ensure safety is a specific City concern to be addressed.

PHASE 5 — MITIGATION MEASURES

The extent to which mitigation measures are needed to reduce project specific or cumulative
impacts will be identified. City requirements for frontage improvements or intersection
modifications will be noted. The extent to which needed improvements are already included in
adopted fee programs will be determined.

Task 5.1 Identify Required Mitigation Measures. Under this task, mitigation measures
required to eliminate current safety problems, reduce project impacts to a less than significant
level (i.e., LOS "D"), or to meet other City standards will be identified.

Mitigation Measures will be separated into the four categories noted below:

1. Mitigation already required to correct existing deficiencies;

2. Mitigation specifically required as a direct result of the project, including design
recommendations;

Mitigation measures needed for future traffic whether or not the project is built; and
4. Additional Mitigation needed in the future due to the project.

(98]

Proposal Relating to the Los Banos Elementary School (Mission Village) Page 3

Updated Traffic Study  (November 28, 2017) K E ﬁ

268



If applicable, the LBUSD’s fair share contribution to the cost of short term or future mitigations
will be determined.

PHASE 6 — REPORT PREPARATION

Task 6.1 Draft Report. A written report will be prepared. Appropriate narrative text, tabular
materials and illustrative graphics will be included.

Task 6.2 Respond to Comments. We will be available to respond to comments received from
the City, Caltrans and the general public on our traffic study.

Task 6.3 Public Meetings / Presentations. This proposal assumes that we will not attend any
public meetings to present the report or respond to questions. Such attendance, if required, will
be provided, but will be billed separately on a T&M basis. This proposal also excludes meetings
with City staff or School District representatives, which will be attended if specifically requested
by the client, but will also be billed separately.

Budget. Our costs to complete this traffic study are itemized by study phase in the table which
follows.

LOS BANOS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TRAFFIC STUDY
BUDGET
Personnel Hours
Principal Tech /
Phase Description Engineer Clerical Total
1 Existing Setting / Data Collection 10 0 10
2 Project Characteristics 4 0 4
3 Short Term Future Impacts 12 0 12
4 Cumulative Impacts 12 0 12
5 Mitigation Measures 4 0 4
6 Report Preparation 8 12 20
Labor Total 50 12 62
Billing Rates per Hour $150 $50
Labor Cost $7,500 $600 $8,100.00
Direct Expenses (6 a.m. peak hour intersection counts @ $150) $900.00
Total Base Budget $9,000.00
Extra Cost Per Meeting in Los Banos l $750.00
Proposal Relating to the Los Banos Elementary School (Mission Village) Page 4
Updated Traffic Study  (November 28, 2017) K‘%

269



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Agreement: LDA Partners for the Volta Modular Expansion Project

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action X Discussion/Information

RECOMMENDATION:

It 1s recommended the Board approve the agreement with LDA Partners (Architects) for the
Volta Elementary School modular expansion project. The agreement will include all project
design for the buildings, pad, electrical hook-up, and civil engineering, as well as project
oversight and construction contract management.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The District intends to add six modular classrooms to Volta Elementary School to accommodate
projected elementary growth district-wide for the upcoming school year. We are seeking an
agreement with LDS Partners for the implementation of this project.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This activity supports Board goals Four and Five.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

N/A

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

$63,000 to be paid from Developer Fee Fund 25.

ORIGINATOR: Mark Marshall, Ed.D., Superintendent
Date: December 14, 2017

270



o B, DESIGNERS & ARCHITECTS

4 December 2017

Dr. Mark Marshal|

Los Banos Unifled School District
1717 S. Eleventh Street

Los Banos, CA 93635

Re: Volta Elementary Modular Additions & Closeout Services— Exhibit A
Dear Dr. Marshall:

Thank you for the opportunity to meet with you and your team, and to submit the enclosed proposal for architectural design,
engineering and construction support services for the Volta Elementary Modular addition and Closecut Services project.

Project Scope:

The proposed project includes design & construction administration services for the placement of & modular classroom to be
relocated from stockpile. These classrooms are anticipated to be “dry” with no wet utility connection. The District will
contract with a modular supplier to deliver and install the buildings. Improvements will include Fire Alarm and Access
Improvements to include path of travel and parking stall improvements. The project will be processed through DSA.

As separate part of the Scope of Work, running concurrently, our office will assist with the closeout of past non-certified
projects that currently exist on file for the Volta campus. We have completed preliminary research with DSA to establish the
closeout needs. As part of this process, the District will need to pay a project re-opening fee to DSA.

Design/ Construction Documents
®  Prepare and further develop Construction Document package to include:
O Architectural Design & Specification Documents
O CivilEngineering design and Documents.
O  Electrical engineering and Fire Alarm
®  Preparation of final Construction Documents and Specifications for Bid.

®  Provide clarification to Bid items, respond to bidding inguiries, prepare addenda as required.

Construction Administration

® Provide construction administration services as requested to observe construction, attend meetings, review
submittals, etc., throughout construction. This proposal defines an allocation of up to 25 hours of construction
administration services. All additional services will be provided on an hourly basis, in accordance with the enclosed
schedules.

Exclusions
Scope of work for this proposal shall not include:

1. Solls Investigations, testing, or reports. To be provided by the Owner, if required.

2. Hazardous materials investigations, surveys or abatement.

3. Al reproduction costs.

4. Any fees required by this work.

5. Revisions to plans beyond the initial revisions contemplated herein. Any revisions beyond those contemplated will
be performed on an hourly basis, in accordance with the schedule listed herein.

6. Construction administration services beyond those listed herein. [Additional Construction Administration Services

to be billed in accordance with the attached schedule.)
7. Additional services beyond those listed herein.

222 Tenti | Cowrt, Stockton, CARS204 | 209943.0405p | 2099430415 f | LDAPARTNERS COWN

271



8. LDA Partners, LLP cannot assume responsibility for construction means, methods, technigues, sequences or
procedures, safety precautions, programs connected with the work, or for acts and omissions by the Caontractor,
subcontractors, or others.

9. Additional services caused by project delays or interruption.

10. Additional services caused by Contractor errors or default in executing the construction project in a proper or
timely manner,

1. Fire Sprinkler Design

12. Upgrades or rerouting to the existing storm drain system or ather wet utilities.

13. DSA or other government agency fees

4. LDA Partners, LLP will not be providing inspections or testing before, during or after construction.

Basic Services

Design & approval [Pre - Design, Plans & Warking Drawings) $ 31,000
Bidding & Construction Administration: $ 5000
Project Completion/ Construction Closeout; ) $ 3500
Sub Total $ 39,500
Geo-technical report and analysis {if required) $ 10,000
Previous Project Closeout Services (T&M Allowance| S 12500
Sub Total $ 22,500
Total S 62,000

Should our services be required in addition to these aliocations, all additional services will be provided on an hourly basis, in
accordance with the following schedule:

Principal Architect: $200.00/hour
Project Architect/Manager: $175.00/hour
Designer: $165.00/hour
Draftsperson: $135.00/hour
Clerical /Staff: S 95.00/hour

Should the project be terminated or extended beyond sixty days from the date of this proposal, the Architect shall be
compensated for all services performed to date,

All work will be billed on a monthly basis for service performed to date.

Reimbursable expenses are in addition to the compensation for basic services and shall include the actual expenditures made
by the Architect and his employees in the interest of the project. at cost plus 10%. Reimbursable expenses shall be billed and
are itemized as follows:

Reproduction Costs
Shipping/Postage
Travel outside of San Joaquin County

All monthly billings not paid within 0 days shall be considered past due, and shall accrue interest from the &7st day at a rate
of 1-1/2% per month or 18% per annum.

The Architect. may at his discretion terminate services if payments are not made within 60 days. Changes to the scope of
work shall be subject to renegotiation. This proposal is subject to renegotiation if not agreed upon within sixty (60) days.
The Ouwner agrees to defend, indemnify, and hald the Architect, his employees, and consultants harmless from any claim or
third party claim refated to services for the investigation of or remedial work related to asbestos, toxic, hazardous, and/or
dangerous materials resulting from the services provided by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement.

Voita Elementary Mods & Closeout
4 December 2017
Page 2 of 3

272



The Americans with Disabilities Act is Federal legislation, not building code. The law provides for the enforcement through
either private lawsuits or Justice Department action. Therefore, the campliance with the ADA is a legal matter, not a design
responsibility.  The design professional wili endeavor to assist the District in their responsibility to comply with the
requirements of the ADA throughout the design of the facility through California Title 24. However, the design professional is
not responsible for failure to comply with these regulations.

Should any litigation be commenced between the parties hereto concerning any provision of this Agreement or the rights and
obligations of either in relaticn thereto. the party, the Owner, or the Architect, prevalling in such litigation shall be entitled, in
addition to such other relief as may be granted, to a reasonable sum as and for attorney’s fees and court costs as incurred in
such litigation, as determined by a court of competent Jurisdiction.

If this proposal is acceptable, please initiate your Standard Form Contract for review and execution. Thank uou for your
interest in our firm for your project. If you have any questions, please let me know.

Cordially,

A/auyw

EricW. Wohte, ALA., LEED ap
Partner

Volta Elementary Mods & Closeout
4 December 2017
Page 30of 3

273



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Student Overnight Travel

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action __X Discussion/Information

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended the Board approve the overnight fieldtrip for Los Banos High School’s Senior
Grad Nite at Disneyland on May 29-30, 2018.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Going to Disney’s Senior Grad Nite has been a long standing tradition at Los Banos High
School. Seniors will leave for the trip on the morning of Monday, May 29" 2018 and return on
the following morning of Tuesday, May 30™ 2016. The trip will consist of three charter buses
carrying approximately 200 students, 10 teacher chaperones, and 1 administrator. The students
and chaperones will be transported in charter busses provided by Golden Eagle Charter out of
Fresno, CA. A district SUV will be also brought to on the trip just in case.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

Disney’s Senior Grad Nite does not support a specific Board goal, but it does celebrate and
promote graduating high school. Board approval is needed for all overnight travel involving
students.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None.

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Each student will need to pay for Grad Nite, Cost is $175 with an ASB card and $185 without an
ASB card. For every 20 students, Disneyland gives a free chaperone ticket. The money goes
towards a one-day park hopper pass and charter busses for the trip.

e — e S —
ORIGINATOR: Veli Gurgen, Principal, Los Banos High School
DATE: December 14, 2017

274



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: LBHS Bovs’ Golf Overnight Travel to AT&T Pro-Am at Pebble Beach

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action X Discussion/Information

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board approve overnight travel for the LBHS Boys’ Varsity Golf
Team to volunteer at the AT&T Pro-Am professional golf tournament in Pebble Beach, CA on
February 711, 2018.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Boys’ Varsity Golf Team may be called upon to volunteer at the AT&T Pro-Am
professional golf tournament at Pebble Beach. They will be staying overnight at a hotel in the
Monterey area if approved.

The golf teams at LBHS used to volunteer in this fashion in the early 1990°s and resumed during
the 2013-2014 school year. This opportunity came up again this school year and would be an
outstanding opportunity for our team.

Boys’ golf team athletes would receive a remarkable opportunity to learn about the business and

logistics of running a major sporting event. Their volunteer capacity would be in the area of
food/hospitality and/or golf-related duties.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This is an operational activity and does not support a specific Board goal. All student overnight
travel requires prior Board approval.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

N/A

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

Transportation (1 suburban) is paid by Athletics.
Overnight lodging is paid by the Golf team Student Body account.
Golf ASB will be reimbursed by AT&T Volunteer program.

h

ORIGINATOR: Veli Gurgen, Principal, Los Banos High School
Date: December 14,2017

275



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Crossroads Alternative Education Center Building Exemption

REQUESTED ACTION:

Action X Discussion/Information

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the board approve the Exemption request to the State Allocation Board.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The State Allocation Boards allows districts to operate independent study in a leased facility that
meets or exceeds local building, health, and safety standards. This is a renewal of the waiver
previously approved by the board in December, 2016.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

Exercising fiscal responsibility and providing adequate school facilities are consistent with the
Los Banos Unified School District Board Goals.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

Build a new facility at the approximate cost of $2,000,000.00 (est. 2015, based upon $5,300,000
cost to expand Mercey Springs Elementary by 15 classrooms)

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

Crossroads is currently under lease, at 265 Mercey Springs Rd., Suites C and D, for $3044.00 per
month ($36,528 per year) for both suites and Ste. G, for $1300 per month ($15,600 per year).
This totals $52,128 for the three suites.

—m— e e ee—_——_—_",_e,|,e,e|,e|,e,|,—,—e——————— e s — ——————————————————————
ORIGINATOR: Barbara Severns, principal, Crossroads Alternative Education Center
Date: December 14, 2017

276



STATE OF CALIFORNIA STATE ALLOCATION BOARD

EXEMPTION REQUEST OFFICE OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUGTION

SAB 406 (REV. 12/98)

The district is applying for aD newrenewal request for an exemption from definition of “school building” within
Education Code, Section 17283. Buildings with an approved Exemption Request remain subject to the provisions of the
School Facilities Program,; therefore, they are included in the school district’s Gross Classroom Inventory.

SCHOOL DISTRICT/SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS | DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE

Los Banos Unified School District Barbara Severns

COUNTY - N | PHONE NUMBER B

Merced (209) 826-4013

THE DISTRICT 1S REQUESTING TO USE LEASED/OWNED BUILDINGS E-MAIL ADDRESS

From: January 1, 2018 T0: December 31, 2019 = bseverns@losbanosusd.k12.ca.us
~ MONTH DAY  YEAR ~ MONTH DAY  YEAR _

The above referenced School District/Superintendent of Schools, hereinafter referred to as the “District” is requesting
approval from the State Allocation Board to use the building(s) for Independent Study listed below:

| DISTRICT IDENTIFICATION NUMBER BUILDING LOCATION g
24-65755-0119073 265 Mercey Springs Rd., Ste. C Lo_s Banos, CA 93635
_24-657_55_—01 19073 265 Mercey Springs Rd., Ste. D Los Banos, CA 93635
24-65755-0119073 265 Mircey Springs_Rd., Ste. G Los Banos, CA _93535

The District agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the State of California, its officers and employees harmless
from any legal claims that may arise from the use of said leased/owned buildings that do not comply with the
definition of “school buildings " within Education Code, Section 17283, and,

Now Therefore Be It Resolved, that the District hereby elects to use the building(s) listed above upon
approval of the State Allocation Board.

The District certifies that this request is in compliance with Education Code, Section 17289.

Passed and adopted this __dayof 19
County, California.

R Clerk/Secretary to the Board

277



Board Reference Material

SUBJECT TITLE: Disposal of Obsolete Electronic Equipment

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve

Action X Discussion/Information
%
RECOMMENDATION:;

It is recommended the Board approve the removal and disposal of obsolete electronic equipment.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

District staff has indicated that numerous computers and other electronic equipment has become
inoperable and/or obsolete and are no longer being used by the District. A list of the obsolete
equipment is attached.

HOW DOES THIS ACTIVITY SUPPORT BOARD GOALS?

This is an operational activity and does not directly support a specific Board goal.

ALTERNATIVES/IDENTIFIED OPPOSITION:

None.

SPECIFIC FINANCIAL IMPACT (Include Impact on School District Facilities):

Monies received from the disposal of surplus property shall be placed in the General Fund.

ORIGINATOR: Garth Gomes, Information Systems Manager
Date: December 14, 2017

278



dIvd3d ANOAIG

a3a3aN HIvdIy
31370S90
:SNLVLS:
4
vZ
£z
A4
4
/ 0z
/) bt (200 ~ gL
/ £ b+ c be 0 ._ 1
{ S6btlepz(0 /, 9L
| NbLlche0 Sl
/./ (95 £1 ¢ 00 | o
3 pEiChbe O ﬂ;. el
AI0sYC , ObtIEhERMIQ N - 2 POVTNoK) »E&quﬁ
L
" 09btl2bzQ0 oL
CNbEICHZ D 6
/ 08 b\ C b 00 2
Ok bt 1ELQ00 L
S b0 5
\ SN £ 1€ bR ,__ o
336l SbEO0 b
chibLi m\wmmm ¢
h bLbL (S bE z
PP LABLICLE0) @ 9107 -0 “omowsg éiéou‘v
dleday puokag zocl0 L zzieLie 0ZEY d3 eouliy laidod X3
| oossnivis - [ #usiafAlo] - #veas[ (1300 B 3V NOILAIN0Sad] CFdALL
3jeq

279



